KINGSBURY

| CEMERAL INPROVEMENT DISTRILT

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING NOTICE
AGENDA
TUESDAY, December 17, 2024

A meeting of the Kingsbury General Improvement District Board of Trustees shall be
held Tuesday December 17, 2024, at the district office (160 Pine Ridge Drive, Stateline,
NV, 89449), commencing at 5:00 p.m. The agenda and supporting material are
available on the district website (www.kgid.org), News & Notices. Copies of this agenda
were posted 3 business days prior to the meeting at: The District Office, Stateline Post
Office, Zephyr Cove Post Office, and Douglas County Lake Tahoe Administration
Building.

Remote attendance is welcomed. To offer public comment prior to the meeting,
individuals may submit comments using the drop box located at the district office entrance,
or email to mitch@kaid.org.

e To provide public comment or attend the meeting by phone, (669) 900-9128 - ID
code 775-588-3548 passcode 5883548. Although the phone line accommodates
multiple callers, should you receive a busy signal, please call back.

e Public comment is limited to three minutes and occurs at the beginning and end
of the meeting and invited during the Board’s consideration of each action item,
as well as before action is taken.

Join the meeting using the link below via Zoom:

https:/lus02web.zoom.us/j/7755883548?pwd=UnF2YszbO5YaOijjRCNUNEM
UFVZz09&omn=82649274040
Meeting ID: 775 588 3548 Passcode: 5883548

MISSION STATEMENT
As a team, our employees and the Board of Trustees provide water and sewer service,
maintain roads and drainage systems for the benefit of our customers using modern
business systems in an efficient courteous, and accountable manner which surpass
standards set for public health, safety, and the environment.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of _fhe pubiic Who are aisébled and
require special assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify
the district by calling 775-588-3548 at least one day in advance of the meeting.

ALL MATTERS ON THE BOARD AGENDA ARE SCHEDULED WITH POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION
1



AGENDA

5:00 P.M.

1.

2,
3.
4,

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Public Comment

This is the public’s opportunity to speak on any topic pertinent to the district and not listed
on this agenda. Public comments will also be invited during the Board’s consideration of
each action item, and before action is taken. Please limit your comments to three minutes.
Nevada Open Meeting Law (NRS 241.034) prohibits action on items not listed on the
agenda.

5.

Approval of Agenda: For Possible Action: Items on the agenda may be taken out of
order; two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration; and items may be
removed from the agenda or discussion relating thereto delayed at any time.

Approval of Minutes: For Possible Action: Approval of the minutes for the Board of
Trustees meeting November 19, 2024.

NEW BUSINESS

7.
8.
9.

10.

1.

12.

For Information: Receive and file Financial Statements, October 2024

For Information and Possible Action: Approve list of Claims, November 2024

For Information and Possible Action: Receive Audit Report and Accept the FY 2024
Financial Statement

For information and Possible Action: Approve maodification to the Personnel Policy
regarding adjustments to exempt salary schedule

For information and Possible Action: Approve emergent procurement for waterline
replacement with Summit Plumbing on Holly Lane not to exceed $38,000 and authorize
the General Manager to execute appropriate documents

For Information and Possible Action: Approve the list of surplus equipment and
vehicles and authorize the General Manager to dispose of in accordance with the
appropriate policy.

Public Hearing
13. For Information and Possible Action: Receive report on Rates and Charges Sewer,

Ordinance Number 2 and Adopt Rates as proposed

14. For Information and Possible Action: Receive report on Rates and Charges Water,

15.

Ordinance Number 1, Adopt Rates and Charges as proposed and revisions to
Ordinance Number 1

Recognition of Board of Trustees Members Nelson, Schorr, Yanish: Recognize
and present service plaques to trustees upon retirement from service



ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN ON ANY REPORTS OR CORRESPONDENCE:

1. Board Member Reports
2. Management Report
3. Attorney Report
Correspondence

Eal

5. Announcements and Final Public Comment

6. For Possible Action; Adjournment






MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE
KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES
TUESDAY NOVEMBER 19, 2024

CALL TO ORDER - The meeting was called to order at the Kingsbury General Improvement District office located
at 160 Pine Ridge, Stateline, Nevada at 5:02 p.m. by Natalie Yanish.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL — In attendance were Trustees Trigg, Schorr, Nelson and Yanish. Also present were General
Manager Mitch Dion, Administration & Human Resource Supervisor Judy Brewer, Utility Operations
Superintendent Joe Esenarro and General Counsel Chuck Zumpf. Trustee Parks was absent and there was no

public present.

PUBLIC COMMENT — None.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA -

M-11/19/2024-1 - Motion by Nelson, seconded by Trigg and unanimously passed to approve the Agenda.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES -

M-11/19/2024-2 - Motion by Trigg, seconded by Nelson, and unanimously passed to approve the Regular
Meeting Minutes dated October 15, 2024.

NO ACTION TOOK PLACE ON THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:

NEW BUSINESS

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — SEPTEMBER 2024
Financials were provided for review. It was noted that Nelson’s prior questions have been forwarded to the

auditor for clarification.

LIST OF CLAIMS — Schorr noted check #64561 and requested, an update regarding document imaging project.
Schorr questioned check #64610 on water meters registers and discussion on life cycles. He noted check
#64632 for audit expense affirming it was nearly complete, and no material items were noted.

Yanish noted check #64557 with discussion of legal expenses incurred.

M-11/19/2024-3 - Motion by Nelson, seconded by Trigg, and unanimously passed to approve the List of
Claims in the amount of $1,051,012.21 as represented by check numbers 64534 through 64664.

Approve correction for Appendix C, Bargaining Unit Contract and Proposed Adjustments to Exempt

Salary Schedule.
A written report was provided. It was explained that modifications were corrections based upon an error in the

lowest street maintenance level in Appendix C. Nelson requested clarification regarding the range and verified
that employees have been paid correctly.

The open professional positions were reviewed and options to provide a range with steps for growth. It was
recommended to modify the proposal with more steps and using the titie of Finance Manager.

Yanish confirmed the motion.

M-11/19/2024-4 - Motion by Nelson, seconded by Trigg, and unanimously passed to approve correction for
Appendix C, Bargaining Unit Contract and authorize the General Manager to execute the appropriate
documents.

Review and Approve 2025 Board of Trustees and District Holiday Calendar.

KGID Board Meeting Minutes 11/19/2024



June 20, 2025 and December 26, 2025 district will close but remain a workday for employees unless they take a
vacation day.

M-11/19/2024-5 - Motion by Trigg, seconded by Nelson, and unanimously passed to approve 2025 Board of
Trustees and District Holiday Calendar.

Discuss for Support for Interagency for the Use of Road Sweepers and Vactor within the Tahoe Basin.

A written report was provided. It was explained that other agencies have requested use of KGID road sweepers
and vactor; however, people and equipment availability had always been an obstacle in the past. The trustees
discussed and supported the benefits of lake clarity but expressed their concerns.

There was no action on this item.

Review Proposed Modifications to the Sewer Enterprise Fund Rates.
A written report and summary were provided. A rate increase was recommended.

Nelson suggested potential allocation adjustments regarding expenses related to the sprung structure. It was
explained that any adjustment would not be material. The new rate increase would be effective April 1, 2025.

Schorr suggested modifying expenses in lieu of rate increases. It was explained that the bulk of expenses are
fixed, Douglas County Sewer Authority, contract expenses and the expense distribution.

The hearing process was reviewed. The public hearing will be on December 17, 2024. No action was taken.

Review Proposed Modifications to the Water Enterprise Fund Rates Charges Water, Ordinance Number 1.
A written report and summary were provided and adjustments were noted.

Ordinance Number 1 requires corrections and clarifications regarding master meters at condominiums consistent
with AWWA and state regulations. Modifications will also provide a corrective mechanism for master meters on
multiple condominiums on a single parcel.

Nelson identified expenses related to Ponderosa in capital plan and suggested a review.

Yanish suggested a higher tolerance for improvements requiring plumbing upgrades to be consistent with building
codes. She expressed her concerns regarding costs that would be prohibitive to upgrades and modifications to
properties with multiple owners. It was explained that regulation is needed to ensure buildings are eventually
brought to code. Possible solutions include mini-meters or separating plumbing to a meter.

Trigg supported the improvements to the ordinance. Nelson suggested the requirement for significant plumbing
improvements be revised. It was suggested to mirror language from the plumbing code.

The hearing process was reviewed. The public hearing will be on December 17, 2024. No action was taken.

Discuss Current District Vacancies and Succession Planning Efforts.
A written report was provided, and it was recommended that a sub-committee be formed to work with the General
Manager on succession planning.

Nelson volunteered to serve on the committee and stated that Parks was also interested. It was confirmed that
Nelson would serve until the new board takes office. She also offered to serve as a community member.

Schorr suggested posting the position as soon as possible.

M-11/19/2024-6 - Motion by Yanish, seconded by Trigg, and unanimously passed to appoint Trustee Nelson
and Trustee Parks as ad hoc committee members for the purpose of succession planning efforts. Nelson
would serve until the end of her term and contingent upon request to serve as a committee member
thereafter.

Board Reports
Nelson stated the Sewer Authority has modified ordinance for services and their audit should be received this

week.

KGID Board Meeting Minutes 11/19/2024



Management Reports

General Manager’s Report
The League of Cities and Municipalities is sponsoring two Bill Draft Requests. The first is regarding fee
modifications for requests for public information. The second is a program to encourage local governments to

enact development fee waivers for affordable housing projects.

An update regarding the snow and temporary obstruction of fire hydrants was provided. The hearing will be
conducted on December 19, 2024,

Nelson affirmed the Ponderosa Mobile Home Park which is completed and in billing.

Utility Operations Superintendent Report

Esenarro reported that training is continuing along with implementation of the CMMS program. Nelson inquired
on response time for emergency personnel, and it was explained that he and one other employee will respond to
complaints regarding snow. Employees on stand-by are expected to respond within 1 hour.

Administrative and Human Resources Report
Nelson commented on the report regarding the discrepancies for receivable which the accountant is working to
reconcile with the rental management company and the contracts are being updated.

Engineer’s Report
There were no questions.

Attorney’s Report
The hearing will be held on December 19, 2024 at 1:30 p.m.

CORRESPONDENCE — None.

FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT - None.

ADJOURNMENT
M-11/19/2024-7 - Motion by Nelson seconded by Trigg, and unanimously passed to adjourn the meeting at
7:32 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,
Natalie Yanish, Chair
Attest:

Sandra Parks, Secretary

KGID Board Meeting Minutes 11/19/2024






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #7

TITLE: REVIEW AND RECEIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OCTOBER 2024
For Discussion and Possible Action. Review of Financial Statements
MEETING DATE: 17 December 2024

PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review and file financial statements of October 2024 (not an
action item)

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: District financial statements are prepared for each month of
the year. Although monthly statements will lag a month or two due to the pending processing time,
these provide the Trustees with insights into the financial well-being of the agency.

INCLUDED:

e Financial Statements October 2024

Fund impacted by above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 'GENERAL 53%
CASH POSITION ‘WATER 23%
‘SEWER 21%
OCTOBER 2024 SNOW 3%
BEGINNING ENDING
FUND BALANCE  TRANSFERS ADJUST. RECEIPTS CHECKS BALANCE
GENERAL FUND $ 8759,175.40 |$ (12,977.85)| § (141.76)| $ 132,991.07 | $ (50,251.53)| $ 8,828,795.33
|RESTRICTED CASH(VEHICLEREPLACEMENT) | §  287.497.39 | $  12977.85 | $ o |8 - |8 - |$ 30047524
GENERAL INVESTMENT S 782,161.32 S - $ - $ 3,00386 | $ - $ 785,165.18
GF TOTAL $_9,914435.75
WATER FUND $ 291588583 |$ (207,330.77)|$ 177.21|$ 508271.00 |$  (811,604.62)| $ 240539865
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) [$  474,703.65 | $ 25,055.83 | $ - $ - $ - $  499,759.48
WATER INVESTMENT $ 81124767 | § - $ - $ 2,436.48 | $ - $ 813,684.15
KGID/TRPA RESTRICTED (sTaTion4BMPS) | § 45430.00 | $ - |3 - |8 - % - |$ 4543000
DIST DEBT RESERVE $ 21387469 (% 7238513 |$ - s __ - |$ .- |$_ 26625982
TREAT DEBT RESERVE $ 324.508.40|% 100,880.81 | $ - $ - $. - $  434398.21
CAP IMPROV. RESERVE $ - |s - |s - |8 - |$s - S -
WF TOTAL $ 4,484,930.31
SEWER FUND $ 3517.456.84 | $ (679.24)|$  (1.55)| $ 20760747 |$  (50,353.61)| § 3,674,020.91
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLEREPLACEMENT) | $  10,357.92 | § 679.24 | § - |s - |8 - |$ 1103716
SEWER INVESTMENT $ 42068891 |5 - $ 1,475.58 | $ - $  431,164.48
SF TOTAL $ 4,116,231.56
SNOW REV. FUND $ 9150656 |$  (7.963.69)|$ (33.90)|$ 7693323 |$ (16,044.10)| $  144,398.10
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  133,959.71 | § 7,963.69 | $ - |3 1% - |$ 1492340
SNOW INVESTMENT $ 22,990.26 | $ - $ - $ 11067 | $ - $ 23,100.93
SNOW TOTAL $ 30942243
298 KINGSBURY GRADE RENTAL $ 24852033 | $ - s - |$ 1477724 |3 (1,302.59)| $  261,994.98
80 RENTAL TOTAL $  261,994.98
GRAND TOTALS $ 19,068,964.88 | § = $ = $§ 947,606.60 | $ (929,556.45)| $ 19,087,015.03
CHECKING )
US BANK $ 501,110.36 | $ - $ 87025326 [$  (929,566.45) $  441,807.17
US BANK MMA $  11225]% - $ - |s - |s 112.25
MORTON CAPITAL MMA s 4597591 s 7ees9ls - |$ 5300250
5.2% ZIONS BANCORPORATION $  250,000.00 | $ - $ - s - |$_ 250,000.00
5.15% CROSS RIVER BK $  250,000.00 | $ - $ - | - |$ 250,000.00
5.45% BMO BANK NATIONAL $  250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
4.80% BLUE RIDGE BANK $ 250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
470% FLAGSTARBANK _ [$  250,000.00 | $ : _|s_25000000
5.10% MORGAN STANLEY BANK $ 250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
5.20% BANK HAPOALIM NEW YORK $  250,000.00 | $ . $  250,000.00
4.00% NORTHEAST BANK CD $  250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
LOCAL GOVT POOLED $ 16,521,766.36 | $ - $ 7032675 (% - | $ 16,592,003.11
GRAND TOTALS $ 19,068,964.88 | $ .- $ = $ 947,606.60 | $ (929,556.45) $ 19,087,015.03

Page 1







3%

OCTOBER 2024

STATEMENT OF REVENUE
AND EXPENDITURES
COMBINED






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Combined Atl Funds
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

DRAFT

Cument Period  Current Perfiod  Current Perod | Current Year YD Budget YTD Budget Total Budget Total Budget Per;:;‘:to!al
Actual Budget Budget Variance Actual Variance Variance .
Remaining
REVENUES
TAXES
ADVALOREM TAXES 10651414 93,890.00 12,624.14 357,010.33 369,302.00 708,165.00
PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 18.76 0.00 18.76 6141 0.00 6141 4,104.00
ADVALOREM MAKE-UP 93,115.40 82,102.00 11,013.40 312,100.93 322,935.00 561,529.00
STATE TAX DISTRIBUTION £6.40067 66.400.00 067 2655602.68 269,600.00 268 19007000
Total TAXES 266,048.97 242,392.00 265697 934,775.35 95783700 2,064,858.00
MISCELLANEOUS
319 NON POINT SOURCE EPA GRANT 10,233.75 575,000.00 813,891.74 2,350,000.00 0.00 813,891.74 0.00%
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 77,089.11 70,163.00 6.926.11 32162126 280,653.00 40,968.26 416,386.00
PLAN REVIEW FEE 0.00 150.00 250,00 1,350.00 2,500.00
RENTAL INCOME 8,203.62 8,930.00 32,908.69 35,720.00 103,353.00
OTHER REVENUE 53500 2.241.00 8666.33 896200 26.976.00
Total MISCELLANEOUS 96,061.48 656,484.00 A22.52) 1,177,338.07 2,676,685.00 549,215.00 628,123.07 11437%
USER FEES
USER FEES - RESIDENTIAL 509,668.88 502,178.00 7490.88 2,029,971.78 2,008,710.00 21,261.78 5.906,715.00
RESIDENTIAL TIER 1 CONSUMPTION 2847952 27,376.00 1,10352 144,262.90 149,268.00 361,400.00
RESIDENTIAL TIER 2 CONSUMPTION 6,061.61 4,760.00 1,321.61 40,428.10 40,120.00 308.10 68,000.00
RESENTIAL TIER 3 CONSUMPTION 744999 3,600.00 3.849.99 46,746.67 47,520.00 69,900.00
RESDENTIAL FIRE PROTECTION 8,699.56 7,362.00 1,337.56 33,989.19 29,448.00 4,541.18 83.277.00
USER FEES - COMMERCIAL 39,13273 39,314.00 156,530.92 157,256.00 464,981.00
COMMERCIAL FIRE PROTECTION 7,844.78 7,845.00 31,379.12 31,378.00 112 94,137.00
COMMERGIAL CONSUMPTION 882278 10,002.00 56,464.62 52,187.00 327762 123,007.00 {
PENALTIES ON USER FEES 10,548.12 2,863.00 768512 3230105 11,449.00 20,852.05 74,976.00
SERVICE CHARGES 775.00 1,200.00 3.025.00 4,800.00 14,400.00
RETURN CHECK FEES 60.00 40.00 20.00 140.00 160.00 480.00
CONNECTION FEES 36,420.00 < 89,580.00 31,00000
TRANSFER FEE REVENUE 975.00 599.00 376.00 4,275.00 2,398.00 1,877.00 5,400.00
SERVLINE ADMIN REVENUE 156.15 155.00 115 623.70 620.00 370 1,838.00
SERVLINE LOSS INSURANCE 124213 1,226.00 16.13 495298 4,902.00 50.98 15,801.00
SERVUINE LINE INSURANCE 2320 23800 94289 952,00 2851.00
Total USER FEES 629,669.45 B45,178.00 (15,508.55) 2.584.533.92 2,630,748.00 731816300 4.680%
Total REVERUES, .. .ois 1 999,779.90 1,544,054.00 4,696,647.34 5,265,210.00 9,932,246.00 —




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Combined AR Funds DR AFT
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

CumentPeriod  Current Period  CumentPeriod | Current Year YTO Budget YTD Budget Total Budget Total Budget Pm;i"dtg::m
Actual Budget Budget Variance Actual Variance Varlance
Remaining
EXPENDITURES
PAYROLL RELATED EXPENSES
PAYROLL -MANAGER 27,861.50 49,602.00 2174050 107 501.26 198,403.00 90.901.75 514.813.00 407.311.76 79.12%
PAYROLL - MAINTENANCE 36,833.65 §3,752.00 17,918.35 149,300.30 215,007.00 66,706.70 565,612.00 406,211.70 73.12%
PAYROLL - OFFICE 13,748.80 15,382.00 1,633.20 54,844 16 61,528.00 6.683.84 175,655.00 120,810.84 68.78%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - FICAMEDIC 122057 1,875.00 654.43 5603.34 7,497.00 189366 19,278.00 13.674.66 70.93%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - MED. INS 26,594.92 33,039.00 744408 107,108.72 146,337.00 39,.227.28 406,983.00 299,873.28 73.68%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS 18.,862.89 27,365.00 8482.11 73530.75 109,460.00 35,929.25 301,066.00 227,535.25 75.58%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - SIS 186.65 702.00 515.35 808.37 2,57100 166263 13,238.00 12,32963 93.14%
UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 0.00 1,665.00 1,665.00 000 6,656.00 6,656.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
UNIFORMS 634.14 0.00 4,090.12 4,679.00 588.88 9,350.00 5,269.68 56.30%
OPEB EXPENSE 384792 6,715.00 2,867.08 15,39168 26,860.00 11,468.32 1B9,874.00 174,482.32 91.89%
ACCRUED LEAVE EXPENSE 178270 1,873.00 90.30 1679243 749500 22,500.00 6,707.57 29.81%
OTHER PAYROLL EXPENSES 516.76 §57.00 40,24 990.97 222800 1,237.03 4,250.00 3.259.03 76.68%
CAR ALLOWANCE EXPENSE 000 000 100.00%
Tolal PAYROLL REL ATED EXPENSES 130,110.50 192,086.00 61,97550 535,063.00 786,953.00 25188991 2,207,229.00 1,672,165.91 75.76%
OPERATING EXPENSES
ACCOUNTING 32,158.80 9,200.00 34,083.80 83,953.00 49,869.20 45,000.00 10,916.20 24.26%
LEGAL 5,$46.25 4,834.00 26,698.40 19.336.00 58,000.00 31,301.60 53.97%
LEGAL - LABOR NEGOTIATIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,400.00 12,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 716.25 5,667.00 4,950.75 6,341.25 23,167.00 16,825.75 68,500.00 62,158.75 90.74%
EROSION AND DRAINAGE 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 100.00%
ROAD MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 3,523.50 2,00000 3,649.18 32500.00 28,850.82 30,000.00 26,350.82 87.84%
SNOW REMOVAL - PLOWING 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 775,000.00 775,000.00 100.00%
SNOW REMOVAL - SANDING 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 100.00%
SNOW REMOVAL ANTIDE ICING 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 6,600.00 6,600.00 100.00%
DCLTSAPRO-RATAM& O 205922.75 205,923.00 025 411,845.50 411,846.00 0.50 725,853.00 313,807.50 43.24%
DCLTSA ASSESSMENTS 122,008.50 122,509.00 500.50 244,017.00 245017.00 1.000.00 486,029.00 242,012.00 48.79%
BAD DEBTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.00 0.00 49,796.00 49,796.00 100.00%
BANK CHARGES 8,188.44 8,289.00 100.56 3271047 33,155.00 44483 92,898.00 60,187.83 64.79%
BUILDING REPAIRS AND MAINT. 1968.17 7,223.00 5,254.83 13,284.05 28,894.00 16,599.95 83,599.00 70,304.95 84.10%
COMPUTER EXPENSE 1246867 9,978.00 A4 45,054.24 45,007.00 135,639.00 90,584.76 66.78%

Dates 12/10/2024 11:37:38 AM Page: 2



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Combined All Funds
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

DRAFT

Detc: 12/10/2024 11:37:38 AM

CumentPeriod  CurentPeriod  CurentPerod | CutentYear oo VIDBudget | ooy, TolalBudget m;m'
Actual Budpet Budget Variance Actual Variance Varignce
Remaining
DUES & SUBSCRIFTIONS o0 %0 5600 5649 1500700 234051 TR0 o751 A
EQUIP. SUPPLIESMAINT/REPAIRS 8,467.74 16,3880 99205 1625263 8042600 nAny 2326900 186.445.37 012%
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 60794 60500 479681 506300 266,19 144000 954318 66.55%
FIELD SUPPLIES, TOOLS & SIGNS 000 205000 205000 000 3020000 30,20000 3083000 3063000 100.00%
SECURITY EXPENSE 251182 2755.00 2318 749175 750000 30825 18,7100 1097925 6042%
INSURANCE AND BONDS 14753 2969.00 149367 12782011 133,561.00 574089 141,406.00 1358589 051%
SAFETY EQUIPMENT 000 12500 12500 000 75000 750,00 110000 110000 100.00%
INVENTORY PARTS 557.08 000 26349 800000 5,365.04 1550000 12,865.04 83.00%
METER REPAR & MAINT 0.0 000 090 000 15,00000 15,000.00 3000000 30,00000 100.00%
LEN FEES 000 000 %00 600 3000 344,00 25000 20400 o7.60%
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURES 636,81 285700 202049 870350 11,429.00 272550 228800 2558450 74.62%
OFFICE JANITORIAL 280000 186300 11,70000 744700 234700 10647.00 764%
OFFICE AND FACILITIES RENT 000 00 000 000 000 000 43,32800 4332800 100.00%
OFFICE SUPPLIES 204182 193200 11,68760 752800 5459100 1290340, 78.59%
PERMITS ANDFEES 50239 160000 100761 333156 486000 152844 99110 6.570.44 66.39%
POSTAGE 200000 000 4,00000 375000 15,000.00 11,000.00 3%
PUBLICATION CHARGES om0 000 000 000 214800 244800 730000 7.30000 10000%
SHOP SUPPLIES/SMALL TOOLS 53260 58300 5040 M 233300 156156 700000 622856 88.98%
TELEPHONE 140543 130400 583562 557600 1674000 10,904.38 65.14%
TRAINING AND SEMINARS 3,604.75 2.968.00 4,156.50 1187100 7.714.50 35,620.00 31.463.50 88.33%
TRAVEL 122979 1,756.00 528.21 122079 702900 579921 2110000 1987021 04.17%
BUSINESSMEALS 0.0 0% 000 000 25000 25000 000 000 0.00%
TRUSTEE FEES 375000 375000 000 15,000.00 1500000 000 4500000 3000000 66.67%
UTAITES - GAS & ELECTRIC 17,602.54 1944300 184046 98,589.41 10787500 026550 30529900 206.703.58 771%
VEHCLE EXP FUELIOILISUPP 236193 1142600 97407 292085 4570500 1878415 12835800 101437.15 79.03%
VEH EXP REM 75131 627200 551469 280867 25,069.00 2248033 5595900 5335033 o5.3%
WATER MONITORING/SAMPLING 182600 1465.00 623070 5,863.00 1735900 111930 84.05%
WATER/SEWER SHED MANAGMENT 0.00 000 000 15,621.00 1850000 287000 1550000
WATER DIST SYSTEMEXPENSE 67925 522500 454575 3563.46 2090000 17,31654 6652000 62.936.54 9461%
WATER TREATMENT SYSTEMEXP 144647 687100 542453 200048 2748000 420352 7291000 1981952 68.33%
AMORTZATION OF BONDS 77048 7000 308196 308000 1043400 735204 70.46%
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 200 11831600 11831600 000 473.266.00 3600 130105100 L1057 100.00%|
Tota) OPERATING EXPENSES 450438.82 636,650.00 18621548 129321388 209611500 aagoii2|  553ATI0  AZTesnR 77.34%
Piges 3



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Combined All Funds
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

ComentPeriod  CurtentPeriod  CumentPeriod | CumentYear  y7oo o YDBudget | oo Totl Budget P";f”:g::’h'
Actual Budget Budget Variance Actual Variance 9 Variance
Remaining
OTHER EXPENSES
INTEREST EXPENSE 200373 22,718.00 714.27 88,014.92 90,870.00 2,855.08 306,497.00 21848208 71.28%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 180,648.30 2,013.201.00 1,832552.70 1.399,689.82 10,768,705.00 9.369,015.18 11.058,000.00 9.658.310.18 87.34%
Total OTHER EXPENSES 20265203 2,035919.00 1,833.266.97 148770474 1085957500 937187025 |  11,364.497.00 987679226 86.91%
Total EXPENDITURES 8320135 286465900  208145765|  327SSEITI 1G4S0 1D4SBS610| 190289000 158260120 82.85%
EXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 2857855 15291855 142086563 890003863 1059131863

Date: 12/1072024 11:37:38 AM

Page: 4



<>

OCTOBER 2024

STATEMENT OF REVENUE
AND EXPENDITURES







KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures D R AF T
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

Percent Total
Current Perlod Cument Period Current Period | Current Year YTD Budget | Total Budget - Total Budget
GENERAL FUND (10) Actusal Budget  BudgetVariance|  Actual 10 oudget Verince Revis?; e R;'::f;;g il
REVENUES
TAXES
ADVALOREM TAXES 106514.14 93,890.00 12,624.14 357,010.33 369,302.00 709,165.00
PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 18.76 0.00 18.76 61.41 0.00 6141 4,104.00
ADVALCREMMAKE-UP 93,11540 82,102.00 11,013.40 312,100.93 322935.00 561529.00
STATE TAX DISTRIBUTION 66.400.67 6640000 067 26560268  265600.00 268 790,070,00
Total TAXES 266,048.97 24239200 23,656.97 934,775.35 957,837.00 2,064,868.00
MISCELLANEOUS
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 30,656.14 25,960.00 13696.14 154,586.20 103,840.00 50,746.20 116,586.00 37,998.20 32.59%|A%ocation changed 6/1/24
based on cash position.
OTHER REVENUE 4500 8400 4500 33400 1,000.00 ;
Total MISCELLANEOUS 39,701.14 2604400 13657.14 15463120 10417400 £0,457.20 117.563.00 3704320 31.50%)
Total REVENUES 305,750.11 268436.00 731411 108940655 1,062,011.00 27,39555 | 2,182456.00
EXPENDITURES
PAYROLL RELATED EXPENSES
PAYROLL - MANAGER 417922 744000 3.260.78 16,125.17 28,760.00 1363483 77,2200 61,096.83 79.12% |Unfilled positions.
PAYROLL - MAINTENANGE 4,764.05 9,657.00 489295 29,518.50 38,628,00 9,109.50 57,158.00 2753950 48.36%
PAYROLL. - OFFICE 2,062.32 2,307.00 24468 822663 9,228.00 1,001.37 26,349.00 18,122.37 68.78%
EMPLOY EE BENEFITS - FICAAMEDIC 164.12 314.00 149.88 1491.87 1,256.00 2,392.00 90013 37.63%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - MED. INS 4,386.84 5,268.00 881.16 1743261 22,110.00 4677.38 62,528.00 45,095.3% 72.42%
EMPLOYEE BENEF(TS - PERS 2467.30 3,743.00 1,275.70 9577.17 14,871.00 539383 38,641.00 2906383 75.22%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - SIS 4176 166.00 12424 416.52 608.00 19148 1,975.00 1.558.48 78.91%
UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 000 250.00 250.00 0.00 998.00 998.00 0.60 0.00 0.00%
UNIFORMS 146.87 0.00 638.01 702.00 63.99 1,404.00 765.99 54.56%
OPEB EXPENSE 28859 920.00 631.41 1,154.36 3,680.00 2525.64 15,190.00 14,035.64 92.40%
ACCRUED LEAVE EXPENSE 672.27 281.00 399064 1.164.00 3,500.00
OTHER FAYROLL EXPENSES 18.28 166.00 147.72 64.06 664.00 599.94 550.00 48594 88.35%
CAR ALLOWANCE EXPENSE 0.00 5600} 0.00 100.80%
Total PAYROLL RELATED EXPENSES 19,191.62 30,456.00 11,2643 8863554 12350200 3486646 | 28610000 19747346 69.02%
OPERATING EXPENSES
ACCOUNTING 1,607 94 1,000.00 1,704.18 2.210.00 505.84 2,250.00 545.81 24.28%
LEGAL 0.00 24200 24200 100.76 968,00 867.24 2.900.00 2,799.24 96.53%

Date: 12/10:2024 11:39:22 AM



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

DRAFT

. Percent Total
CurrentPeriod Cument Period Current Period | Current Year YTD Budget | Total Budget - Total Budget

GENERAL FUND (10) Actual Budget BudgetVariance| Actwal 10 o9 yitance | Revised  Variance R:::ﬁ:;g HOTES
LEGAL - LABOR NEGOTIATIONS %0 500 500 G0 1FE® 151200 %0 000 500%
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 864 201700 28305 13782 16700 10M918| 3500000 3368218 96.23%
EROSION AND DRAINAGE o 50000 50000 000 1700000  170000| 2500000 2500000 10000%
ROAD MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 352350 200000 364018 3250000  8E5082| 3000000 2635082 87.64%
BUILDING REPAIRS AND MAINT. %8 41600 w941 B2 166600 13172|  100400 154972 8139%)
COMPUTER EXPENSE 8137 614.00 53263 811.59 267200 186041 555100 4,73941 85.38%
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 000 31.00 3100 827 5687.00 57873 674.00 665,73 98.77%
EQUIP. SUPPLIES/MAINT /JREPAIRS 0.00 375.00 375.00 39.85 1500.00 1,460.15 4,500.00 4,460.15 99.11%
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2083 26.00 517 83.25 105.00 Q.75 31400 23075 73.49%
FIELD SUPPLIES, TOOLS & SIGNS 000 205000 205000 000 2020000 220000 2063000 2063000 100.00%
SECURITY EXPENSE 684 000 3.5 4200 595 4200 595 10.17%
INSURANCE AND BONDS 000 0.00 000 4430.82 4,783.00 35218 8,151.00 3,720.18 45.64%
SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 500.00 500,00 500.00 500.00 100.00%
MSCELLANEQUS EXPENDITURES 1458 593.00 57842 5,162.55 2,369.00 7.057.00 1,894 45 26.84%
OFFICE JANITORIAL 100.00 65.00 425.00 25800 773.00 348.00 4502%
OFFICE AND FACILITIES RENT 0.00 000 000 000 000 000 216600 21600 100.00%)
OFFICE SUPPLIES 5907 127.00 67.93 48477 508.00 23.23 3,135.00 2,650.23 84.54%
PERMTS AND FEES 000 100.00 10000 480 167.00 11890 67.00 1890 2821%
PUBLICATION CHARGES 000 000 000 000 15000 15000 26500 265.00 100.00%
TELEPHONE 1207 1530 0 7108 5200 162,00 %092 56.12%
TRAINING AND SEMINARS 7424 39400 31976 3! ASEO0  IATIET|  AT600 462687 97.94%
TRAVEL 8449 188.00 103.51 8449 749.00 664.51 2,250.00 2,165.51 96.24%)
TRUSTEE FEES 187.50 187.00 750.00 750.00 0.00 2,250.00 1,500.00 66.67%
UTILITES -GAS & ELECTRIC 26.23 38.00 "7 83.27 122.00 3873 1,014.00 930.73 91.79%
VEHICLE EXP FUEL/QIL/SUPP 2351 1,193.00 957.29 7.67249 4771.00 13,435.00 5,763.51 42.90%¢
VEH EXP REM ERE 180400 Frrid 8 AMBM0 38003 L4200 9631 95.08%)
Total OPERATING EXPENSES 62433 1407300 783867 A9M 1350100 8559799 | 18483800 15692499 8490%

OTHER EXPENSES
CAPITALOUTLAY 2936236 5034.00 328,31 5207450 1BAB27400 179529946 | 198476000 193178546 73%
Total OTHER EXPENSES 2% S0Mm SRO745 1MOZA00 119520045 | 190476000 193TESdS o7 3%
Total EXPENDITURES $478831 49,563.00 16952309 200527700 191575391 | 24550700 228648391 340%
EXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 250,961.80 218,873.00 32,088.50 91958346 1,943,149.46 1,193,134.46

Deee: 12102024 11:39:22 AM




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

DRAFT

Percent Total
Curent Period Cument Period Current Perlod | Cument Year YTD Budget | Total Budget - Total Budget
WATER FUND (20) Actual Budget  BudgetVariance|  Actual 10 Cudget Varian:z Revieed | Varonco_Dudget HOTES
Remaining
REVENUES
MISCELLANEOUS
Still waiting on Pay
Applications from Aspen
319 NON POINT SOURCE EPA GRANT 10,233.75 §75,000.00 813,891.74  2,350,000.00 0.00 813,891.74 0.00%[Developers for
Septemben/October.
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 19,70245 28.767.00 93,062.10 115,068.00 183,210.00 Allocation changed 6/124
based on cash position.
PLAN REVIEW FEE 000 0.00 0.00 25000 750.00 1,250.00
OTHER REVENUE 4500 21200 8.526.38 §448.00 338 25.800.00 AT
Total MISCELLANEOUS 30,381.20 605,879.00 915,730.22  2A74,266.00 210,260.00 705,470.22 335.52%
USER FEES
USER FEES - RESIDENTIAL 306,077.55 288,714.00 7,363.55 1,215430.18  1,194,856.00 2057418 | 3,523523.00
RESIDENTIAL TIER 1 CONSUMPTION 26,693.24 26,320.00 378.24 134,424.16 138,180.00 329,000.00
RESIDENTIAL TIER 2 CONSUMPTION 6,081.64 4,760.00 1,321.61 40,428.10 40,120.00 308.10 66,000.00
RESIDENTIAL TIER 3 CONSUMPTION 744999 3,600.00 3,849.99 46,746.67 47,520.00 69,900.00
RESIDENTIAL FIRE PROTECTION 8,699.56 736200 1,337.56 33,989.19 29,448.00 454118 83,277.00
USER FEES - COMMERCIAL 30,337.53 30,338.00 121,350.12 121,352.00 364,584.00
COMMERCIAL FIRE PROTECTION 7.844.78 7,845.00 31,379.12 31,378.00 142 84,137.00
COMMERCIAL CONSUMPTION 6,867.25 6,600.00 267.25 45,807.92 39,600.00 6207.92 86.987.00
PENALTIES ON USER FEES 6,742.61 1,488.00 5.253.61 20,461.62 5,955.00 14,506.62 47,256.00
SERVICE CHARGES 77500 1,200.00 3,025.00 4,800.00 14.400.00
RETURN CHECK FEES 60.00 40.00 20.00 140.00 160.00 480.00
CONNECTION FEES 35,700.00 86,700.00 25,000.00
TRANSFER FEE REVENUE 723.00 348.00 375.00 3,195.00 1,392.00 1,803.00 3,285.00
SERVLINE ADMIN REVENUE 156,15 155.00 115 62370 620.00 370 1,838.00
SERVLINE LOSS INSURANCE 1.242.13 1,226.00 16.13 4,952.98 4,902.00 5098 15,801.00
SERVLINE LINE INSURANCE 2320 238.00 94289 95200 285100
Total USER FEES 40048860 42593500 170220665 1,747.935.00 19| 4FE231900 (2070572235
Total REVENUES 439,869.80 1,031,814.00 2,618,126.87  4,222,201.00 4,942 579.00
EXPENDITURES
PAYROLL RELATED EXPENSES
PAYROLL - MANAGER 13673.62 22,959.00 9,285,38 51,852.08 91,831.00 39.978.92 243,268.00 191,415.92 78.69% |Unfiled positions.
Page, 3

e 1116 /T Trn-as A




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

Current Period Current Period Current Period | Current Year YD Budget | Total Budget - Total Budget ' ereor 106!

WATER FUND (20) Actual Budget  Budget Variance Actual YTD Budget Vtarlant:?ze‘t Revlseg Variancg Rzla’ignet ing NOTES
PAYROLL - MAINTENANCE 27.666.71 39,780.00 12113.29 106,675.73 159,121.00 52,445.27 457,526.00 350,850.27 76.68%)|Unfiled positions.
PAYROLL - OFFICE 6,499.52 6,153.00 65348 21937.68 24,612.00 2674.32 70,262.00 48,324.32 68.78%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - FICAMEDIC 73784 1,065.00 327.16 2,852.80 4,257.00 1404.20 11,907.00 9,054.20 76.04%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - MED. INS 14,692.56 19,34%.00 4,656.44 60,953.51 £86,686.00 25,73249 238,732.00 177.778.49 T44T%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS 11,50047 16,453.00 495253 44531.28 65,813.00 21,281.72 186,649.00 142,117.72 76.14%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS -SIIS 11344 417.00 30356 320.54 1,528.00 1,207.46 8,812.00 849146 96.36%
UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 8.00 666.00 666.00 0.00 2,664.00 2,664.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
UNIFORMS 382.37 0.00 2,997.83 3481.00 483.17 6,962.00 3,964.17 56.94%
OPEBEXPENSE 28282 3,380.00 560.78 11,312.88 13,556.00 2,243.42 138,608.00 127,295.12 91.84%
ACCRUED LEAVE EXPENSE 1.083.00 113258 74083 4336.00 3,595.17 13,000.00 12,259.17 94.30%
OTHER PAYROLL EXPENSES 486.30 266.00 882.04 1.064,00 181,96 3,200.00 231796 72.44%
CAR ALLOWANCE EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 10000%
Total PAYROLL RELATED EXPENSES 7753147 111,247.00 3371553 305,05720 457,615.00 152,557 80 137492600  1,069,868.80 T781%
OPERATING EXPENSES
ACCOUNTING 19,295.28 1,200.00 20450.28 66,355.00 45904.72 27,000.00 6,549.72 24.26%
LEGAL 5,146.25 2,900.00 25892.31 11,600.00 34,800.00 8907 69 25.60%|Fire hydranl clearing.
LEGAL - LABOR NEGOTIATIONS .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7440.00 7.440.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%;
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 409.50 1.896.00 1.486.50 279250 7,584.00 479150 22,750.00 19.957.50 87.73%
BAD DEBTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33,383.00 33,383.00 100.00%
BANK CHARGES 4,257.99 4403.00 145.01 17,009.29 17,612.00 §02.71 49,318.00 32308.71 65.51%
BUILDING REPAIRS AND MAINT, 560.33 2,500.00 1.839.67 451738 10,000.00 548262 30,000.00 2548262 84.94%
COMPUTER EXPENSE 7.57842 5,000.00 31,769.85 31,261.00 88,173.00 56,409.15 63.97%|Scada system backup parts.
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.29 7,709.00 7,108.711 9,038.00 843771 93.36%
EQUIP. SUPPLIES/MAINT /REPAIRS 17.99 284.00 266.01 6,625.94 7.76000 1,134.06 14,750.00 8,124.06 8508%
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 424 84 46200 37.16 2934.28 3,127.00 192.72 9,146.00 6,211.72 67.92%
SECURITY EXPENSE 148526 1,800.00 31474 4,081.26 4,350.00 268.74 9,531.00 5,449.74 57.18%
INSURANCE AND BONDS 147533 2,968.00 1.493.67 88,766.43 91,407.00 2,640.57 99,908.00 1114157 11.15%
SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0.00 100.00 100,00 0.00 200.00 200.00 500.00 500.00 100.00%,
INVENTORY PARTS 557.08 0.00 263496 8,000.00 5,365.04 15,000.00 12,365.04 82.43%,
METER REPAIR & MAINT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 100.00%
LIEN FEES 0.00 80.00 90.00 6.00 350.00 344.00 250.00 244,00 97.60%
MISCELLANEQUS EXPENDITURES 17490 833.00 658.10 792.59 3,336.00 254341 10,000.00 9,207.41 92.07%

Date: 12/10/2024 §1:39:22 AM




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

DRAFT

Percent Total
Cuarent Period Cument Period Curment Period | Current Year YTD Budget | Total Budget - Total Budget
WATER FUND (20) Actual Budget BudgetVariance| Actwal ' U0  varance Revsed  Varlance R:"':’I‘:::‘g HONES
OFFICE JANITORIAL 1,200.00 773.00 5,100.00 3,080.00 9,274.00 4,174.00 4501%)
QOFFICE AND FACILITIES RENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25998.00 25,998.00 100.00%
OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,364.26 1,047.00 6,831.17 4,188.00 31,890.00 25,058.83 78.58%
PERMITS AND FEES 59239 900,00 307.61 2,946.76 362000 673.24 8,771.00 5.824.24 66.40%
POSTAGE 1,040.00 0.00 2,080.00 1,950.00 7,950.00 5,870.00 73.84%
PUBLICATION CHARGES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,180.00 1,18000 3,180.00 3,180.00 100.00%
SHOP SUPPLIES/SMALL TOOLS 53260 583.00 50.40 ma 2,333.00 1561.56 7,000.00 6,228.56 88.98%
TELEPHONE 1,249.16 1,232.00 5178.42 492800 14,784.00 9,605.58 64.97%
TRAINING AND SEMINARS 3,279.35 1914.00 3556.40 7,656.00 409960 22,968.00 19,411.60 84.52%
TRAVEL 92034 1,117.00 196.66 920.34 4,468.00 3,547 66 13.404.00 12,483.66 93.13%|
BUSINESS MEALS 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 25000 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
TRUSTEE FEES 2,250.00 2,250.00 0.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 0.00 27,000.00 18,000.00 66.67%
UTILTES - GAS 8 ELECTRIC 15,242.52 16,710.00 1,467.48 88,765.48 94,689.00 592352 255,70200 166,936.52 65.29%
VEHICLE EXP FUELIORJSUPP 1,881.16 8,874.00 £,992.84 17,5814 35,498.00 17.959.86 99,486.00 81,947.86 82.37%
VEH EXP R&M 605.85 4,326.00 3,720.15 1,26740 17.304.00 16,036.60 36,467.00 35,199.60 96.52%
WATER MONITORING/SAMPLING 1,826.00 1,465.00 6,239.70 5,863.00 17,353.00 11,119.30 64.05%
WATER/SEWER SHED MANAGMENT 0.00 0.00 000 15,621.00 18,500.00 2,873.00 15,500.00
WATER DIST SYSTEM EXPENSE 679.25 5,22500 4545.75 358346 20,900.00 17,31654 66,520.00 62,936.54 HMB1%
WATER TREATMENT SYSTEM EXP 144647 6,871.00 542453 23,08048 27,484.00 439352 72910.00 49,819.52 68.33%
AMORTIZATION OF BONDS 77049 770.00 3,08196 3,080.00 1(],434.00 735204 70.46%
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 0.00 113,135.00 113,135.00 .00 452,54000 45254000 | 133503400 133503400 100.00% (Waiting on FY 2024 Audit fo
be completed.
Total OPERATING EXPENSES 76,263.01 191,629.00 11536599 40444551  1,01161200 607,166.49 | 2,565,184.00  2,160,738.49 84.23%
OTHER EXPENSES
INTEREST EXPENSE 200373 22,718.00 714.27 88,014.92 90,870.00 2,855.08 306,497.00 218,482.08 71.28%
St waifing on Pay
Applicatiens from Aspen
CAPITAL OUTLAY 14120523 1,950,00000 1.808.704.77 131423052 865000000 733576948 | 7.98534000 6671,10948 83.54% [Developers for
September/October.
Tota) OTHER EXPENSES 16329896  1,972718.00 1,800,419.04 140224544 874087000 733862456 | 829183700 6889.591.% 83.09%
Total EXPENDITURES NIOBA 220558400 1.958.500.56 211574815 1021009700 809334895 | 1223184700 1012019885 82.74%
FXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 122,776.36 1.366,556.36 506,378.72 6,404,274.72 7,795,746.72
Poge §

Date: 12/102024 11:39:22 AM




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

Percent Total
Current Period Cumvent Pericd Cument Period | Current Year YTO Budget | Total Budget - Total Budgst
SEWER FUND (30) Actual Budget BudgetVarance|  Actwal VIO oudget Vaancs | Revieed  Variancs N:m“:ﬁ‘:g NOVES
REVENUES
MISCELLANEOUS
INTEREST ON NVESTMENTS 1550385 14,734.00 769.85 6685558  58,937.00 7918.58 87,441.00 [Alocation changed 6/1124
based on cash position.
PLAN REVIEW FEE 0.00 15000 000 600.00 1,250.00
OTHER REVENUE 000 41.00 5000 164.00 150.00
Total MISCELLANEOUS 15,503.85 14,925.00 578.85 6600558  59,701.00 7,20456 88,841.00
USER FEES
USER FEES - RESIDENTIAL 146,130.15 145,987.00 15215 58459110  583,946.00 64510 | 1753291.00
RESIDENTIAL TIER 1 CONSUMPTION 178128 1,056.00 725.28 983874 11,086.00 32,400.00
USER FEES - COMMERCIAL 3503.20 368400 14,012.80 14,736.00 42,401.00
COMMERCIAL CONSUMPTION 195553 340200 965670  12,587.00 34,020.00
PENALTIES ON USER FEES 2,847.37 973.00 1674.37 8,757.00 3,892.00 4,865.00 20,160.00
CONNECTION FEES 000 72000 000 2,860.00 6,000.00
TRANSFER FEE REVENUE 17850 17800 050 765.00 712.00 53,00 157500
Total USER FEES 156,405.03 156,000.00 40503 627.620.3¢  629841.00 1,889,847,.00
Total REVENUES 171,908.88 170,925.00 993.68 69452692  689,542.00 498492 | 1,978,688.00
EXPENDITURES
PAYROLL RELATED EXPENSES
PAYROLL - MANAGER 691330 13,009.00 6,185.70 2719235 6230600  2520365| 13310400 10591165 79.57%| Unfilled Positions
PAYROLL - OFFICE 412464 461500 43036 16.453.25 18,460.00 2,006.75 5269500 3624175 68.78%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - FICAMEDIC 189.87 28700 97.13 752.12 1,148.00 395.88 3,056.00 2.303.88 75.30%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - MED. INS 3,169.68 447200 1,302.32 15,070.24 20,584.00 5,513.76 5721000 4213976 7366%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS 3,040.98 427300 1,23202 1200945 17.092.00 508255 46,179.00 34,16955 7359%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - SIS 155 5200 50.45 14.98 190.00 175.02 1,049.00 1,034.02 98.57%
UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 0.00 493,00 499.00 0.00 1,896.00 1,99.00 000 0.00 0.00%
UNIFORMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.90 58.00 38.10 117.00 97.10 82.99%
OPEBEXPENSE 500.23 1,457.00 956.77 200092 582800 3827.08 2488400 2268308 9189%
ACCRUED LEAVE EXPENSE 594.85 333.00 7.184.19 1,332.00 4,000.00
OTHER PAYROLLEXPENSES 1216 4100 2884 12.13 164.00 151.87 20000 187.87 93.84%
CAR ALLOWANCE EXPENSE 000 000 100.00%
Total PAYROLL RELATED EXPENSES 1854726 29,086.00 10,538.74 8070953  199,08000 3837047 |  321,79400  201,08447 74.92%
Date: 12/10:2024 11:39:22 AM Pages 6




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

DRAFT

Percent Total
Current Period Current Pesiod Current Period | Current Year YTD Budget | Total Budget - Total Budget
SEWER FUND (30) Actual Budget  BudgetVariance| Actual VO OU%9! voriance | Revised  Variance R:::ﬁ;g .
OPERATING EXPENSES

ACCOUNTING 9,647.64 6,000.00 10,225.14 13,178.00 295286 13,500.00 3,274.86 24.26%

LEGAL 0.00 1,450.00 1,450.00 604.57 5,800.00 5,195.43 17,400.00 16,79543 96.53%

LEGAL - LABOR NEGOTIATIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,108.00 210800 0.00 0.00 0.00%!

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 194.62 854.00 659.38 1,667.11 341600 1,748.8% 10,250.00 8,582.89 83.74%

DCLTSA PRO-RATAM &0 20592275 205,923.00 0.25 411,845.50 411,846.00 0.50 725,653.00 313,807.50 43.24%

DCLTSA ASSESSMENTS 122,008.50 122,509.00 50050 244,017.00 245,017.00 1,000,00 486,020.00 24201200 49.79%

BADDEBTS 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 13,202.00 13,202.00 100.00%

BANK CHARGES 2,784.07 2.894.00 109.93 1112146 1157500 45354 32,453.00 2133154 65.73%

BUILDING REPAIRS AND MAINT. 221.37 2618.00 2,39%.63 212568 10,472.00 8.346.32 31,419.00 29,293.32 93.23%

COMPUTER EXPENSE 3,408.62 4000.00 591.38 956349 9,060.00 34,269.00 24,705.51 72.09%

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 49.66 4,116.00 4,066.34 4,346.00 4,29.34 08.86%

EQUIP. SUPPLIES/MAINTJREPAIRS 8,449.75 17,729.00 927925 39,576.02 70,916.00 31,339.98 212,748.00 173,171.98 81.40%

EQUIPMENT RENTAL 124.94 80.00 130099 1,431.00 130.01 3,847.00 2.546.01 66.18%

SECURITY EXPENSE 101288 955.00 3,038.39 3,090.00 51.61 8,580.00 5,541.61 64.59%

INSURANCE AND BONDS 0.00 000 .00 26,584.9% 28,694.00 2,109.09 25,676.00 {3.54)%

INVENTORY PARTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 500.00 500,00 100.00%

MISCELLANEQUS EXPENDITURES 87.44 383.00 295.56 375,32 1,532.00 1,156.68 4,600.00 4,22468 91.84%

OFFICE JANITORIAL 600.00 386.00 2,550.00 1,544,00 463700 2,087.00 45.01%

OFFICE AND FACILITIES RENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,998.00 12,998.00 100.00%

OFFICE SUPPLIES 782.94 549.00 3580.94 2,196.00 16,242.00 12,661.06 77.95%

PERMITS AND FEES 0.00 0.00 0.00 288.60 40500 116.40 405.00 116.40 28.74%

POSTAGE 680.00 0.00 1.360.00 127500 5,250.00 3,890.00 74.10%

PUBLICATION CHARGES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 590.00 580.00 1,580.00 1,590.00 100.00%

TELEPHONE 130.33 136.00 567 52226 54400 2174 1,632.00 1,109.74 68.00%

TRAINING AND SEMINARS 292.42 489.00 19658 430.94 1,956.00 1,525.06 587400 5,443.06 92.66%

TRAVEL 167.81 288.00 120.19 167.81 1,152.00 984.19 346200 3,204.19 95.15%

TRUSTEE FEES 1,125.00 112500 0.00 4,50000 4,500.00 0.00 13,50000 49,000.00 66.67%

UTRJITES - GAS & ELECTRIC 1.302.55 1.800.00 49745 5,893.94 10,200.00 4,306.06 32271.00 26,377.06 81.74%

Watting on FY 2024 Auditfo

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 0.00 5.181.0¢ 518100 000 2072600 2072600 §6.023.00 $6.023.00 100.00% |be completed.

Total OPERATING EXPENSES 358,943.63 375,349.00 16,405.37 761,389.73 867,338.00 8594927 14,778,356.00 996,966.27 56.06%
Page: 7

Date: L2/10204 11:3:22 AM




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

Percent Total
SEWERFUND(30) |PREy S it | G o ugge T Ou Tt 1RO o | rores
OTHER EXPENSES
CAPITAL OUTLAY 8,563.47 36,167.00 27,603.53 28,5415 20768100  179,13941 967,150.00  938,608.41 97.05%|
Total OTHER EXPENSES 8.563.47 36.167.00 27,603.53 2854159 20768100  179.139.41 96715000  938,608.41 97.05%
Total EXPENDITURES 386034.36 44060200 U764 89064085 118410000 0349045 IO6T30000 ZIZGERS 10.96%
EXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 55,531.52 30844407 | ( z 892,498.07

Date: 12/10/2024 11:39:22 AM Page: 8



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

DRAFT

Date: 12/10/2024 11:39:22 AM

SNOW REMOVAL SPECIAL Current Period Current Period CurrentPeriod | Cument Year oy dget YTD Budget |Total Budget- Total Budget Pe';::;:m NOTES
REVENUE (60) Actual Budget  BudgetVariance Actual Varlance Revised Variance Remaining
REVENUES
MISCELLANEOUS
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 2,22667 70200 1,524.67 7A17.38 2.808.00 430938 20,147.00 Alocation changed 6/1/24
OTHER REVENUE 4500 400 4100 4500 1600 29.00 26.00 1900 13.08%
Total MISCELLANEOUS 2267 706.00 1,565.67 7,162.38 2,824.00 4,338.38 29,173.00 5
USER FEES
USER FEES - RESIDENTIAL 5745218 57477.00 22995050  229.908.00 4250 | 62080100
USER FEES - COMMERCIAL 5,202.00 529200 0.00 2116800 21,168.00 0.00 5799600
PENALTIES ON USER FEES 958.14 401.00 557.14 308243 1,602.00 1,46043 - 756000 ,
TRANSFER FEE REVENUE 7350 7300 050 315.00 20400 2100 54000
Total USER FEES 8377582 §3.243.00 51252 25451593 25297200 184393 | 69599700  (44ld
Total REVENUES 66,047.49 63,849.00 209849 6167831  255796.00 588231 | 72517000
[EXPENDITURES
PAYROLL RELATED EXPENSES
PAYROLL - MANAGER 309536 6,104.00 3,008.64 1233165 2441600 1208435 6121900  48887.35 70.86%
PAYROLL - MAINTENANCE 340289 431500 91211 13,106.07 17,268.00 415193 4082800 2772183 67.90%
PAYROLL - OFFICE 2,062.32 2307.00 24468 822660 9228.00 1,00140 26,349.00 18,12240 66.78%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - FICAMEDIC 12874 29.00 8026 506.55 836.00 32945 1.923.00 1,416.45 73.66%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - MED. INS 34584 3,950.00 604.16 13,653.36 16,957.00 3,303.64 4851300 3485964 71.86%
EMPLOYEE BENEFTTS - PERS 1.874.14 2.896.00 1,021.86 741285 11,584.00 4,471.15 2059700 2218415 74.95%
EMPLOYEE BENEFTS - SIS 2990 67.00 310 156.33 245,00 88.67 1,402.00 1,24667 88.65%
UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 998.00 963.00 000 0.00 0.00%
UNIFORMS 104.90 0.00 43438 433.00 362 877.00 44262 50.47%
OPEB EXPENSE 23088 949.00 71812 92352 3,796.00 2,87248 11,392.00 1046848 91.80%
ACCRUED LEAVE EXPENSE 565.16 166.00 387677 664.00 2,000.00
OTHER PAYROLL EXPENSES 0.02 84.00 8398 27 33600 30326 30000 26726 £9.09%
Total PAYROLL RELATED EXPENSES 14,840.15 21,297.00 6456.85 6056082 8675600 2609518 22440000  163739.18 T297%
OPERATING EXPENSES
ACCOUNTING 1607.94 1,000.00 1,704.19 2.210.00 505.81 2,250.00 545.81 24.26%
LEGAL 0.00 24200 24200 10076 968.00 867.24 2900.00 279924 96.53%
LEGAL - LABOR NEGOTIATIONS 0.00 000 000 000 1,240.00 1,240.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 2569 0.00 ) 56382 500.00 500.00 ) (127
Page: §




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

EXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES

SNOW REMOVAL SPECIAL | current Period Current Period CurrentPeriod | Current Year VTD Budget Y70 Budget  Total Bucget - Total Budget Pe“B:':g:;“" P
REVENUE (60) Actual Budget  Budget Variance Actual Variance Revised Variance Remaining
SNOW REWOVAL -PLONING 000 4000000 70,0000 000 40,00000  4000000| 77500000 7750000 10000%
SNOW REMOVAL - SANDING 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 100.00%
SNOW REMOVAL ANTIDE ICING 000 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 660000 660000 10000%
BAD DEBTS 0.0 040 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 321100 321100 100.00%
BANK CHARGES 1,146.38 $92.00 4,579.42 3968.00 11,127.00 6,547.58 58.84%
BUEDING REPAIRS AND MAINT. 41470 439.00 397.30 359.09 1,756.00 1396.91 5,276.00 491691 93.19%
COMPUTER EXPENSE 140026 3400 20031 20100 764000 473069 61.92%
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0.00 500 2500 827 595.00 56673 68500 67673 98.79%
EQUIP. SUPPLIESMAINT IREPAIRS 0.00 0.00 000 10.82 25000 239.18 700.00 689.18 98.45%
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 208 2000 41329 335,00 83200 44871 50.33%
FIELD SUPPLIES, TOOLS & SIGNS 0.00 0.00 000 800 1000000 1000000 1000000 1000000 100.00%
SECURITY EXPENSE 6.84 0.00 36.05 18.00 18.00
INSURANCE AND BONDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 443082 4,782.00 351.18 4,27%.00
SAFETY EQUIPMENT 000 500 2500 000 50.00 50.00 100.00 10000 100.00%
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURES 1458 467.00 45242 6255 1,868.00 180545 5,600.00 5,537.45 98.88%
OFFICE JANITORIAL 100.00 6500 42500 259.00 773.00 34800 45.02%
OFFICE SUPPLIES 235.55 108.00 77450 436.00 2524.00 214950 7351%)
PERMITS AND FEES 0.00 §00.00 600.00 810 668,00 61990 668,00 $19.90 92.60%
POSTAGE 260,00 000 560,00 525,00 180000 124000 68.89%
PUBLICATION CHARGES 0.00 000 0.0 020 228,00 2800 226500 226500 100.00%
TELEPHONE 1297 12.00 0.03 6306 52,00 16200 98,14 60.58%
TRAINING AND SEMINARS 48.74 17100 12226 71.83 684.00 61217 2.052.00 1.980.17 96.50%
TRAVEL 51.15 165.00 107.85 57.15 660.00 602.85 1,984.00 1.926.85 97.12%
TRUSTEE FEES 187.50 188.00 050 750,00 750,00 0.00 2,250.00 1,500.00 66.67%
UTILITES - GAS & ELECTRIC 26.23 84.00 57.77 83.27 268.00 18473 1.012.00 92873 81.17%
VEHICLE EXP FUEL/OL/SUPP 235.06 1,358.00 112394 1,710.22 5,436.00 372578 15,436.00 13,725.78 88.92%
VEH EXPR&M 573 24200 866.27 #4340 3767.00 42360 2371.00 §.521.60 91.00%
Total OPERATING EXPENSES 552315 5227000 46,746.85 056572  B9287.00  6872128| 95458100 90528 97.85%
OTHER EXPENSES
CAPITAL QUTLAY 1427.24 22,000.00 2057276 394317 6275000 5880683 12075000 11680683 9B.73%
Total OTHER EXPENSES 142724 2200000 257276 394317 6275000  5880683( 12075000 11680683 %.13%
Total EXPENDITURES UINS  BHIN 0 QG| IR Z8IN00  1596%29| 1Z0TH0 121456129 45
44,256.95 75,87495 176,508.60 17,083.00 159,505.60 751,069.60

—rr

B




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

From 10/1/2024 Through 10/31/2024

DRAFT

298 KINGSBURY GRADE RENTAL | curentPeriod CurentPeriod  CarrentPeriod | ComentYear oo\ YTD Budget | TotalBudget- Total Budget P";:“’WL“" O
(80) Actual Budget Budget Variance Actual Variance Revised Variance Remaining
REVENUES
MISCELLANEOUS
RENTAL INCOME 8203582 £93000 126.38) 3290860 3572000 03,353.00 A 1
Total MISCELLANEQUS 820362 £93000 33 2NEE 3572000 10335300 M43
Total REVENUES 8.203.62 8.930.00 3200860 3572000 103,353.00
EXPENDITURES
OPERATING EXPENSES
BUILDING REPAIRS AND MAINT. 110738 1.250.00 19212 59762 500000 1500000 906238 6042%
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1650 17.00 050 65,00 65,00 0.00 201.00 13600 &7.66%|
INSURANCE AND BONDS 000 000 0.00 260713 389500 28787 3,392.00
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURES 54531 581,00 3569 231048 232400 1351 700100 472051 7.14%
OFFICE JANITORIAL 800,00 574,00 320000 229600 689000 369000 53.56%
OFFICE SUPPLIES 000 10000 162 2000 38378 05.04%
UTILITES - GAS & ELECTRIC 100501 811,00 aads 259600 1153655 2540%
Total OPERATING EXPENSES 347470 338300 188981 1637600 23140 0805
Total EXPENDITURES 147470 3310 188991 1637600 223409 0.80%
EXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 472892 530700 100878 19,34400 55,13900
Page: 11

Dete: 12/10/2024 1£:39:22 AM







KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #8

TITLE: APPROVAL OF LIST OF CLAIMS

For Discussion and Possible Action. Review and approve the monthly claims which
were paid by the district in November 2024

MEETING DATE: 17 December 2024

PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees review and approve the list of claims for November
from check number 64665 to 64765

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Each month the district is billed from vendors for a variety of goods and services which are

necessary and appropriate for the district operations and administration. In exercising fiduciary
duties, these are reviewed and approved monthly by the Board of Trustees.

INCLUDED:

e List of Claims for November 2024

Fund impacted by the above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






Check Number

64665

64666

64667

64668

64669

64670

64671

64671

64672

64673

64674

64675

64675

64676

64677

64677

64677

64677

64677

Check Date

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/16/2024 Through 12/13/2024

Payee

Transaction
Description

Check Amount

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/15%/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

Date: 12/13/24 11:38:38 AM

JODIE NELSON

SANDRA D. PARKS

CRAIG B. SCHORR

CYNTHIA M. TRIGG

NATALIE YANISH

AFLAC

AIRGAS USA, LILC

AIRGAS USA, LLC

ASCEND HEATING AND AIR LLC

BADGER METER, INC

BRIGHTLY SOFTWARE, INC

BURGARELLO ALARM

BURGARELLO ALARM

EMPIRE SOUTHWEST, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

Employee: NELSON; Pay
Date: 11/19/2024

Employee: PARKS; Pay
Date: 11/19/2024

Employee: SCHORR; Pay
Date: 11/19/2024

Employee: TRIGG; Pay
Date: 11/19/2024

Employee: YANISH; Pay
Date: 11/19/2024

ACCT. FA935 LIFE
INSURANCE CHURCHYARD,
EDWARDS, JOHNS, MOSS,

ACCT. 3255567
NITROGEN LIQ FG
265LTRS 350 PSI

ACCT. 3255567 RENT
LIQUID IND LG 190-300
LT NITRO 10/2024

298 KINGSBURY GRADE
1A SINK REPLACED
CORRCDED POP UP ROD &
c

BADGER METER END
POINTS QTY 100
REPLACEMENTS

ASSET ESSENTIAL
ENTERPRISE
IMPLEMENTATION &
CONSULTING

ACCT. 209120 399
KAHLE DR ALARM
MONITORING 12/24 -
2/28/25

ACCT. 209120 97 BEACH
CLUB ALARM MONITORING
12/24 - 2/28/25

ANNUAL GENERATOR
SERVICE AGREEMENT
8/2024 TO 1/31/25

ENGINEERING FY25
GENERAL SERVICES 9/29
TO 10/26/24

ENGINEERING SERVICES
2025 ROAD REHAM &
REPLACEMENT 10/26/24

ENGINEERING SERVICES
25-26 WATERLINE
REPLACE PROJECT

ENGINEERING SERVICES
FY24 WATERLINE IMPROV
PROJECT

ENGINEERING SERVICES
PONDEROSA MHP WATER
REPLACEMENT

692.

689.

739.

739.

739.

552.

500.

150.

11,500.

9,785.

180.

222.

7,233

513

10,958

25,298.

17,838

10,233.

62

12

12

12

12

61

91

.13

00

00

95

00

00

.50

.75

.75

75

.75

75

Page:

1



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/16/2024 Through 12/13/2024

Payee

Check Number Check Date

64678 11/19/2024
64679 11/19/2024
64680 11/19/2024
64680 11/19/2024
64681 11/19/2024
64681 11/19/2024
64681 11/19/2024
64681 '11/19/2024
64681 11/19/2024
64681 11/19/2024
64681 11/19/2024
64681 11/19/2024
64681 11/19/2024
64681 11/19/2024
64681 11/19/2024
64682 11/19/2024
64683 11/19/2024
64684 11/19/2024
64685 11/19/2024
64685 11/19/2024
64685 11/19/2024
64686 11/19/2024
64687 11/19/2024
64688 11/19/2024

Date: 12/13/24 11:38:38 AM

Transaction
Description

EDGEWOCD COMPANIES

FIRST ADVANTAGE CORPORATION

FLYERS ENERGY LLC

FLYERS ENERGY LLC

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS

INTEGRITY LOCKSMITH

BETH JURI

KELSIE FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVI

KINGSBURY AUTOMOTIVE & SUPPLY

KINGSBURY AUTOMOTIVE & SUPPLY

KINGSBURY AUTOMOTIVE & SUPPLY

KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FINANCE

LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC.

LUMOS AND ASSOCIATES INC

REFUND PERMIT 2023-17
180 LAKE PKWY
COMPLETED ALL
INSPECTION

ACCT. 946233 ESENARRO
DRUG TEST

FUEL DIESEL 38.2 GAL
REGULAR 193.7 GAL

FUEL REGULAR 30 GAL
DIESEL 42 GAL

775-150-0119-103174-5
EASY ST

775-150-0120-092376-5
DCLTSA

775-586-8471-100215-5
97 BEACH CLUB

775-588-1065-022924-5
160 PINERIDGE

775-588-2401-060791-5
PALISADES

775-588-2410-111700-5
EASY ST

775-588-2419-091195-5
PALISADES

775-588-2705-042476-5
TERRACE VIEW

775-588-4482-052798-5
MARKET

775-588-7495-061182-5
MARKET

775-588-8311-081082-5
GALAXY

TRUCK #0606 SERVICE
CALL OPEN TACOMA KEYS
LOCKED INSIDE

REFUND PERMIT 2022-10
165 COTTONWOOD MINUS
ONE FAILED INSPEC

FIRE EXTINGUISHER
ANNUAL MAINTENANCE
ALL STATIONS & 160
PINE

EQUIPMENT NAPA QUART
5W30 QTY 4

STATION 2 DELO 15W40
GAL

TRUCK 0610 7 BLADE
TRAILER PLUG &
MOUNTING BRACKET

ACCT. 3691777720
COPIER LEASE 11/30/24
ACCT. 71572887

INDUSTRIAL ACETYLENE
IND HIGH PRESSURE

ON-CALL GIS SUPPORT

Check Amount

5,000.00

56.79
1,022.94
312.63
50.76
50.76
174.44
328.91
41.46
98.47
98.47
328.76
52.54
43.05
58.08

149.00

3,118.00

1,262.00

25.16

25.99

29.98

398.60

202.50

Page:

2



Check Number Check Date

64689 11/19/2024
64689 11/19/2024
64689 11/19/2024
64689 11/19/2024
64689 11/19/2024
64690 11/19/2024
64691 11/19/2024
64692 11/19/2024
64693 11/19/2024
64694 11/19/2024
64694 11/19/2024
64695 11/19/2024
64695 11/19/2024
64696 11/19/2024
64697 11/19/2024
64697 11/15/2024
64697 11/19/2024
64697 11/19/2024
64697 11/19/2024
64698 11/19/2024
64699 11/19/2024
64699 11/19/2024
64699 11/19/2024

Date: 12/13/24 11:38:38 AM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/16/2024 Through 12/13/2024

Payee

SOUTH LAKE TAHOE ACE HARDWARE
SOUTH LAKE TAHOE ACE HARDWARE

SOUTH LAKE TAHOE ACE HARDWARE

SOUTH LAKE TAHOE ACE HARDWARE

SQUTH LAKE TAHOE ACE HARDWARE

MINDEN LAWYERS, LLC

NAPA AUTO PARTS

OSHINSKI & FOSBERG, LTD.

PACIFIC SHREDDING/PACIFIC STOR

QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC.

QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC.

RESOURCE CONCEPTS

RESOURCE CONCEPTS

ROUND HILL GENERAL IMPR DIST

SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
$GS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES

SHRED-IT

SQUTH TAHOE REFUSE

SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE

SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE

Transaction
Description

POLY DB ROPE 1/4X100'

STATION 2 FURNACE
THERMOCCOUPLE 24IN

STATION 2 FURNACE
THERMOSTAT

TRUCK #1828 & #1829
HILLMAN FASTENERS
REPAIR TOOLBOX'S

WEEDEATER SERRATED
TRIMMER LINE

LEGAL FEES 1.7 HRS
HYDRANT CLEARING

TRUCK #1726 SUPPORT &
BLSTR PK MINIATURES

LEGAL SERVICES FIRE
HYDRANT ISSUES
10/31/24 7.25 HRS

SHRED 15 STANDARD
BOXES

ACCT. #00250606
FOLDING MACHINE
12/1/24 TO 02/28/25

ACCT. #00250606
POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE
12/24 TO 3/25

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PUMP STATION 3 2024
WATERSMART GRANT A

PUMP STATION #3
WATERSMART GRANT
APPLICATION

COMMERCIAL
CONSUMPTION DORLA CT
9/30 TO 10/31/24

BROMATE
COLIFORM-QT

COLIFORMS-P/A &
COLIFORMS-QT

COLIFORMS-QT

HAAS, HALOACETIC
ACIDS & TTHM, TOTAL
TRIHALOMETHANES

ACCT. 3001186388
SHRED SERVICE 11/6/24

ACCT 10534153 169
TERRACE VIEW DR COMM
BIN SERVICE 10/23/24

ACCT. 12276400 801
KINGSBURY GRADE COMM
BIN SERVICE 10/24/24

ACCT. 13186400 160
PINE RIDGE/298
KINGSBURY GRADE COMM
BIN

Check Amount

l6.
15.

36.

17.

2,500.

71.

2,646

270.

1,128.

488.

1,682.

4,305,

876.

175

216.
1,030.

42.

74.

74.

556.

99
99

929

.16

99

00

47

.25

00

99

42

50

00

70

.00
27.
189.

00
00

00

00

33

20

20

50

Page:

3



Check Number

Check Date

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/16/2024 Through 12/13/2024

Payee

Transaction
Description

Check Amount

64700

64700

64700

64700

64700

64700

64700

64700

64700

64701

64701

64702

64702

64703

64704

64705

64706

64706

64707

64708

64709

64710

64711

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/13/2024

11/1%/2024

11/198/2024

11/18/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/19/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

1172972024

Date: 12/13/24 11:38:38 aM

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG

TAHOE BASIN CONTAINER

TAHOE BASIN CONTAINER

TAHOENOW VENTURES LLC

THUNDERBIRD COMMUNICATIONS INC

VERIZON WIRELESS

WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO
WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO
CARRIE BAUWENS

JUDITH BREWER

LELAND B. CHURCHYARD II
MITCHELL S.

DION

MICHAEL E. EDWARDS, JR

910000322763 3
BUCHANAN RD PUMP

910000561117 698
KINGSBURY GRADE

910000561180 5
KIMBERLY BROOKE LN

910000561274 4 ANDRIA
DR (384) PUMP

910000561387 2
TERRACE VIEW DR PUMP

910000795713 160 PINE
RIDGE DR 1

910000799716 298
KINGSBURY CIR

910000799717 298
KINGSBURY CIR UP

910000799718 298
KINGSBURY CIR DOWN

ACCT. 360 MEDICAL
INSURANCE BREWER,
ESENARRO, MOSS 11/2024

ACCT. 841 MEDICAL
INSURANCE MCKAY,
RUNTZEL, SCHRAUBEN,
VOSBU

ACCT. 54345000 801
KIGNSBURY GRADE BEAR
PROOF RENTAL 10/2024

ACCT. 54591700 160
PINERIDGE/298
KINGSBURY BEAR PROQF
RENTAL

REFUND PERMIT 2022-08
146 SIERRA COLINA
COMPLETED ALL INSPEC

SCADA SYSTEM PARTS AC
POWER SUPPLY, 16DI
4D0 EE 4AI, 12 DO E

MONTHLY GPS SERVICES
MEI SNOW EQUIPMENT
10/24

15X12 METER PIT
EXTENSION

15X12 MTR PIT EXT QTY
2

Employee: BAUWEN;
Date: 11/2%8/2024

Employee: BREWER;
Date: 11/29/2024

Employee: CHURCH:;
Date: 11/29/2024

Employee: DION;
Date: 11/29/2024

Employee: EDWARD; Pay
Date: 11/29/2024

Pay

Pay

Pay

Pay

40.

51.

53.

55.

50.

208.

73.

33.

186

4,343,

1,411

30.

33.

2,724.

1,785.

227.

212.

212.

1,694.

2,051

1,910

3,229.

2,304.

80

50

87

06

30

91

01

67

.26

14

.78

00

00

00

05

40

54

54

97

.28

.55

19

86

Page:

4



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/16/2024 Through 12/13/2024

Check Number Check Date Payee

64712 11/29/2024 JOSEPH ESENARRO

64713 11/29/2024 BRANDY JOHNS

64714 11/29/2024 SHANE T. MORTENSEN
64715 11/29/2024 BYRAN D. MOSS

64716 11/29/2024 JERRON D. PIERSON

64717 11/29/2024 LEIGH C. STANTON

64718 11/29/2024 JEFF T. WOOD

64719 11/29/2024 JOSEPH ESENARRO

64720 11/29/2024 AT & T MOBILITY

64721 11/29/2024 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
64721 11/29/2024 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
64721 11/29/2024 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
64722 11/29/2024 EMPLOYERS ASSURANCE CO.
64723 11/29/2024 STATIONARY ENGINEERS LOCAL 39
64724 11/29/2024 IUOE STATIONARY ENGINEERS LO39
64726 11/29/2024 NV ENERGY

64726 11/29/2024 NV ENERGY

64726 11/22/2024 NV ENERGY

64726 11/29/2024 NV ENERGY

64726 11/29/2024 NV ENERGY

64726 11/29/2024 NV ENERGY

64726 11/29/2024 NV ENERGY

64726 11/29/2024 NV ENERGY

64726 11/29/2024 NV ENERGY

Date: 12/13/24 11:3B:38 AM

Transaction
Description

Employee: ESENAR; Pay

Date: 11/29/2024
Employee: JOHNS; Pay
Date: 11/29/2024
Employee: MORTEN; Pay
Date: 11/29/2024
Employee: MOSS; Pay
Date: 11/29/2024
Employee: PIERSO; Pay
Date: 11/29/2024
Employee: STANTO; Pay
Date: 11/29/2024
Employee: WOOD; Pay
Date: 11/29/2024
Employee: ESENAR; Pay
Date: 11/29/2024
ACCT. 287301170124

CELL PHONES

8411100140031448 169
TERRACE VIEW DR

8411100140098488 97
BEACH CLUB DR

8411100140191184 160
PINERIDGE DR

WORKERS COMPENSATION
INSTALLMENT 06
12/01/24

LOCAL 39 EMPLOYEES
HEALTH/LIFE PREMIUMS
1/1/25

EMPLOYEE UNION DUES
12/2024

1000044046907329692
399 EUGENE DR

1000044086803270814
801 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT LIGHTS

1000044086803274204
GALAXY LN PUMP

1000044086803297718
403 KIMBERLY BROOKE LN

1000044086803301502
504 LAUREL LN UNIT
PMPSTA

1000044086803301940
EASY ST UNIT N/T134

1000044086803304290
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
Fl

1000044086803305073
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
PMPPLS

1000044086803320205
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
PMPHS2

Check Amount

3,520.

1,909

3,294

2,545

927.

1,441.

1,555

4,180

592.

149.

159.

129.

852.

20,440.

586.

35.

95.

309.

36.

39.

20.

45.

3,108

36

.44

.10

.36

88

87

.74

.29

12

98

98

98

30

00

.36

38

08

81

28

64

82

23

18

.29

Page:

5



Check Number

Check Date

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/16/2024 Through 12/13/2024

Payee

64726

64726

64726

64726

64726

64726

64726

64726

64727

64728

64729

64730

64731

64732

64732

64733

64734

64735

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

11/29/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

Date: 12/13/24 11:38:38 AM

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

PACIFIC STATES COMMUNICATIONS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES

NEVADA STATE COLLECTION

TAHOE SUPPLY COMPANY, LLC

THUNDERBIRD COMMUNICATIONS INC

BURGARELLO ALARM

BURGARELLO ALARM

BYRAN MOSS5

AMY C. CARAMAZZA

LELAND CHURCHYARD II

Transactiocn
Description

Check Amount

1000044086803320221
314 ANDRIA WAY UNIT
BRADBU

1000044086803320239
698 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT NTFRS

1000044086803320247
176 BUCHANAN RD UNIT
PMPHS3

1000044086804621577
801 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT B

1000044086805221187
180 LAKE PKWY UNIT
PUMP

1000044086807006297
97 BEACH CLUB DR

1000044087003270836
801 KINGSBURY GRADE

1000044771003320176
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
DISPMP

INCOMING CALL GOING
TO VOICE MAIL
11/22/24 HAD TO FIX
HOLIDA

EMPLOYEE AND
EMPLOYERS PERS
CONTRIBUTION 11/24

ID #3200008846 JERRON
DOUGLAS PIERSON
SUPPORT

ACCT. 0003827 298
KINGSBURY GRADE
LIQUID SOAP

6/13/24 TROUBLE SHOOT
STATION 7 PUMP,
6/26/24 TUNED DCWN RAD

ACCT. 209120 160 PINE
RIDGE FIRE MONITORING
12/24 TO 2/28/25

ACCT. 209120 160 PINE
RIDGE FIRE MONITORING
9/24 TO 11/30/24

REIMBURSE BUREAU SAFE
DRINKING WATER DIST-2
CERT RENEWAL

11/19/24 BOARD
MEETING AND MINUTES
6.25 HRS

REIMBURSE MILEAGE
FLAGGER TRAINING &
BACKFLOW EXAM

1,288.

1,659.

2,010.

43.

433.

5,542.

36.

964.

39,788.

685.

104.

1,480.0

105.

105.

50.

168.

162.

00

13

58

30

91

10

64

43

.00

76

84

75

00

00

0o

75

14

Page:

6



Check Number

Check Date

64736

64737

64737

64737

64737

64737

64737

64738

64739

64740

64741

64742

64743

64744

64745

64746

64746

64746

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

Date: 12/13/24 11:38:38 AM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/16/2024 Through 12/13/2024

Payee

MICHAEL EDWARDS JR.

ZACHRY GOOD

ZACHRY GOOD

ZACHRY GOOD

ZACHRY GOOD

ZACHRY GOOCD

ZACHRY GOOD

KENNETH GOODE

HARPER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

BEATRIZ HERNANDEZ

LUCY MCAFEE

MEEKS BUILDING CENTER

ROBERT & JOANIE NEUSCHMID

NEVADA NEWS GROUP

NEXTIVA, INC.

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

Transaction
Description

Check Amount

REIMBURSE MILEAGE
FLAGGER TRAINING
SPARKS 11/18/24

TRUCK #0610 TROUBLE
SHOOT ROUGH IDLE,
FILTER RESTRICTION LIG

TRUCK #0808 SERVICE
INSPECTION NEEDS NEW
TRACK BAR, BRAKES,

TRUCK #1323 INSPECT &
TROUBLESHOOT NEEDS
FULL SERVICE, NEW R

TRUCK #2006 SERVICE
ENGINE, OIL & AIR
FILTERS, GREASE, AXLE

TRUCK #8914 SERVICE
CHECK, GREASE
MACHINE, CHECK FLUID
LEVEL

TRUCK #9007 INSPECT
FOUND RIGHT REAR
WHEEL SEAL LEAKING,
REA

REFUND ACCOUNT 3159
OVERPAID/CLOSED
ESCROW 11/22/24

CONSULTING SERVICES
GRANT PREP SCADA

JANITORIAL 160
PINERIDGE 5 CLEANINGS
NOV 2024

REFUND PERMIT 2022-18
434 PANORAMA DR
COMPLETED ALL INSPECTI

298 KINGSBURY GRADE
ROOF CEDAR MED SHAKE,
1IN EG ROOFING

REFUND PERMIT 2021-28
FIRE CONNECTION FEE

AD #47828 PUBLIC
HEARING SEWER AND
WATER RATE CHANGE

ACCT. 3680856
DISTRICT OFFICE PHONE
LINES 12/24

1000044086803294236
160 PINERIDGE DR UNIT
LIGHTS

1000044086803297452
298 KINGSURY GRADE
APT ADOWN

1000044086803297460
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT B-UP

84.

170

170.

170.

226.

85.

42

14,375.

2,500.

4,189.

200.

3,214.

259

11.

83.

142.

42

.00

00

00

.40

00

00

.25

00

00

00

11

00

.50

.32

71

60

28

Page:

7



Check Number

64746

64746

64746

64747

64748
64748
64748
64749

64750

64752

64752
64752
64752

64752

64752

64752
64752

64752
64752

64752

64752
64752
64752

64752
64752

Check Date

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024
12/10/2024
12/10/2024
12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024
12/10/2024

12/10/2024
12/10/2024

12710/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024
12/10/2024

Date: 12/13/24 11:38:38 AM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/16/2024 Through 12/13/2024

Payee

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

PACIFIC STATES COMMUNICATIONS

SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
SPRINGBROOK SOFTWARE COMPANY

TRIUMPH ELECTRIC, INC

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS
US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS
US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS
US BANK VISA REWARDS

Transaction

Description Check Amount
1000044086803297478 54.03
298 KINGSBURY GRADE

APT CDOWN

1000044086803297486 71.59
298 KINGSBURY GRADE

APT DDOWN

1000044086808604306 185.60
160 PINERIDGE DR

MONTHLY NETWORK 1,222.50
MONITORING SERVICES

12/24

COLIFORMS-P/A & 162.00
COLIFORMS-QT

COLIFORMS-QT 162.00
COLIFROMS-QT 27.00
COMPUTER EXP/ACH & CC 1,673.00
CHARGES 11/24

160 PINERIDGE DEMO 1,119.38
FICTURES & INSTALL

HIGH BAY LIGHTING

BM STATION 2 HEATER 43.41
VAR PITCH BELT PULLY

1/2IN ZINC

CB BILLING PAPER 500 133.68
SHEETS QTY 8

CB COPY PAPER 10 119.97
REAMS QTY 3

JB 11/19/24 BOARD 66.00
MEETING SANDWICHES

JB BATHROOM TISSUE, 93.92
COFFEE BEANS,

CUSTLERY, COCOA MIX

JB BOARD MEMBER 143.00
PLAQUES

JB CANDY FOR OFFICE 34.98
JB DRY ERASE MARKER 8.11
SET

JB LIEN RELEASE FEES 123.00
JB OFFICE CLEAR 128.26
STORAGE BINS QTY 2

JB POOL PACT 226.87
CONFERENCE ATLANTIS

ROOM 10/31/24

JB RECEIPT DQOLLAR 13.75
TREE OFFICE CANDY

JB TRAINING ROOM DRY 176.76
ERASE BOARD 72INX48IN

MD 160 PINERIDGE 40LB 61.91
FIRE & ICE, COURS MED

SANDING, STATION

MD 160 PINERIDGE FLAG 40.93
MD 160 PINERIDGE 158.09

REPAIRS, 298
KINGSBURY REPAIRS,
STATION 3&5

Page:

8



Check Number

64752

64752

64752

64752

64752

64752

64752

64752

64753

64754

64755

64756

64757

64758

64759

64760

64761

64762

64763

64764

64765

Report Total

Check Date

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/13/2024
12/13/2024
12/13/2024
12/13/2024
12/13/2024
12/13/2024
12/13/2024
12/13/2024
12/13/2024
12/13/2024
12/13/2024
1271372024

12/13/2024

Date: 12/13/24 11:38:38 AM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 11/16/2024 Through 12/13/2024

Payee

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

CARRIE BAUWENS

JUDITH BREWER

LELAND B. CHURCHYARD IT

MITCHELL S. DION

MICHAEL E. EDWARDS, JR

JOSEPH ESENARRO

BRANDY JOHNS

SHANE T. MORTENSEN

BYRAN D. MOSS

JERRON D. PIERSON

LEIGH C. STANTON

JEFF T. WOOD

JOSEPH ESENARRO

Transaction
Description

MD 160 PINERIDGE/298
KING TEXTURES,
CONTROL PITCH,
STATION 3

MD 160 PINERIDGE/298
KINGSBURY SOAP,
STATIONS 3&5 KEMTEK
LIO

MD AWWA CHURCHYARD
REGISTER RENEW CROSS
CONNECTION SPECIAL

MD STATIONS 3&5
KEMTEK LIQUID
CHLORINE QTY 3

MD TRAINING ROOM
TABLE & CONFERENC
ROOM TABLE

SM HOTEL ROOM AWWA
CONFERENCE 10/23 TO
10/24/24

SM STATION 1
DISTILLED WATER QTY 5

SM TRANSENE STATION 1
ACETATE BUFFER
SOLUTION QTY 3

Employee: BAUWEN; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: BREWER; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: CHURCH; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: DION; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: EDWARD; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: ESENAR; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: JOHNS; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: MORTEN; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: MOSS; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: PIERSO; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: STANTO:; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: WOOD; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Employee: ESENAR; Pay
Date: 12/13/2024

Check Amount

1,

2,

1,

3,

2,

3,

1,

2,

2,

l’

1,

4,

319,516.

352.

72.

125.

87.

960.

206.

27

653.

694

051

910.

229.

785.

682

909.

443.

883.

927.

441,

611

180

79

52

00

08

79

53

.45

41

.97

.28

55

19

72

.13

44

09

69

88

87

.08

.29

Page: 9






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #9

TITLE: PRESENTATION OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024; POSSIBLE
ACTION TO ACCEPT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

For Discussion and Possible Action. Receive report and presentation, discuss, and
accept 2024 Financials and Auditor’s report.

MEETING DATE: 17 December 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Presentation of Audited Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024, and Accept the Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: N.R.S. Chapter 318.080 outlines the Duties of the Board
of Trustees. Paragraph 2 lists the fiduciary duties including: (b) Auditing practices and
procedures to be used by the district. As such, the district engages an outside auditor each year
which conducts the audit and provides a report to the Board of Trustees.

A Request for Qualifications was issued in 2023 and EideBailly was selected to serve as the auditor.
The current contract is for 3 years with optional renewal periods. This year’s audit identified no
material issues but does reflect the cascade from the previous year’s audit such as the protocol used
by the district to receive reimbursement.

Tiffany Williamson, Partner, EideBailly will present the Financial Statements and Auditor’s report
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. Attached are the audited financial statements and
accompanying notes.

INCLUDED:

1) Governance Letter
2) 2024 Final Financial Statement

Fund impacted by the above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

November 25, 2024

To the Board of Trustees
Kingsbury General Improvement District
Stateline, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of Kingsbury General Improvement District (the “District”) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and have issued our report thereon dated November 25, 2024.
Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As communicated in our letter dated October 3, 2024, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express opinions about whether the financial statements that have been
prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of
the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the District solely for
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such
internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.

We have provided our comments regarding internal controls during our audit in our Independent
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards dated November 25, 2024.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to
you.

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 895112094 | T775.689.9100 = F775.689.9299 | EOE



Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and our network firms have
complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the District is included in Note 1 to the financial statements.
There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting
policies or their application during 2024. No matters have come to our attention that would require us,
under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant
unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging
areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current
judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the estimates relating to
pension and OPEB information and the related liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of resources.

Management'’s estimate of the pension and OPEB liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of resources
are based on the actuarial reports. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
pension information and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion units.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the
District’s financial statements relate to long-term debt, pension and OPEB information.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of
the audit.



Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards also require us to accumulate all known and
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us
to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.
Uncorrected misstatements or matters underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially
cause future-period financial statements to be materially misstated, even though the uncorrected
misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements currently under audit.

Misstatements that we identified as a result of our audit procedures are listed at the end of this letter
and were brought to the attention of, and corrected by, management.

The following summarizes uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects in the current
and prior period, as determined by management, are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate
to the financial statements taken as a whole and each applicable opinion unit.

General Fund:

e To pass on reversing effect of prior year passed entries — understatement of revenue and
overstatement of beginning fund balance of $11,231.

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements, including the effect of the reversal of prior year
uncorrected misstatements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, is an understatement change in
fund balance and overstatement of beginning fund balance of $11,231.

Snow Removal Fund:

e To pass on reclassifying debit balances in accounts payable — understatement of assets and
liabilities of $2,348.

e To pass on reversing effect of prior year passed entries — understatement of revenue and
overstatement of beginning fund balance of $2,966.

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements, including the effect of the reversal of prior year
uncorrected misstatements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, is an understatement of change
in fund balance and overstatement of beginning fund balance of $2,966.

Water Utility Fund:

e To pass on reclassifying debit balances in accounts payable — understatement of assets and
liabilities of $11,259.
o To pass on correctly accruing accounts payable at year-end — overstatement of accounts
payable and expenses of $10,518.
o To pass on writing off debt issuance costs — overstatement of assets of $47,822,
expenses of $10,434 and beginning net position of $55,256.



o To pass on recording subscription-based IT agreement — understatement of assets of
$20,499, understatement of liabilities of $12,871, and overstatement of expenses of
$7,628.

o To pass on reversing effect of prior year passed entries — understatement of revenue of
$35,589, understatement of expenses of $11,738 and overstatement of beginning fund
balance of $23,848.

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements, including the effect of the reversal of prior year
uncorrected misstatements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, is an understatement of change
in net position of $52,428 and overstatement of beginning net position of $79,104.

Sewer Utility Fund:

e To pass on recording subscription-based IT agreement — understatement of assets of $10,249,
understatement of liabilities of $6,436, and overstatement of expenses of $3,813.

e To pass on reversing effect of prior year passed entries — understatement of revenue and
overstatement of beginning fund balance of $17,793.

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements, including the effect of the reversal of prior year
uncorrected misstatements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, is an understatement of change
in net position of $21,606 and overstatement of beginning net position of $17,793.

Government-Wide, Governmental Activities:

e To pass on correcting depreciation not recorded in prior year — overstatement of expenses and
overstatement of beginning fund balance of $37,893.

e To pass on reversing effect of prior year passed entries — understatement of revenue and
overstatement of beginning fund balance of $5,932.

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements, including the effect of the reversal of prior year
uncorrected misstatements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, is an overstatement of change in
net position of $31,961 and understatement of beginning net position of $31,961.

Government-Wide, Business-Type Activities:

e To pass on reclassifying debit balances in accounts payable — understatement of assets and
liabilities of $11,259.

e To pass on correctly accruing accounts payablie at year-end — overstatement of accounts payable
and expenses of $10,518.

* To pass on writing off debt issuance costs — overstatement of assets of $47,822, expenses of
$10,434 and beginning net position of $55,256.

¢ To pass on recording subscription-based IT agreement — understatement of assets of $30,748,
understatement of liabilities of $19,307, and overstatement of expenses of $11,441.

e To pass on reversing effect of prior year passed entries -~ understatement of revenue of $53,380,
understatement of expenses of $11,738 and overstatement of beginning fund balance of
$41,642.

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements, including the effect of the reversal of prior year
uncorrected misstatements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, is an understatement of change
in net position of $74,035 and overstatement of beginning net position of $96,898.



Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, which could be significant to the District’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such
disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that
affect the form and content of our auditor’s report. We did not identify any circumstances that affect
the form and content of the auditor’s report.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the
attached letter dated November 25, 2024.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations
with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the District, we generally discuss a variety of
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, significant events or
transactions that occurred during the year, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and
operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters
discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the District’s auditors.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, and management of
the District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

5"'/&(@ L7

Reno, Nevada



Account Description Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1
IReclassify client recorded OPEB expense from the Gov't Fund

2136-10 OPEB PAYABLE 235.00

2136-60 OPEB PAYABLE 187.00

5029-10 OPEB EXPENSE 235.00

5029-60 OPEB EXPENSE 187.00
Total 422.00 422.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2

{Conversion Entry - Beg. Equity & Balances

1300-20 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 646,495.00

1300-30 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 150,542.00

1860-20 EB Intangible Asset - Leases 112,904.00

1860-30 EB Intangible Asset - Leases 56,452.00

2120-10 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY 8,142.00

2120-60 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY 5,826.00

2121-10 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK 2,245.00

2121-60 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK 1,523.00

2136-10 OPEB PAYABLE 47,792.00

2136-60 OPEB PAYABLE 38,234.00

3010-20 RETAINED EARNINGS 999,808.00

3010-30 RETAINED EARNINGS 240,980.00

1828-20 EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases 82,880.00

1828-30 EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases 41,440.00

2300-20 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 184,046.00

2300-30 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 37,797.00

2300-60 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 33,803.00

2498-20 EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion 5,091.00

2498-30 EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion 2,545.00

2499-20 EB Lease Liability - Current Portion 26,267.00

2499-30 EB Lease Liability - Current Portion 13,134.00

2500-20 NET PENSION LIABILITY 1,460,923.00

2500-30 NET PENSION LIABILITY 353,058.00

3010-10 RETAINED EARNINGS 58,179.00

3010-60 RETAINED EARNINGS 11,780.00
Total 2,310,943.00 2,310,943.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3

iConversion Entry - Lease Liability (FUND)

2498-20 EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion 2,632.00
2498-30 EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion 1,315.00
2499-20 EB Lease Liability - Current Portion 23,635.00

2499-30 EB Lease Liability - Current Portion 11,818.00



Account Description Debit Credit

5700-20 INTEREST EXPENSE 480.00

5700-30 INTEREST EXPENSE 240.00

5810-10 EB Debt Service - principal expenditure 2,189.00

5810-60 EB Debt Service - principal expenditure 2,189.00

5815-10 EB Debt Service - interest expenditure 40.00

5815-60 EB Debt Service - interest expenditure 40.00

5915-20 EB Amortization of Lease Expense 25,074.00

5915-30 ER Amortization of Lease Expense 12,537.00

1828-20 EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases 25,074.00

1828-30 EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases 12,537.00

5440-10 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 342.00

5440-20 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 4,105.00

5440-30 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2,052.00

5440-60 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 342.00

5510-10 OFFICE AND FACILITIES RENT 1,887.00

5510-20 OFFICE AND FACILITIES RENT 22,642.00

5510-30 OFFICE AND FACILITIES RENT 11,321.00

5510-60 OFFICE AND FACILITIES RENT 1,887.00
Total 82,189.00 82,189.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
Conversion Entry: Accrued Vacation (FUND)

2120-10 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY 110.00

2120-80 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY 2,253.00

2121-10 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK 186.00

2121-60 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK 875.00

5010-10 PAYROLL - MANAGER 296.00

5010-60 PAYROLL - MANAGER 3,128.00
Total 3,424.00 3,424.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 5
iConversion Entry: Unavailable Revenue (FUND)

4100-60 USER FEES - RESIDENTIAL 5,323.00
2300-60 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 5,323.00
Total 5,323.00 5,323.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 1
'Reclassify 50% of the 100% employer paid PERS contributions.

5010-10 PAYROLL - MANAGER 2,972.00
5010-20 PAYROLL - MANAGER 13,507.00
5010-30 PAYROLL - MANAGER 7,849.00
5010-60 PAYROLL - MANAGER 3,126.00

5011-10 PAYROLL - MAINTENANCE 3,887.00



Account

5011-20
5011-60
5012-10
5012-20
5012-30
5012-60
5022-10
5022-20
5022-30
5022-60
5011-30
Total

Description

PAYROLL - MAINTENANCE
PAYROLL - MAINTENANCE
PAYROLL - OFFICE

PAYROLL - OFFICE

PAYROLL - OFFICE

PAYROLL - OFFICE
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS
PAYROL - MAINTENANCE

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 2
‘Conversion Entry - Beg. Equity & Balances

1300-10
1300-60
1800-10
1801-10
1802-10
1803-10
1804-10
1820-10
1860-10
1860-60
2300-60
3010-60
1825-10
1828-10
1828-60
2120-10
2120-80
2121-10
2121-60
2136-10
2136-60
2300-10
2498-10
2498-60
2499-10
2498-60
2500-10
2500-60
3010-10

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

EQUIPMENT

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

LAND

INFRASTRUCTURE

CIP

UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE

EB Intangible Asset - Leases

EB Intangible Asset - Leases
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
RETAINED EARNINGS
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases

EB Accumutated Amort. of Leases
ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY
ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY
ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK
ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK

OPEB PAYABLE

OPEB PAYABLE

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion
EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion
EB Lease Liability - Current Portion
EB Lease Liability - Current Portion
NET PENSION LIABILITY

NET PENSION LIABILITY
RETAINED EARNINGS

Debit Credit

28,572.00
1,951.00
1,526.00
5,827.00
4,772.00
2,050.00

8,385.00

47,906.00

12,721.00

7,127.00

76,139.00 76,139.00
112,361.00
83,359.00
1,596,231.00
28,131.00
126,482.00
11,277,517.00
245,958.00
1,379,645.00
9,409.00
9,409.00
7,026.00
135,929.00

8,584,549.00

6,906.00

6,906.00

8,142.00

5,826.00

2,245.00

1,523.00

47,792.00

38,234.00

37,001.00

423.00

423.00

2,190.00

2,190.00

241,156.00

180,621.00

5,845,330.00



Account

Total

Description

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE# 3

2498-10
2498-60
2499-10
2499-60
5915-10
5915-60
1828-10
1828-60
5810-10
5810-60
Total

EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion
EB Lease Liability - Long-term Portion
EB Lease Liability - Current Portion

EB Lease Liability - Current Portion

EB Amortization of Lease Expense

EB Amortization of Lease Expense

EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases

EB Accumulated Amort. of Leases

EB Debt Service - principal expenditure
EB Debt Service - principal expenditure

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 4
{Conversion Entry: PERS

2500-10
2500-20
2500-30
2500-60
5022-10
5022-20
5022-30
5022-60
1300-10
1300-20
1300-30
1300-60
2300-10
2300-20
2300-30
2300-60
Total

NET PENSION LIABILITY

NET PENSION LIABILITY

NET PENSION LIABILITY

NET PENSION LIABILITY

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - PERS
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE# 5
‘Conversion Entry: OPEB

2300-10
2300-20
2300-30
2300-60
5029-10
5029-20

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
OPEB EXPENSE
OPEB EXPENSE

Debit

Credit

15,011,457.00

15,011,457.00

218.00
218.00
1,971.00
1,971.00
2,089.00
2,089.00

2,089.00

2,089.00

2,189.00

2,189.00

8,556.00 8,556.00
16,626.00
122,337.00
21,011.00
6,118.00
8,332.00
47,603.00
12,641.00
7,082.00

14,148.00

111,633.00

16,721.00

3,000.00

10,810.00

58,307.00

16,931.00

10,200.00

241,750.00 241,750.00
15,058.00
6,498.00
2,460.00
9,733.00
336.00
21,805.00



Account Description Debit Credit

5029-30 OPEB EXPENSE 3,664.00

5029-60 OPEB EXPENSE 610.00

1300-10 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 15,159.00

1300-20 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 28,303.00

1300-30 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 6,124.00

1300-60 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 10,156.00

2136-10 OPEB PAYABLE 235.00

2136-60 OPEB PAYABLE 187.00
Total 60,164.00 60,164.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 6
Conversion Entry: Accrued Vacation (GOV WIDE)

5010-10 PAYROLL - MANAGER 296.00

5010-60 PAYROLL - MANAGER 3,128.00

2120-10 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY 110.00

2120-60 ACCRUED VACATION/SICK PAY 2,2563.00

2121-10 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK 186.00

2121-60 ACCRUED TAXES VAC/SICK 875.00
Total 3,424.00 3,424.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE# 7
iTo record current year additions to capital assets in Governmental Funds for the Gov't Wide
F/S.

1800-10 EQUIPMENT 37,801.00
1801-10 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,839.00
1804-10 CIP 79,340.00
1820-10 UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE 209,776.00
5800-10 CAPITAL OUTLAY 199,049.00
5800-60 CAPITAL OUTLAY 129,707.00

1803-10 INFRASTRUCTURE
5800-80 CAPITAL OUTLAY
Total 328,756.00 328,756.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 8
ITo record the disposal of capital assets in Governmental Funds for the Gov't Wide F/S.

1825-10 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 1,888.00

1825-10 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 188,220.00

1800-10 EQUIPMENT 188,220.00

1801-10 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,888.00
Total 190,108.00 190,108.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 9
iTo record depreciation expense for Gov't Wide F/S presentation purposes

8000-10 DEPRECIATION 480,227.00



Account Description Debit Credit

1825-10  ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 480,227.00
Total 480,227.00 480,227.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 10
iTo record CIP transfers for Gov't Wide F/S presentation purposes.

1801-10 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 389.00
1820-10 UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE 26,280.00
1804-10 CIP 26,669.00

1800-10 EQUIPMENT
1803-10 INFRASTRUCTURE
Total 26,669.00 26,669.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 11
iConversion Entry: Unavailable Revenue (GOV WIDE)

2300-60 DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 5,323.00

4100-60 USER FEES - RESIDENTIAL 5,323.00
Total 5,323.00 5,323.00







Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Kingsbury General Improvement District

EideBailly.

| eidebailly.com



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Table of Contents
June 30, 2024

INAEPENUENT AUGITOI'S REPOI .. .ic et s et bt s e e e ssanesses seessasesst s eetteserensesessansesnessaeesasnenseesasensanesnen 1
Management’s DISCUSSION @Nd ANAIYSIS .....ccccccieiiiiiiciiecrccee et re e essess et e st e e eoneeneesesesssnseaseeseanrennenaes 5

Basic Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

STALEMENT OF NET POSILION ...eeiviiireiicti vt cesrr e tessas et e is e s sascob s sab s s abba st b e sasesasessesstssamnsabesasnsssamesoter masesan 13
SEATEMENT Of ACTIVITIES. .. eee ettt ettt e bt e e s s s ea b e s b e s ebeabs s e ssesereebbesatsentsoabessatasenntsnssssrensans 15
Fund Financial Statements

Balance Sheet — GovernMENtal FUNAS..........covviviieiiiiiiiiisesie e esreesseesesoseresesessensensssesssessanesssesssensssnessesssssnsnns 16
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position — Governmental Funds ........coocveeveenanens 17
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds .......ccceveveeee.... 18
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to

the Statement of Activities — GoOVErnMENtal FUNAS......cccevviiiiiiiiiieisiisiinicisiesssressessesssseseessneseesseesessssneanssasases 19
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual —

GENETAI FUNG.....oiiei it itccterscr s eers e este s st e se s te s te s sosr e s s st essaneesnntesnnse senenssnessanseesses seasesssnasassessesssnseesne 20
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual —

Special Revenue FUNG — SNOW REMOVA! ....ccviriceiiiiii ettt vrsesses st essessss s sresessansesesssrnsesnesosesestsssss oneeras 21
Statement of Net POSItioON — ENTEIPrisSe FUNGS ...ccovvviviiiiiiiiieieeeeeeee et seecstessesnsanevseasevassnensss sesnennessessseesesssensse 22
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Enterprise FUNds ........cocoevveerernemnesnsecsnennne 24
Statement of Cash FIOWS — ENLEIPriSE@ FUNTS .....ccoviviveericriinieiciiiiriisieesssesseessessnecsoressssesseesesesssesseesssesssssassessenssns 25
NOES 10 FINANCIAl SEALEMENTS c...eceeeecivecv v et e st bbb e esbsesbsebes b bt o sbae st s tssenetnreeaenesenneenseesaneesnses 27

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in Net PENSION LIADIlLY .....cccccieciciiiiiciienieneie et reeser s rrsessersssesssssssesosssssesmmneneen 54
Schedule of CONtIBULIONS = PENSION.......c.ciciecieiietec et veeer e cvestes s sss e sr s esresssessreseesensansssassesensoaemesnnnean 56
Schedule of FUNAING Progress — OPEB ... ciiiceierteceecree et ceresseeresssstessersrsnsaseeseessessssassssersrssssssstssamssons 57
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related RAtios ........cc.euvcvvieuiveiiiiismvesessessnesssessnessessesessesssnens 58
Supplementary Information
Schedule of Capital ASSELS DY SOUICES........cccviveicir it sres e it sssesssssses s iabessessesssseeseeesnenessseessesssnsesneees 59
Capital Assets used in the Operations of Governmental Funds by Function and ActiVity ......cceevveeeeeeeerneeennen. 60
Changes in Capital Assets used in the Operations of Governmental Funds by Function and Activity................ 61
Statement of Revenue and Expenses — Budget and Actual — Sewer Utility FUnd .......ocoocevvvoneeiiieoneenrceeneerenen.s 62
Statement of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual — Sewer ULIlity FUNd .......oocnieerie i eseseesressseessssseeens 63
Statement of Revenue and Expenses — Budget and Actual — Water Utility Fund .....cocvvvvvemeirccnionneseieonseasnecen. 64
Statement of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual — Water ULility FUNG ....oc.oovivveiieeivirererrcnrc s snsreeseesersessssesinens 65

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
AUAIING SEANAATAS........coooceviceseeciieteeie s vir e ves i sas s e sebs s ts s abs sabsshbs s b satesbatssstesabesenn st enneesseesaneesnsnesenesaneennes 66

Schedule of FINAINGS @Nd RESPONSES ......c..vriivvercirerirt e eeirrie st stes e tsssse e e ssssaseneesssestesbebassssaes sresresstessesssessns sosesneen 68

AUITOTS' COMMENTS ...oeiiiiiiiiiieiiesieesteesseeeerreereesesreris e e ssessesseeesaseas s esessasessssssnseasteseennsasansesaaseasssesenssessesstessaseesransess 69



EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees
Kingsbury General Improvement District
Stateline, Nevada

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities
and fund information of the Kingsbury General Improvement District (the “District”) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and
fund information of the District, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the
governmental funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 89511-2094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt that the District’s ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control—related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in net pension liability, schedule of contributions - pension,
schedule of funding progress - OPEB, and schedule of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have



applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The schedule of capital assets by sources,
capital assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity, changes in capital
assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity, statement of revenue and
expenses — budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of cash flows — budget and actual — sewer
utility fund, statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual — water utility fund, and statement
of cash flows — budget and actual — water utility fund, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the schedule of capital assets
by sources, capital assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity, changes
in capital assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity, statement of
revenue and expenses — budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of cash flows — budget and
actual — sewer utility fund, statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual — water utility fund,
and statement of cash flows — budget and actual — water utility fund are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the District’s 2023 financial statements, and we expressed unmodified opinions on
the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and fund
information in our report dated November 28, 2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, is consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

The statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of cash
flows — budget and actual - sewer utility fund, statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual
— water utility fund, and statement of cash flows — budget and actual —water utility fund for the year
ended June 30, 2023 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and related directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2023 financial
statements. The information was subjected to the audit procedures applied in the audit of the 2023
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare those financial



statements or to those financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the ,
statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of cash flows —
budget and actual — sewer utility fund, statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual — water
utility fund, and statement of cash flows — budget and actual — water utility fund is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year ended June 30,
2023.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 25,
2024, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

&M.‘fa?&

Reno, Nevada
November 25, 2024



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

As management of Kingsbury General Improvement District (the “District”), we offer readers of the District’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2024.

Financial Highlights

+ The assets and deferred outflows of the District exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close
of the current fiscal year by $60,102,577. Of this amount, $18,427,790 is unrestricted net position that
may be used to meet the District’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

« The District’s total noncurrent liabilities and deferred inflows decreased by $1,485,561 or 9%. This net
decrease is mostly comprised of a $166,092 decrease in the net pension fiability and a $1,369,133
decrease in loans payable.

+ The District’s total net position increased by $4,364,720 during the current year. Net investment in
capital assets, a component of total net position, increased $5,742,446 primarily due to additions of
capital assets and payments made on related debt, net of depreciation.

« At the end of the current year, the District’s governmental funds reported combined total ending fund
balances of $9,684,012, an increase of $1,170,563 in comparison with the prior year.

« At the end of the current fiscal year, non-spendable fund balances totaled $1,534. The total committed
fund balance is $358,631. The total assigned fund balance for the general fund is $995,416 for the fiscal
year 2025 budget deficit. Unassigned fund balance is $8,328,431.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.
The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements;
2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains supplementary
and required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities,
and deferred inflows with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or

deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the District include streets, snow removal and erosion control
(including drainage). The business-type activities of the District include water ({treatment and distribution) and
sewer (collection by the District and treatment paid for by the District but done by others).

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13-15 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

At year end, the District maintained three individual governmental funds. information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, the special revenue fund (snow removal). There has been no
activity in the capital projects fund (Tahoe Bond Act erosion control) since the year ended June 30, 2004.

The District adopts annual appropriated budgets for its general fund and its special revenue fund (snow
removal). Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance
with the budgets.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16-21 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The District maintains enterprise funds, a type of proprietary fund, to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The enterprise
funds account for the District’s water treatment and distribution activity and for its sewer collection activity and
its payment to others for sewage treatment.



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water utility fund
and the sewer utility fund.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-26 of this report.

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 27-53 of this report.

Other information. In additional to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain supplementary information including:

+ schedule of capital assets by sources
+ capital assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity
+ changes in capital assets used in the operations of governmental funds by function and activity

Additionally, supplementary information includes information individually for the sewer utility fund and for the
water utility fund as follows:

+ statement of revenue and expenses — budget and actual
+ statement of cash flows — budget and actual

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the
District, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $60,102,577 at the close of

the current year.

The largest portion of the District’s net assets (69%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. property, plant,
equipment and infrastructure such as pipelines, roads and erosion control improvements), less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District’s investment in
its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these

liabilities.



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities

A portion ($45,450) of the District’s net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position, $18,427,790, may be used to meet
the District’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

As noted earlier, the District’s total net position increased by $4,364,720 during the current year.

At June 30, 2024, the end of the current year, the District is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net position. The same situation was true the prior fiscal year.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the District’s net position by $1,004,921, thereby
contributing 2% to growth in net position of the District. Net investment in capital assets decreased by $15,271
and unrestricted net position increased by $1,156,192.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the District’s net position by $3,359,799, thereby
contributing 6% of growth in net position of the District. Net investment in capital assets increased by
$5,893,717 and unrestricted net position decreased $2,533,918.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balance of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s
financing requirements. In particular, assigned and unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At June 30, 2024, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $9,684,012, an
increase of $1,170,653 in comparison with the prior year. Of this amount, $1,534 is non-spendable. The fund
balance of the general fund increased $1,226,474 in the current year from $8,378,642 to $9,605,116. Fund
revenue was primarily from property taxes and state consolidated taxes. A large portion of the accumulating
fund balance of the general fund, excluding a prudent reserve, will be utilized in coming years for pavement
capital projects.

The fund balance of the snow removal special revenue fund decreased from $134,717 to $78,896 at June 30,
2024. The decrease of $55,821 in fund balance was due to expenditures exceeding revenues.

Proprietary funds. The District’s proprietary (enterprise) funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.



Kingsbury General improvement District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

Statement of Net Position

Assets and deferred outflows
Current and ather, including deferred outflows

Capital assets, net and right of use leased assets, net

Total assets and other deferred outflows
Liabilities and deferred inflows
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Prepaid fees and customer deposits
Noncurrent liabilities, including deferred inflows
Total liabilities and other deferred inflows
Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

Statement of Activities

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental activities
Public works
Highways and streets
Snow removal
Debt Service
Business-type activities
Sewer
Water

Ad valarem taxes
Consolidated taxes
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Total general revenue
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

2024 2023
Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Jotal Jotal
s 9,964,914 3 13,045,691 $ 23,010,605 $ 24,104,873
5918 772 47,238,035 53,156,807 48,793,444
15,883,686 60,283,726 76,167,412 72,898,317
82,175 1,011,490 1,093,665 676,953
6,344 252,100 258,444 285,220
567,486 14,145.240 14,712,726 16,198,287
656,005 15,408,830 16,064,835 17,160,460
5,917,924 35,711,413 41,629,337 35,886,891
- 45,450 45,450 45,450
9,309,757 9,118,033 18,427,790 19,805,516
$ 15227681 $ 44,874,896 5 60,102,577 S 55,737.857
e ] —— — —
2024 2023
— SR
Program Revenue
Capita
Charges for Grants and Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total Jotal
1,409,583 $ 101,244 § -8 (1,308,339} $ -8 {1,308,339) $ (802,920)
706,396 687,082 - (19,314) - (19,314) (806,128)
80 - - (80) - (80} (432)
1,785,552 1,904,249 - - 118,697 118,697 125,108
3,534,581 4,908,550 1,277,745 o 2,651,714 2,651,714 1,097,355
7,436,192 $ 7,601,125 $ 1,277,745 (1,327,733} 2,770,411 1,442,678 (387,017)
= = =
1,094,830 - 1,094,830 1,025,800
772,996 - 772,996 725,207
452,808 589,388 1,042,196 664,762
12,020 = 12,020 10,841
2,332,654 589,388 2,922,042 2,426,610
S 1 004i921 $ 3‘359i799 $ 4,364,720 % 2!039,593




Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Taxes were the general fund's primary source of revenue (78%). This included property tax revenue of
$1,094,830 and state consolidated tax revenue of $772,996. Actual general fund revenue was 5% greater than
the budget. Expenditures were 53% less than the budget. The ending fund balance increased from $8,378,642 to
$9,605,116.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

At year end, the District’s investment in capital assets from its governmental activities totaled $5,917,924. The
investment in capital assets from its proprietary activities totaled 535,711,413, net of related debt.

There were no major capital asset events during the fiscal year.

In November 2007, the District obtained an additional low-interest, subsidized loan from the State of Nevada
State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $3,000,000. The loan is secured by a general
obligation bond of $3,000,000 issued to the Nevada State Treasurer; however, the liability for the loan is shown
strictly as the amount drawn to date and is recorded in the water utility fund. The loan provided 38.1% of the
cost of water system improvements and served as the required match to a state grant providing 61.9% of the
cost of those improvements. As of June 30, 2024, the District had outstanding $780,592 in loan proceeds, which
is the legal amount outstanding.

In June 2010, the District obtained an additional low-interest, subsidized loan from the State of Nevada State
Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $3,306,650. The loan is secured by a general obligation
bond of 53,306,650 issued to the Nevada State Treasurer; however, the liability for the loan is shown strictly as
the amount drawn to date and is recorded in the water utility fund. This loan provided 100% funding of the cost
of water meter installations. As of June 30, 2024, the District had outstanding $1,210,710 in loan proceeds,
which is the legal amount outstanding.

In March 2012, the District obtained a low-interest, subsidized loan from the State of Nevada State Revolving
Loan Fund {SRF) in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000. On October 29, 2014, the loan amount was increased
to $11,000,000. The loan is secured by a general obligation bond of $11,000,000 issued to the Nevada State
Treasurer. This loan will provide 80% funding of the Water Treatment Plant improvements. As of lune 30, 2024,
the District had drawn the full amount of loan proceeds and had outstanding $5,755,783 in loan proceeds, which
is the legal amount outstanding.

In January 2015, the District obtained an additional low-interest subsidized loan from the State of Nevada State
Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $6,000,000. The loan is secured by a general obligation
bond of $6,000,000 issued to the Nevada State Treasurer and is recorded in the water utility fund. The loan,
which supplements the 2012 loan, will fund approximately 80% of the Water Treatment Plant improvements. As
of June 30, 2024, the District had drawn the full amount of loan proceeds and had outstanding $3,771,900 in
loan proceeds, which is the legal amount outstanding.

10



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 50% of the total
assessed valuation within the government’s boundaries. At June 30, 2024, the debt limitation of the District was
$147,222,331 which is significantly in excess of the District’s outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found under Note 7 ~ Loans Payable on pages
39-41.

Economic Factors

Federal grants are the dominant factor for infrastructure, driving costs up and availability of qualified
contractors down. In November 2023, the district was awarded an SRF Loan of $2.5 million with full debt
forgiveness to consolidate the Ponderosa Mobile Home Park Water System into the districts. Additionally, the
Tahoe Beach Club, the largest new development within the water service area opted to slow down production
and divide the final phases, this limited the anticipated completion of the project and dedication of the assets to
the district. Similarly, the Ridge, the second largest development in the district underwent a financial
reorganization and fell behind on monthly payments to the district and subsequently recovered during the fiscal
year. The district continued to have four large delinquent balances and opted to place two on the tax rolls for
recovery.

Interest rates remained at or near 5% for most of the fiscal year, the district has used the LGIP and longer-term
bonds to it advantage, collecting the highest rates possible within the investment policy and buffer the tail as
interest rates are expected to decrease.

Growth through new development appeared to waiver mid-year but resumed at a solid pace. The district close-
out of Sierra Colina was processed in 2024 and the other two large developments in the district are projected to
move toward completion during the next 18 months. Remodeling of single family homes into large short-term

vacations units also seemed to lull but came back strong as the County Commissioners resolved the uncertainty
of permitting and the economy continued to grow.

Costs of goods and services has not had any relief, demand for essential goods, such as water meters, valves and
pipe remain very high. Prices remain very high, but availability has improved. Most of these items are now
available in six to eight weeks versus the six to eight months being experienced at the beginning of the fiscal
year. Fuel has been the exception to the trend, the costs for fuel have fallen from their previous highs.

The cost of engineering or technical services has skyrocketed, the district is experiencing 30 to 40 percent
increases for the hour charges by technical professionals to provide their services.

The federal election provided a backdrop of ambiguity and suspense, contemporary elements in the economy

reflected these swings, but the short-term banking crisis in the Spring of 2024 contributed to the emotional
uncertainty and swings in consumer confidence regardless of the data.

11



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

Next Year's Budgets and Rates

fn 2002, the District embarked upon the masterplan for the water utility. During 2024 the last of the projects
identified were placed into design for completion during the next two or three years. Over the 25 years, the
district replaced nearly all of the lines, but unfortunately many of the early projects used materials and
installation techniques that will result in less than anticipated lift expectancy due to inattention to the very high-
water pressures, demand, regulatory changes and other conditions within the district. Some of these lines have
been replaced due to catastrophic failure or simply being undersized to support the conditions required. The
district budgets have all reflected negative cash flow, during the past 3 years the snow fund rate has been
restored to levels to which it was reduced from in 2018 and failed to address the inflationary factors. in
December 2024, the district is scheduled to address the water and sewer funds with rate increase. Additionally,
the district is approved for a $2.5 M SRF fund grant forgiveness which is earmarked to restore the water fund
capital reserve which was depleted in order to implement the water system consolidation.

During 2024 the district completed the long anticipated consolidated Administration and Operations Building.
The renovation of the building at 160 Pine Ridge Drive completed the six-year effort to acquire and repair the
building to serve the community. In response to staggering equipment maintenance and repair expenses he
districts also initiated the acquisition and construction of an equipment storage facility to provide cover for the
fleet of equipment and resources which have been left exposed in the extreme weather condition. It is
anticipated that this will extend the life of the equipment, reduce maintenance costs, and improve the reliability
of the district’s equipment used in response or repairs.

The district now occupies its own facilities and can eliminate the substantial expenses associated with rent.
However, the district now must budget for building expenses which were previously not included in the budget.
Moreover, the district is adjacent to a building which it uses for rental. The district should see some efficiency in
common services provided to two facilities on a common site, such as snow removal, painting, cleaning, or
maintenance. Long-term, that building is likely to be consolidated into the district operations/administration, in
addition to needing the space, the district needs the parking which both building is dependent upon.

The district has slowly implemented the computerized maintenance management system (complying with EPA
requirements) and will use the data to refine the district processes and budget more effectively.

The district labor force continues to have gaps in key positions, mostly in the professional series. The budget will
reflect some increases in attempt to recruit qualified people. So long as the vacancies exist, the budget reflects
the unspent funds. The district did adopt a policy for temporary labor which is anticipated to assist the district
with seasonal needs as well as the new building maintenance obligations.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those with an
interest in the District’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or

requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Business and Contracts Manager,
Kingsbury General Improvement District, P.O. Box 2220, Stateline, Nevada 89449.

12



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2024
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and investments $ 9,569,868 S 10,260,951 $ 19,830,819
Accounts receivable 48,040 480,495 528,535
Taxes receivable 149,373 - 149,373
Grants receivable - 1,276,045 1,276,045
Due from other governments - 46,779 46,779
Deposits and interest receivable 42,842 52,395 95,237
Prepaid expenses 1,534 22,558 24,092
Material inventory - 178,940 178,940
Cash and investments - restricted - 45,450 45,450
Bond issuance costs, net - 47,822 47,822
Property, plant and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation 5,917,944 47,230,610 53,148,554
Right of use leased assets, net of
accumulated amortization 828 7,425 8,253
Total assets 15,730,429 59,649,470 75,379,899
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions 139,143 543,823 682,966
Deferred outfilows related to OPEB 14,114 90,433 104,547
Total deferred outflows of resources 153,257 634,256 787,513
Total assets and deferred outflows 15,883,686 60,283,726 76,167,412
See Notes to Financial Statements 13



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2024

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Liabilities
Accounts payable - trade S 74,999 S 870,902 S 945,901
Accrued expenses 7,176 - 7,176
Accrued interest payable - 140,588 140,588
Prepaid user fees and customer deposits 6,344 252,100 258,444
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Compensated absences 12,733 73,866 86,599
OPEB obligation 2,303 14,755 17,058
Loans payable - 1,369,132 1,369,132
Lease liability 438 3,948 4,386
Due in more than one year
Compensated absences 8,427 32,088 40,515
Net pension liability 399,033 1,670,633 2,069,666
OPEB obligation 84,145 539,153 623,298
Loans payable - 10,149,853 10,149,853
Lease liability 410 3,689 4,099
Total liabilities 596,008 15,120,707 15,716,715
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions 38,537 150,619 189,156
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 21,460 137,504 158,964
Total deferred inflows of resources 59,997 288,123 348,120
Total liabilities and deferred inflows 656,005 15,408,830 16,064,835
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 5,917,924 35,711,413 41,629,337
Restricted by Tahoe Regional Planning Agency - 45,450 45,450
Unrestricted 9,309,757 9,118,033 18,427,790

Total Net Position

See Notes to Financial Statements

$ 15,227,681

S 44,874,896

S 60,102,577

14



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Program Net (Expense) Revenue
Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Charges for Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities
Public works
Highways and streets S 1,409,583 S 101,244 $ - S (1,308,339) $ - $  {1,308,339)
Snow removal 706,396 687,082 - (19,314) - (19,314)
Debt service 80 - - (80) - (80)
Total governmental activities 2,116,059 788,326 - (1,327,733) - (1,327,733)
Business-type activities
Sewer 1,785,552 1,904,249 - - 118,697 118,697
Water 3,534,581 4,908,550 1,277,745 - 2,651,714 2,651,714
Total business-type activities 5,320,133 6,812,799 1,277,745 - 2,770,411 2,770,411
Total primary government S 7,436,192 $ 7,601,125 $ 1,277,745 {1,327,733) 2,770,411 1,442,678
General Revenue
Ad valorem taxes 1,094,830 - 1,094,830
Consolidated taxes 772,996 - 772,996
Interest income 452,808 589,388 1,042,196
Miscellaneous income 12,020 . 12,020
Total general revenue 2,332,654 589,388 2,922,042
Change in Net Position 1,004,921 3,359,799 4,364,720
Net Position, Beginning of Year 14,222,760 41,515,097 55,737,857
Net Position, End of Year S 15,227,681 $ 44,874,896 $ 60,102,577
15

See Notes to Financial Statements



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

June 30, 2024

Assets

Cash and investments

Accounts receivable

Taxes receivable

Deposits and interest receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable - trade
Accrued expenses
Prepaid user fees and customer deposits

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue

Total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources

Fund Balances

Nonspendable
Prepaid expenses

Committed

Assigned for next year's budget deficit

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

See Notes to Financial Statements

Special Total
Revenue Fund Governmental

General {Snow Removal) Funds
S 9,423,688 S 146,180 9,569,868
6,021 42,019 48,040
149,373 - 149,373
40,923 1,919 42,842
489 1,045 1,534
S 9,620,494 S 191,163 9,811,657
S 8,202 S 66,797 74,999
7,176 - 7,176
- 6,344 6,344
15,378 73,141 88,519
- 39,126 39,126
15,378 112,267 127,645
489 1,045 1,534
248,563 110,068 358,631
995,416 - 995,416
8,360,648 (32,217) 8,328,431
9,605,116 78,896 9,684,012
S 9,620,494 S 191,163 9,811,657

16



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position — Governmental Funds

June 30, 2024

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balances - total governmental funds

Capital assets and right-to-use leased assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund.

Capital assets, being depreciated S 14,792,610
Right-to-use leased assets, being amortized 18,817
Less accumulated depreciation/amortization (8,892,655)

Unavailable revenue represents amounts that are not available to fund current
expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Compensated absences payable (21,160)
Net pension liability (399,033)
OPEB obligation {86,448)
Lease payable {(848)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and other post
employment benefits (OPEB), are applicable to future periods and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 139,143
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 14,114
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions {38,537)
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (21,460)

S 9,684,012

5,918,772

39,126

(507,489)

93,260

Net position of governmental activities

See Notes to Financial Statements

$ 15,227,681

17



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Revenue
Ad valorem taxes

Intergovernmental state shared revenue

Consolidated taxes
Miscellaneous

Charges for services

Interest income

Rental income

Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenditures
Public works
Current
Salaries, wages and benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over
(under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

Special Total
Revenue Fund Governmental

General (Snow Removal) Funds
S 1,094,830 S - S 1,094,830
772,996 - 772,996
- 681,759 681,759
434,921 17,887 452,808
101,244 - 101,244
1,099 10,920 12,019
2,405,090 710,566 3,115,656
221,941 151,160 373,101
755,397 483,291 1,238,688
199,049 129,707 328,756
2,189 2,189 4,378
40 40 80
1,178,616 766,387 1,945,003
1,226,474 (55,821) 1,170,653
8,378,642 134,717 8,513,359
S 9,605,116 S 78,896 S 9,684,012
18



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of
Activities — Governmental Funds

Year Ended lune 30, 2024

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds S 1,170,653
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated/

amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Capital outlay s 328,756
Depreciation and amortization expense (484,405) (155,649)

Debt service payments for long-term debt, including leases, are reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds, but are reported as a
reduction of long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Lease principal payments 4,378
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in governmental
funds.
Change in unavailable revenue 5,323
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in long-term compensated absences (3,424)
Change in OPEB liability related amounts {946) (4,370)

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits
earned is reported as pension expense.

Pension expense (15,414)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities S 1,004,921

See Notes to Financial Statements 19



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2024
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue
Ad valorem taxes S 1,270,694 S 1,270,694 S 1,094,830 S {175,864)
Intergovernmental state
shared revenue
Consolidated taxes 790,070 790,070 772,996 (17,074)
Miscellaneous
Interest income 116,588 116,588 434,921 318,333
Rental income 103,353 103,353 101,244 (2,109)
Other revenue 5,104 5,104 1,099 {4,005)
Total revenue 2,285,809 2,285,809 2,405,090 119,281
Expenditures
Public works
Highway and streets
Current
Salaries and wages 164,229 164,229 149,037 15,192
Employee benefits 120,476 120,476 72,904 47,572
Services and supplie 234,168 234,456 755,397 (520,941)
Capital outlay 1,909,760 1,984,760 199,049 1,785,711
Debt service
Principal - - 2,189 (2,189)
Interest - - 40 (40)
Total expenditures 2,428,633 2,503,921 1,178,616 1,325,305
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
over (under) Expenditures
before Other Financing Uses (142,824} (218,112) 1,226,474 1,444,586
Other Financing Uses
Contingency {72,859) (75,118) - 75,118
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
over {under) Expenditures (215,683) {293,230) 1,226,474 1,519,704
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 7,948,743 7,948,743 8,378,642 429,899
Fund Balances, End of Year S 7,733,060 S 7,655,513 S 9,605,116 S 1,949,603

See Notes to Financial Statements 20



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual - Special Revenue
Fund — Snow Removal

Year Ended June 30, 2024
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue
Charges for services S 695,997 S 695,997 S 681,759 S (14,238)
Interest income 29,147 29,147 17,887 (11,260)
Other revenue 26 26 10,920 10,894
Total revenue 725,170 725,170 710,566 (14,604)
Expenditures
Snow removal
Current
Salaries and wages 130,396 130,396 93,898 36,498
Employee benefits 93,127 93,127 57,262 35,865
Services and supplies 955,421 955,458 483,291 472,167
Capital outlay 120,750 120,750 129,707 (8,957)
Debt service
Principal - - 2,189 (2,189)
Interest - - 40 {40)
Total expenditures 1,299,694 1,299,731 766,387 533,344
Deficiency of Revenue under
Expenditures before Other
Financing Uses (574,524) (574,561) (55,821) 518,740
Other Financing Uses
Contingency (38,991) {38,992) - 38,992
Deficiency of Revenue over
Expenditures (613,515) (613,553) (55,821) (557,732)
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 225,024 225,024 134,717 90,307
Fund Balances, End of Year S (388,491) S (388,529) S 78,896 S (467,425)

See Notes to Financial Statements 21



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Net Position — Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2024

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2023)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Due from other governments
Deposits and interest receivable
Prepaid expenses
Material inventory

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Right of use leased assets
Less accumulated amortization

Net property, plant and
equipment

Other assets
Cash and investments -
restricted
Bond issuance costs, net
Total other assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows related to pensions

Deferred outflows related to OPEB

Total deferred outflows
of resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

See Notes to Financial Statements

2024 2023
Sewer Water
Utility Fund Utility Fund Total Total

$ 4,300,762

S 5,960,189

$ 10,260,951

$ 13,687,550

117,993 362,502 480,495 427,893

- 1,276,045 1,276,045 -

46,779 - 46,779 81,518
18,820 33,575 52,395 54,363
5,301 17,257 22,558 14,448
910 178,030 178,940 145,229
4,490,565 7,827,598 12,318,163 14,411,001
8,460,982 63,523,696 71,984,678 66,055,866
(5,843,795) (18,910,273) (24,754,068) (23,381,879)
56,452 112,904 169,356 169,356
(53,977) (107,954) (161,931) {124,320)
2,619,662 44,618,373 47,238,035 42,719,023
- 45,450 45,450 45,450

- 47,822 47,822 58,256

- 93,272 93,272 103,706
7,110,227 52,539,243 59,649,470 57,233,730
114,106 429,717 543,823 672,177
13,591 76,842 90,433 124,860
127,697 506,559 634,256 797,037
S 7,237,924 $ 53,045,802 $ 60,283,726 $ 58,030,767
22



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Net Position — Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2024

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2023)

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued interest payable
Prepaid user fees and

customer deposits

Compensated absences
OPEB obligation
Lease liability
Loans payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Compensated absences, net
Net pension liability
OPEB obligation
Lease liability, less current portion
Loans payable, less current portion

Total jong-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Deferred inflows related to OPEB

Total deferred inflows
of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Restricted by Tahoe Regional Planning
Agency for capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements

2024 2023
Sewer Water
Utility Fund Utility Fund Total Total

S 73,334 S 797,568 S 870,902 S 475,171
- 140,588 140,588 157,394
68,566 183,534 252,100 279,361
11,893 61,973 73,866 45,336
2,218 12,537 14,755 -
1,316 2,632 3,948 39,401
- 1,369,132 1,369,132 1,335,304
157,327 2,567,964 2,725,291 2,331,967
8,033 24,055 32,088 70,052
332,047 1,338,586 1,670,633 1,813,981
81,028 458,125 539,153 551,205
1,230 2,459 3,689 7,636
- 10,149,853 10,149,853 11,518,986
422,338 11,973,078 12,395,416 13,961,860
579,665 14,541,042 15,120,707 16,293,827
31,603 119,016 150,619 75,381
20,665 116,839 137,504 146,462
52,268 235,855 288,123 221,843
631,933 14,776,897 15,408,830 16,515,670
2,617,116 33,094,297 35,711,413 29,817,696
- 45,450 45,450 45,450
3,988,875 5,129,158 9,118,033 11,651,951
S 6,605,991 S 38,268,905 S 44,874,896 $ 41,515,097

23



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2024

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

2024 2023
Sewer Water
Utility Fund Utility Fund Total Total
Operating Revenue
Charges for services S 1,904,249 S 4,908,550 S 6,812,799 S 6,648,793
Operating Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits 248,201 991,637 1,239,838 1,380,073
Services and supplies 1,452,031 832,889 2,284,920 2,264,173
Depreciation and amortization 85,080 1,403,796 1,488,876 1,440,655
Total operating expenses 1,785,312 3,228,322 5,013,634 5,084,901
Operating Income 118,937 1,680,228 1,799,165 1,563,892
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Interest income 211,568 377,820 589,388 404,912
Loss on disposal of assets - (5,715) (5,715) (326)
Interest expense (240) {300,544) (300,784) {341,103)
Total nonoperating revenue
{expense) 211,328 71,561 282,889 63,483
Income Before Capital Grants 330,265 1,751,789 2,082,054 1,627,375
Capital Grants - 1,277,745 1,277,745 -
Change in Net Position 330,265 3,029,534 3,359,799 1,627,375
Net Position, Beginning of Year 6,275,726 35,239,371 41,515,097 39,887,722

Net Position, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

$ 6,605,991

$ 38,268,905

$ 44,874,896

$ 41,515,097

24



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Cash Flows — Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2024
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to employees and benefits
Cash paid to suppliers

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital expenditures
Principal payments of long-term debt
Principal payments of lease liabilities
Interest/amortization paid on
long-term debt

Net Cash used for Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Investing Activities
Interest on investments

Net Cash from investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of
Year (Including Restricted Cash Held
in the Water Fund)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of

Year (Including Restricted Cash Held
in the Water Fund)

See Notes to Financial Statements

2024 2023
Sewer Water
Utility Fund Utility Fund Total Total

$ 1,863,653

S 4,871,251

$ 6,734,904

S 6,566,568

(228,058) (932,568) (1,160,626) (1,159,597)
(1,375,274) (521,227) (1,896,501) (2,361,107)
260,321 3,417,456 3,677,777 3,045,864
(937,661) (5,080,394) (6,018,055) (2,161,426)
- (1,335,305) (1,335,305) (1,611,162)

(13,134) (26,267) (39,401) (62,457)
(240) (300,763) (301,003) (350,716)
(951,035) (6,742,729) (7,693,764) (4,185,761)
211,568 377,820 589,388 404,912
211,568 377,820 589,388 404,912
(479,146) (2,947,453) (3,426,599) (734,985)
4,779,908 8,953,092 13,733,000 14,467,985

S 4,300,762

$ 6,005,639

$ 10,306,401

$ 13,733,000

25



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Statement of Cash Flows — Enterprise Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2024

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2023)

2024 2023
Sewer Water
Utility Fund Utility Fund Total Total
Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash from Operating Activities
Operating income S 118,937 S 1,680,228 S 1,799,165 S 1,563,892
Adjustments to reconcile
operating income to net cash
from operating activities
Depreciation and
amortization 85,080 1,403,796 1,488,876 1,440,655
Changes in
Deferred outflows, inflows,
and net pension/OPEB
liability 16,711 71,705 88,416 209,682
Accounts receivable (12,881) (39,721) {52,602) (49,994)
Due from other governments 34,739 - 34,739 90,273
Deposits and interest
receivable 655 1,313 1,968 (38,682)
Material inventory {(33) (33,678) {33,711) {(1,693)
Prepaid expenses (2,806) (5,304) (8,110) 12,941
Accounts payable - trade 45,087 350,644 395,731 (198,455)
Compensated absences 3,202 (12,636) (9,434) 10,794
Prepaid user fees and
customer deposits (28,370) 1,109 (27,261) 6,451
Total adjustments 141,384 1,737,228 1,878,612 1,481,972
Net Cash from Operating Activities S 260,321 S 3,417,456 S 3,677,777 S 3,045,864
Non-Cash Capital and Related Financing
Activities
Loss on disposal of assets S - S 5,715 S 5,715 ) -

See Notes to Financial Statements 26



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Note1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Kingsbury General Improvement District (the “District”) was organized under the provisions of Nevada
Revised Statues Chapter 318. Under the Statute, the District has been granted authority to provide water,
sewer, and road maintenance services for the benefit of individuals residing within its geographical boundaries
and to provide water to portions of nearby properties outside of the District’s geographical boundaries.

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, as applied to government units.

Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order
to provide an understanding of changes in the District’s financial position and operations. However, comparative
(i.e., presentation of prior year totals for each governmental fund type) data has not been presented in each of
the statements since its inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read.

Financial Reporting Entity

The District is governed by an elected Board of Trustees. The financial statements of the District consist only of
the funds and account groups of the District for which the District is considered to be financially accountable.
The District is not financially accountable for any other governmental entity since no other entities are
considered to be controlled by or dependent on the District. Control or fiscal dependence is determined on the
basis of budget adopting authority, taxing authority, funding and appointment of the respective governing
board.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of position and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity
has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenue, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which expenses of a given function or segment is offset
by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Expenses reported for functional activities include allocated indirect expenses. Program revenue includes

(1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenue are reported instead as general revenue.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

27



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenue is recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both measurable and
available. Revenue is considered to be available when it is collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenue to be
available if it is collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

Property taxes, intergovernmental revenue (consolidated taxes), and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received
by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Snow Removal Fund (Special Revenue Fund): Effective January 1, 1998, by Board resolution, the District created
the Snow Removal Fund to account for the snow removal fee revenue and snow removal related expenditures.
Fund balances are considered committed for use during a subsequent year. Interfund loans from the General
fund are authorized in years operational requirement results in a Fund balance deficit.

In addition, the government has the following governmental fund:

Tahoe Bond Act Erosion Control Capital Projects Fund (Capital Projects Fund): The Tahoe Bond Act Erosion
Control Capital Projects Fund was created August 11, 1998 to account for the receipt and disbursement of
erosion control grant funds under the Tahoe Bond Act and other grants funding erosion control capital projects.
There has been no activity in this fund since the year ended June 30, 2004.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds: The Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations of the water and
sewer departments. Enterprise Funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the Board has decided that the determination of
revenues earned, costs incurred, or net income is necessary or useful for management accountability. Long-term
liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds.

28



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the
government’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenue include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, and (2) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenue included all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenue and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the enterprise fund is
charges to customers for services. The District also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of connection
fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses.

All interest income is allocated between the General Fund, Enterprise Funds (Sewer Fund and Water Fund), and
Snow Removal Special Revenue Fund, based on a percentage for each fund as derived from the cash position of
those funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The District’s cash and cash equivalents include cash on deposit at one commercial bank and in the State
Treasurer’s Local Government investment Pool. Cash equivalents also include highly liquid investments that are
available on demand and are, therefore, classified as cash equivalents on the Statements of Cash Flows.

Investments are recorded at fair value, which is the same as the value of the pool shares. The State of Nevada
Local Government Investment Pool is an unrated external investment pool that does not provide information on
realized or unrealized gain or loss activity. Accordingly, changes in the investment pool are reflected as net
investment income in the accompanying financial statements.

Restricted cash is held based on agreed upon reserve requirements from external parties.

Accounts Receivable

Exchange receivables due from customers are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal terms
requiring payment within 30 days from the invoice date. Exchange receivables are stated at the amount billed to
the customer. The Company charges interest on overdue customer account balances at a rate of 10%. Payments
of exchange receivables are allocated to the specific billings identified on the customer’s billings summary, or, if
unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid billing.

29



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

The District considers receivables at June 30, 2024 to be fully collectible; therefore, no allowance for doubtful
accounts is required. Any accounts receivable which are subsequently deemed uncollectible will be expensed at
that time. The District makes no provision for estimated uncollectible ad valorem taxes receivable. Adequate
legal remedies are presently available to enforce the collection of such taxes and any taxes which may prove
uncollectible should not be material in amount.

Due from Other Governments
Amounts due from other governments are for billing adjustments received by the District after year-end.
Material Inventory

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental funds
are recorded as expenditures when purchased.

Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, erosion
contro! improvements and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Infrastructure prior to July 1, 2003 is excluded from these
numbers. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$1,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Structure and improvements 27-35
Utility plant 3-50
Transmission and distribution mains 8-75
Equipment 3-35
Infrastructure 10-50

30



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Right to use leased assets are recognized at the lease commencement date and represent the District’s right to
use an underlying asset for the lease term. Right to use leased assets are measured at the initial value of the
lease liability plus any payments made to the lessor before commencement of the Jease term, less any lease
incentives received from the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term, plus any initial direct
costs necessary to please the lease asset into service. Right to use leased assets are amortized over the shorter
of the lease term or usefu! lives of the underlying asset using the straight-line method. The amortization period
varies from 2 to 5 years.

impairment

The District reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events and
circumstances indicated that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable form the estimated future
cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In case where undiscounted expected future
cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which the
carrying value exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in performing this
assessment include current operating results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the property is used,
and the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors. Based on this assessment,
there was no impairment at June 30, 2024.

Loans Payable

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.

Compensated Absences
All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

In the enterprise funds, compensated absences are recorded when the liabilities are incurred. In the
governmental funds, vested or accumulated vacation leave and sick leave that is expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental
fund that will pay it.

Vacation may be accumulated by employees up to certain maximums and is payable upon retirement or
termination. Employees with over five years of service receive accrued sick pay at 50% of their current hourly
rate upon retirement or termination. The financial statements reflect the vacation accrual plus 50% accrual of
sick pay for all eligible non-exempt employees. Exempt employees’ personal time off (PTO) is recorded in the
financial statements at 100%.

31



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Grant Revenue

The District receives grant monies from other governmental entities. Grant revenue for the water line
replacement project is reported and accounted for in the Water Utility Fund. Grant revenue from other activities
is reported in the applicable fund when expended. Grant revenue is recognized when qualifying expenditures
are incurred.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, a separate section is reported for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The
District reports deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB on the government wide and
proprietary fund statements of net position.

In addition to liabilities, a separate section is reported for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District reports
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB on the government wide and proprietary fund
statements of net position and related to unavailable revenue on the governmental funds balance sheet.

Fund Equity

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is classified as net position and
displayed as follows:

Net Investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets and leases, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization and related debt, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted net position — consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by (1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or (2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The District has restricted amounts for deposits which
are restricted by the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency.

Unrestricted net position — ali other net position that does not meet the definition of “net investment in capital
assets” or “restricted.”

The District’s policy is to first apply expenditures against restricted net position balances and then unrestricted
balances.

in the year ended June 30, 2024, the Board designated that funds be designated for the future budgeted

purchases of vehicles. Amounts are designated as follows: $248,563 in the general fund, $110,068 in the snow
removal fund, $399,536 in the water utility fund and $8,320 in the sewer utility fund.

32



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

In the governmental fund financial statement, fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — represents amounts that are either not in a spendable form or are legally or contractually
required to remain intact. Prepaid expenses are reported as nonspendable fund balances.

Restricted — represents amounts which can be spent only for specific purposes because of state or federal laws,
or externally imposed conditions. The District has no restricted fund balances.

Committed — represents amounts which can be used only for specific purposes determined by the members of
the governing Board’s formal action through a resolution or action. The District has committed fund balances of
$358,631 related to board designated amounts for future budgeted purchases of vehicles.

Assigned — represents amounts that are intended by the District for specific purposes but do not require action
by the governing Board. The District’s assigned funds represent the full fund balances assigned for next year’s
budget deficit and for future snow removal services.

Unassigned — represents all amounts not included in other classifications.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available,
the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which
committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent
first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Board of
Directors has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees'
Retirement System of Nevada (PERS) and additions to/deductions from PERS's fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments {including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Self Insurance
Trust Fund, Public Employees’ Benefits Program (PEBP) and additions to/deductions from PEBP's fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PEBP. For this purpose, PEBP
recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. PEBP’s cash and cash
equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments that are both (a) readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and (b) so near to materiality that they present insignificant risk of changes in value due to
charging interest rates.

33



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note2- Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative Code

The District conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration for the year ended
June 30, 2024.

Note3- Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The budget document is compiled pursuant to the Local Government Budget Act set forth in Chapter 354 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes. These statutes have provisions for preparation, filing, notice, public hearing, and
adoption in connection with the budgetary process for Nevada local governments. Budgets for all funds are
adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), as applied to government
units. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Budgets are required by law for all governmental fund
types and proprietary fund types. Expenditures may not legally exceed budget appropriations at the fund or
function level; for proprietary funds, expenditures include operating and non-operating expenses only.

Note4 - Cash and Investments

Cash and Deposits

The District maintains one common checking account and a temporary cash investment account for all funds.
Detail of cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2024, is as follows:

Petty cash S 2,384
Cash in checking 670,965

Total cash 673,349
Held by Douglas County 1,702
Fixed Income Securities 1,787,664
State of Nevada Local Government

Investment Pool (valued at NAVY) 17,413,554
Total cash and investments and cash and investments - restricted S 19,876,269

The District’s fixed income securities all have investment maturities in 1-5 years.

34



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

In the case of deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits
may not be returned to it. The District’s policy is to voluntarily participate in the Nevada State Collateral Pool for
public fund deposits. The bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to
an aggregate of $250,000.

The collateral pool is administered and monitored by the Nevada State Treasurer’s Office. Due toits
participation in the Nevada State Collateral Pool, the District’s deposits were primarily insured and collateralized
except as noted above.

Pooled Investment Funds

Pooled investment funds consist of cash deposited in the interest-bearing State of Nevada’s Local Government
Investment Pool. Investments are recorded at fair value. The State of Nevada Local Government Investment
Pool is an unrated external investment pool that does not provide information on realized or unrealized gain or
loss activity. Accordingly, changes in the investment pool are reflected as net investment income in the
accompanying financial statements.

Earnings and realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the Combined Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance and the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund
Equity, captioned as investment income.

Interest rate risk — Interest rate risk is the risk of possible reduction in the value of a security, especially a bond,
resulting from a rise in interest rates. This risk can be mitigated by diversification of durations of fixed rate
investments held in the investment portfolio. State statute limits investment in bills and notes of the U.S.
Treasury, along with obligations of an agency of the U.S. or a corporation sponsored by the U.S. government to
those maturating within ten years from the date of purchase. The weighted average maturity of the District’s
investments is less than three years.

Credit risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations and is a function of the credit quality ratings of investments. The District follows State statute for
reducing exposure to investment credit risk by investing in U.S. Agency securities.

The District is invested in the Local Government Investment Pool as of June 30, 2024. The LGIP operates under
NRS and is administered by the Office of the State Treasurer. The LGIP invest in securities as allowed by statute.
The LGIP is valued at NAV and therefore is not valued according to the hierarchy. At June 30, 2024, the LGIP had
a weighted average maturity of 82 days. The District is able to withdraw funds on a daily basis and has no
outstanding commitments as of June 30, 2024.

The fair value of the pooled investments deposited in the State of Nevada’s Local Government Investment Pool
is equal to the value of the pool shares. At June 30, 2024, the carrying amount of $17,413,554 is recorded at fair
value, and the various funds of the Kingsbury General Improvement District in the State of Nevada’s Local
Government Investment Pool was approximately 88% of the District’s total cash and investment balance.

35



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

The District’s deposits are maintained in recognized pooled investment funds under the care of oversight
agencies. The State of Nevada’s Local Government Investment Pool is administered by the Office of the State

Treasurer. In addition, the Local Government Investment Pool has an Investment Committee and is subject to
annual audits.

Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. The District does not have any investments that are measured using Level 3 inputs.

As of June 30, 2024, the District had the following recurring fair value measurements:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Instruments by fair value level
U.S. agencies S 1,787,664 S - S 1,787,664 S -
Total investment measured
at fair value S 1,787,664 S - S 1,787,664 S -

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used by the District for its Level 2 assets:

U.S. agencies — Valued using matrix pricing and market corroborated pricing models.

36



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024
Note 5- Fixed Assets
A summary of changes in general fixed assets in the governmental activities follows:
Deletions/
July 1, 2023 Additions Transfers June 30, 2024
Capital assets, being depreciated
Equipment and vehicles S 1,594,767 S 37,801 S {188,220) S 1,444,348
Office equipment 30,046 1,839 (1,499) 30,386
Land 126,482 - - 126,482
Infrastructure 12,678,728 209,776 26,280 12,914,784
Construction in progress {infrastructure} 223,940 79,340 {(26,670) 276,610
Total capital assets, being depreciated 14,653,963 328,756 {190,109} 14,792,610
Less accumulated depreciation (8,584,548) (480,227) 190,109 (8,874,666)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 6,069,415 (151,471) - 5,917,944
Right to use leased assets, being amortized
Buildings and improvements 15,594 - - 15,594
Furniture and equipment 3,223 - - 3,223
Total right to use leased assets,
being amortized 18,817 - - 18,817
Less accumulated amortization {13,811) (4,178) - {17,989)
Total right to use leased assets,
being amortized, net 5,006 {4,178} - 828
Governmental activities capital assets, net S 6,074,421 S (155,649) S - S 5,918,772

The General Fund and Snow Removal Special Fund are the sources of funds for the acquisition of general fixed
assets.

37



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

A summary of enterprise fund property, plant and equipment for the year ended June 30, 2024 follows:

Deletions/
July 1, 2023 Additions Transfers June 30, 2024
Equipment and vehicles S 5,509,308 ) 338,468 S (51,038) S 5,796,738
Infrastructure 6,010,872 1,432,624 796,996 8,240,492
Utility plant 52,101,105 2,014,403 264,978 54,380,486
Ozone facility 805,127 3,306 - 808,433
Construction in progress 1,629,454 2,229,254 (1,100,179) 2,758,529
66,055,866 6,018,055 (89,243) 71,984,678
Less accumulated depreciation (23,381,879) (1,451,265} 79,076 (24,754,068)
Property, plant, and
equipment, net 42,673,987 4,566,790 (10,167) 47,230,610
Right to use leased assets, being amortized
Buildings and improvements 140,347 - - 140,347
Furniture and equipment 29,009 - - 29,009
Total right to use leased assets,
being amortized 169,356 - - 169,356
Less accumulated amortization (124,320) (37,611) - {161,931)
Total right to use leased assets,
being amortized, net 45,036 (37,611) - 7,425
Business-type activities capital assets, net S 42,719,023 S 4,529,179 S (10,167) S 47,238,035

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Depreciation Amortization

Governmental activities
Highways and streets S 421,192 S 2,089
Snow removal 59,035 2,089
Total depreciation and amortization expense, governmental activities S 480,227 S 4,178

Business-type activities
Water S 1,378,722 S 25,074
Sewer 72,543 12,537
Total depreciation and amortization expense, business-type activities $ 1,451,265 S 37,611

38



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Note 6 - Compensated Absences

The following schedule summarizes the changes in accrued compensated absences:

Beginning of year S 133,124
Increases 80,589
Decreases (86,599)
End of year S 127,114
Due within one year S 86,599

Note 7- Loans Payable

In November 2007, the District entered into an additional loan contract with the State of Nevada in order to
construct projects for the public water system. The maximum amount available from the “Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund” is $3,000,000. Interest on any loan funds disbursed shall accrue at 2.96% and is payable
semiannually on January 1° and July 1% of each year. Principal payments shall be made semiannually on
January 1% and luly 1%, commencing on the January 1%t or July 1%t immediately following the date the District
draws the maximum authorized (i.e., $3,000,000) under the loan contract, the date the District completes the
project, or three years from the date of the initial principal advance under the loan contract, whichever occurs
first. In connection with the loan, the District delivered a $3,000,000 bond to the State Treasurer as collateral in
the event of default by the District. The District received a grant to fund 61.9% of the water capital projects and
used the loan proceeds to fund 38.1% of the project. As of June 30, 2024, the District had outstanding $780,592

in loan proceeds, which is the legal amount outstanding.

In June 2010, the District entered into an additional loan contract with the State of Nevada in order to construct
projects for the public water system. The maximum amount available from the “Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund” is $3,306,650. interest on any loan funds disbursed shall accrue at 2.85% and is payable semiannually on
January 1% and July 1% of each year. Principal payments shall be made semiannually on January 1% and July 1%,
commencing on the January 1% or July 1% immediately following the date the District draws the maximum
authorized (i.e., $3,306,650) under the loan contract, the date the District completes the project, or three years
from the date of the initial principal advance under the loan contract, whichever occurs first. In connection with
the loan, the District delivered a $3,306,650 bond to the State Treasurer as collateral in the event of default by
the District. The District used the loan proceeds to fund 100% of this project, which is related to the installation
of water meters. As of June 30, 2024, the District had outstanding $1,210,710 in loan proceeds, which is the

legal amount outstanding.

39



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

In March 2012, Kingsbury General Improvement District obtained a low-interest, subsidized loan from the State
of Nevada State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000. On October 29, 2014, the
loan amount was increased to $11,000,000. Interest on any loan funds disbursed shall accrue at 2.39% and is
payable semiannually on January 1% and July 1% of each year. Principal payments shall be made semiannually on
January 1% and July 1%, commencing on the January 1° or July 1% immediately following the date the District
draws the maximum authorized (i.e., $11,000,000) under the loan contract, the date the District completes the
project, or three years from the date of the initial principal advance under the loan contract, whichever occurs
first. The loan is secured by a general obligation bond of 511,000,000 issued to the Nevada State Treasurer in
the event of default by the District. This loan will provide 80% funding of the Water Treatment Plant
improvements. As of June 30, 2024, the District had drawn the entire loan and outstanding $5,755,783 in loan
proceeds, which is the legal amount outstanding.

In January 2015, Kingsbury General Improvement District obtained an additional low-interest subsidized loan
from the State of Nevada State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) in an amount not to exceed $6,000,000. Interest on
any loan funds disbursed shall accrue at 2.28% and is payable semiannually on January 1% and July 1°* of each
year. Principal payments shall be made semiannually on January 1% and July 1%, commencing on the January 1*
or July 1* immediately following the date the District draws the maximum authorized (i.e., $6,000,000) under
the loan contract, the date the District completes the project, or three years from the date of the initial principal
advance under the loan contract, whichever occurs first. The loan is secured by a general obligation bond of
$6,000,000 issued to the Nevada State Treasurer and is recorded in the water utility fund in the event of default
by the District. The loan, which supplements the 2012 loan, will fund approximately 80% of the Water
Treatment Plant improvements. As of June 30, 2024, the District had drawn the entire loan and outstanding
$3,771,900 in loan proceeds, which is the legal amount outstanding.

The following schedule summarizes the changes in long-term debt:

Beginning Ending Current
Direct Borrowings Balance Additions Payments Balance Portion
State of Nevada
$3,000,000 089,266 - (208,674) 780,592 214,896
$3,306,650 1,393,254 - (182,544) 1,210,710 187,783
511,000,000 6,401,348 - (645,565) 5,755,783 661,086
$6,000,000 4,070,422 - (298,522) 3,771,900 305,367

$ 12,854,290 S (1,335,305) $ 11,518,985 $ 1,369,132

i
1

40



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

The annual requirements to amortize the existing balances drawn on the loans are as follows:

Direct Borrowings

Fiscal Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 1,369,132 S 272,610 S 1,641,742
2026 1,403,827 237,915 1,641,742
2027 1,439,409 202,331 1,641,740
2028 1,357,694 165,837 1,523,531
2029 1,271,635 133,684 1,405,319
2030-2034 4,294,212 259,091 4,553,303
2035-2039 383,076 6,563 389,639

$ 11,518,985 S 1,278,031 $ 12,797,016

Interest expense totaled $290,350 for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Note 8- GASB 87 Leases

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the District determines (1) the discount rate it uses
to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments. The District
uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. When the interest rate charged by the lessor is
not provided, the District generally uses the US Treasury monthly average rate at the beginning of the fiscal year
based on the term length with an adjustment for the risk-free rate. The lease term included the noncancellable
period of the lease. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are composed of fixed
payments and purchase option price that the District is reasonably certain to exercise. The District monitors
changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will remeasure any lease asset
and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease liability.
Lease assets are reported as right to use along with other capital assets. Lease liabilities are reported with debt

on the statement of net position.

The District has entered into various agreements to lease office equipment and a building with initial terms
ranging from 36 months to 5 years. The various leases terminate between August 2023 and May 2026. During
the year, the District recorded $41,789 in amortization expense and $801 in interest expense. The District used
discount rates ranging from 2% to 6% based on the US Treasury monthly average rate based on the term length

as described above.

41



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Remaining obligations associated with these leases are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 S 4,386 S 123 S 4,509
2026 4,099 35 4,134

) 8,485 S 158 S 8,643

Long-term lease liability activity is summarized as follows:

July 1, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024

Office space S 37,165 S - $ (37,165) S -
Equipment 15,098 - {6,613) 8,485
S 52,263 S - S (43,778) S 8,485

Note 9- Segment Information for Enterprise Funds

The District maintains two Enterprise Funds which provide water and sewer services. Segment information is
detailed in the basic financial statements on pages 22-26.

Note 10 - Pensions
General Information About the Pension Plan
Plan Description

The District contributes to the Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS). PERS
administers a cost sharing, multiple employer, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system which
includes both Regular and Police/Fire members. PERS was established by the Nevada Legislature in 1947,
effective July 1, 1948. PERS is administered to provide a reasonable base income to qualified employees who
have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed or substantially
impaired by age or disability.

Benefits Provided

Benefits, as required by Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the number of years of
accredited service at time of retirement and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive
months with special provisions for members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010 and July 1, 2015. Benefit
payments to which participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan include pension benefits,
disability benefits, and survivor benefits.

42



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed at 2.5 percent of average compensation for each
accredited year of service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on or after July 1, 2001, this multiplier is
2.67% of average compensation. For members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.50%
service time factor. Regular members entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015, have a 2.25% multiplier for all years
of service. PERS offers several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general,
allow the retired employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her
lifetime and various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death.

Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 — 286.579.
Vesting

Regular members entering PERS prior to January 1, 2010 are eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of
service, at age 60 with 10 years of service, or at any age with 30 years of service. Regular members entering
PERS on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, or age 62 with 10
years of service, or any age with 30 years of service. Regular members entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015 are
eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or at 55 with 30 years
of service, or at any age with 33 1/3 years of service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a
member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of
average compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon
completion of five years of service.

Contributions

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution
rates, is set by statute. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan prior
to July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution plans. One plan provides for matching
employee and employer contributions, while the other plan provides for employer-pay contributions only.
Under the matching Employee/Employer Contribution plan a member may, upon termination of service for
which contribution is required, withdraw employee contributions which have been credited to their account. All
membership rights and active service credit in the System are canceled upon withdrawal of contributions from
the member’s account. If EPC was selected, the member cannot convert to the Employee/Employer
Contribution plan.

PERS’ basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a percentage of salary
throughout an employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates required to fund PERS
on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the required rates established

by the Nevada Legislature. These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286.421 and 286.450.

The actuary funding method used is the entry age actuarial cost method. it is intended to meet the funding
objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage of salary.

43



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Statutory Employer/employee matching rate was 17.50%
and 15.50%, respectively, for Regular employees. The Employer-pay contribution (EPC) rate was 33.50% and
29.75%, respectively, for June 30, 2024 and 2023 for Regular employees.

The District’s contributions were $152,969 for the year ended June 30, 2024.
PERS Investment Policy
PERS’ policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the PERS

Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of the
System. The following was the PERS Board adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022:

Target
Asset Class Allocation Long-Term Geometric Expected Rate of Return*
U.S. Stocks 42% 5.50%
International Stocks 18% 5.50%
U.S. Bonds 28% 0.75%
Private Markets 12% 6.65%

*As of June 30, 2023, PERS' long-term inflation assumption was 2.50%.

Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2024, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of the net
pension liability of $2,069,666, was based on the District’s share of contributions to the PERS pension plan
relative to the total contributions of all participating PERS employers and members. At June 30, 2023, the
District’s proportion was 0.01134 percent, which was a decrease of 0.00104 percent from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2022.

Pension Liability Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following presents the net pension liability of the District as of June 30, 2024, calculated using the discount
rate of 7.25%, as well as what the District’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25%} than the current discount
rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
Net pension liability S 3,220,757 S 2,069,666 S 1,119,740

44



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the PERS Comprehensive
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (“ACFR”), available on the PERS website. Additional information
supporting the schedule of employer allocations and the schedule of pension amounts by employer is located in

the PERS ACFR.

Actuarial Assumptions

The District’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total pension
liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

Payroll growth 3.50%

Investment rate of return/discount rate 7.25%

Productivity pay increase 0.50%

Projected salary increases Regular: 4.20% to 9.10%, depending on service
Consumer price index 2.50%

Other assumptions Same as those used in the June 30, 2023 funding

actuarial valuation

Mortality rates for healthy regular members and contingent beneficiaries were based on Pub-2010 General
Healthy Retiree Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table with rates increased by 30% for males and
15% for females. For ages before age 40, mortality rates are based on Pub-2010 General Employee Amount-
Weighted Above-Median Mortality Tables. For ages 40 through 50, the rates were smoothed between the above
tables. Mortality rates for disabled regular members based on Pub-1020 Non-Safely Disabled Retiree Amount-
Weighted Mortality Table with rates increased by 20% for males and 15% for females.

Mortality rates for current beneficiaries were based on Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor Amount-Weighted Above
Median Mortality Table with rates increased by 15% for males and 30% for females. For ages before age 35,
mortality rates are based on Pub-2010 General Employee Amount-Weighted Above-Median Mortality Table. For
ages 35 through 45, the rates were smoothed between the above tables.

Mortality rates pro pre-retirement regular members were based on Pub-2010 General Employee Amount-
Weighted Above- Median Mortality Table.

The mortality tables were projected generationally with the two-dimensional mortality improvement scale MP-
2020.

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of the experience study
issued September 10, 2021.

45



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25% as of June 30, 2023. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan contributions will be made in amounts
consistent with statutory provisions and recognizing the plan’s current funding policy and cost-sharing
mechanism between employers and members. For this purpose, all contributions that are intended to fund
benefits for all plan members and their beneficiaries are included, except the projected contributions that are
intended to fund the service costs for future plan members and their beneficiaries are not included.

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability as of June 30, 2023.

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized pension expense of $228,465. Amounts resulting from
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2024, At June 30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S 269,773 S 19,373
Changes of assumptions 193,970 -
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments - -
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 66,254 169,783
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 152,969 -

S 682,966 S 189,156

The $152,969 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, resulting from District
contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
in the year ended June 30, 2025.

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through
PERS (active and inactive employees) is 5.63 years.

46



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Other estimated amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, excluding contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Fiscal Years Ending June 30,

2023 S 37,760
2024 39,882
2025 252,885
2026 15,929
2027 (5,615)
S 340,841

Additional Information — Additional information supporting the Schedule of Employer Allocations and the
Schedule of Pension Amounts by Employer is located in the PERS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
available on the PERS website at www.nvpers.org under Quick Links — Publications.

Note 11 - Other Post-Employment Retirement Obligation (OPEB)
Plan Description and Eligibility

NRS 287.023 allows retired employees of governmental entities with the State of Nevada to join the State’s
Public Employee Benefit Program (PEBP), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered
by a nine-member governing board. PEBP provides medical, prescription, vision, life and accident insurance, and
dental for retirees. The Plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established
to account for the Plan and no individual financial reports are issued.

Eligibility and subsidy requirements are governed by statutes of the State of Nevada and can only be amended
through legislation. The statutes were revised effective of November 30, 2008 to create new participation
limitations so that only active members of PEBP can elect coverage after retirement. Based on the statute
revision, former employees and retirees must have retired and joined PEBP by September 1, 2008 to elect PEBP
membership unless the District is currently utilizing PEBP’s as its health insurance provider.

Benefits provided

PEBP provides medical, dental, vision, mental health and substance abuse and also offers fully insured HMO
products. Long-term disability and life insurance benefits are fully insured by outside carriers.

47



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Employees covered by benefit terms

At June 30, 2024, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 5
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefit payments -
Active plan members 5

10
Contributions

Per NRS 287 contribution requirements of the participating entities and covered employees are established and
may be amended by the PEBP Board. The Boards’ contractually required contribution for the year ended

June 30, 2024 was $18,625, actuarially determined as an amount that is expected to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year. Employees are not required to contribute to the OPEB plan.
Total OPEB Liability

The District's total OPEB liability of $640,356 was measured as of June 30, 2024.

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2024 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation rate 2.50%

Salary increases 3.00%, including inflation

Health care trend rates 6.80% in 2024, fluctuating down to 3.90% by 2075
Retiree's share of benefit-related costs Al retirees currently covered by the PEBP are assumed

to retain their existing election until death

The discount rate was based on the yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.

Mortality rates were based on Pub-2010 mortality table for males and females projected 18 years; this
assumption does not include a margin for future improvements in longevity.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2024 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study issued September 2021.

48



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability:

Balance, June 30, 2023 S 637,231
Changes for year
Service cost 19,298
Interest 23,652
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (22,767)
Benefit payments (17,058)
Net changes 3,125
Balance, June 30, 2023 S 640,356

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.93 percent) or
1-percentage-point higher (4.93 percent) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
2.93% 3.93% 4,93%
Net OPEB liability S 727,732 S 640,356 S 568,374

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or
1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Health Care
Cost Trend
1% Decrease Rates 1% Increase
Net OPEB liability S 555,339 S 640,356 S 746,117

49



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized OPEB expense of $46,175. The table below shows
deferred resources as of the year ended June 30, 2024:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Changes of assumptions S - S 118,891
Differences between expected and actual experience 104,547 40,073

S 104,547 S 158,964

Future recognition of these deferred resources is shown below:

Fiscal Years Ending June 30,

2025 $ 3,225
2026 (9,546)
2027 (41,268)
2028 (6,335)
2029 (493)

$ (54,417)

Note 12 - Commitments

On September 17, 2019, the District awarded a five-year Sanitary Sewer System Services Contract with a
contract period of October 1, 2019, through Sept. 30, 2024, in the amount of $727,110 with approved hourly
rates for force account work. For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District incurred $130,909 for this work.

On March 17, 2021, the District approved an Agreement for Legal Services with Minden Lawyers, LLC. For a term
of three (3) years commencing April 1, 2021, renewable annually by mutual consent of District and Firm, with a
monthly retainer amount payable of $4,000 and an hourly rate of $260/hr. On June 13, 2023, the District
approved an Agreement renewable (3) years commencing July 1, 2023, with a monthly retainer amount payable
of $2,500 and an hourly rate of $310/hr. As of June 30, 2024, the District incurred $38,253 for this work.

On September 20, 2022, the District approved a three-year Snow Removal Contract with Manchester
Enterprises, Inc. on a time and material basis with minimum guaranteed annual payments of $315,000 for fiscal
year 2022/2023, $250,000 for fiscal year 2023/2024, $250,000 for fiscal year 2024/2025, plus any fuel
surcharges. The contract period is September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2025, with optional annua! extensions
with minimum annual payments $235,000. As of June 30, 2024, the District incurred $512,873 for this work.

50



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
june 30, 2024

On April 20, 2021, the District approved an IT management contract with Pac States Integrated Business
Technology for services related to IT management service office server/computers, backup etc. with a monthly
amount payable of $1,132 and a onetime setup fee $1,755. In December 2021 the monthly amount payable
increased to $1,223 to include email security. As of June 30, 2024, the District incurred $14,670 for this work.

On June 22, 2021, the District approved an employment contract with the General Manager, Mitchell S. Dion for
a term of three (3) years beginning July 26, 2021, and ending June 30, 2024. On August 15, 2023, the District
approved a 5% percent increase in salary and then on September 19,2023 extended his contract to

June 30,2025. As of June 30, 2024, the General Manager salary is $181,135.

On June 15, 2021, the District approved an engineering services agreement with Dowl Engineering for services
related to Sewer Master Plan for an amount not to exceed $172,500 As of June 30, 2024, the District incurred
$20,255 for this work.

On April 19, 2022, the District approved an architectural services agreement with Paul Cavin Architect LLC for
services related to Equipment Storage Facility Project for an amount not to exceed $26,300 As of June 30, 2024,
the District incurred $0 for this work.

On September 20, 2022, the District approved an architectural services agreement with Paul Cavin Architect LLC
for services related to 160 Pineridge improvements for an amount not to exceed $192,700. On February 6,2023,
the District approved additional architectural service for second floor at 160 Pineridge improvement in the
amount of $73,000 bringing the total amount not to exceed $265,700 As of June 30, 2023, the District incurred
$262,780 for this work.

On September 20, 2022, the District approved an engineering services agreement with Dowl Engineering for
services related to FY 23 Waterline and Road Improvement Project for an amount not to exceed $315,067. Then
on October 17, 2023, the District approved an additional $25,000 bringing the total not to exceed $340,067. As
of June 30, 2024, the District incurred $147,696 for this work.

On September 20, 2022, the District approved an engineering services agreement with Farr West Engineering for
services related to FY 23-25 Waterline and Road Improvement Project for an amount not to exceed $68,012. As
of June 30, 2024, the District incurred $13,222 for this work.

On October 18, 2022, the District approved a Geotech services agreement with Eastern Sierra Engineering for
services related to EY 23-25 Waterline and Road Improvement Project for an amount not to exceed $119,7000.
As of June 30, 2024, the District incurred $23,587 for this work.

On December 13, 2022, the District approved a professional services agreement with Resource Concepts Inc. for

services related to Pump Station 3 Rehabilitation for an amount not to exceed $24,500 As of June 30, 2024, the
District incurred $30,700 for this work.

51



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

On January 17, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for
services related to Palisades Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation for an amount not to exceed $40,000 As of
June 30, 2024, the District incurred $15,357 for this work.

On March 21, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for
services related to Market Street Lift Station Repairs and Renovation for an amount not to exceed $113,000 As
of June 30, 2024, the District incurred $13,527 for this work.

On April 18, 2023, the District approved an audit proposal for audit services for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2023, 2024, and 2025 (with possible two one-year extensions) in the amounts of $50,000, respectively for each
of the three fiscal years and reimbursement of necessary out of pocket expenses amounts for travel and other
expenditures in accordance with the proposal. As of June 30, 2024, the District had not incurred $50,803 for this
work.

On April 18, 2023, the District approved an award of a construction contract to Farr Construction Corp for the FY
2024 Water & Road Improvement Project in an amount not to exceed $2,314,136. As of June 30, 2024, the
District incurred $1,293,621 for this work.

On June 13, 2023, the District approved an award of a construction contract to Group West Construction Inc for
the 160 Pine Ridge Building Renovation and Repair in an amount not to exceed $2,349,067. On

November 14,2023, the District approved change orders bay doors and siding repairs in the amount of $23,264.
Then on April 16, 2024, the District approved window and door replacements in the amount of $72,509, which
brings the total not to exceed $2,444,840. As of June 30, 2024, the District incurred $2,442,370 for this work.

On June 13, 2023, the District approved an award of a construction contract to Express Sewer & Drain, Inc. for
the Palisades Lift Station Rehabilitation in an amount not to exceed $106,000. As of June 30, 2024, the District
incurred $111,062 for this work.

On June 13, 2023, the District approved a procurement contract with Brightly Software Inc. for services related
to Computerized Maintenance Management Software for an amount not to exceed $14,179 As of June 30, 2024,
the District incurred $4,393 for this work.

On June 13, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for services
related to 2023 PAVER Update Project for an amount not to exceed $29,880 As of June 30, 2024, the District
incurred $29,880 for this work.

On July 18, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for services
related to 2024 Waterline and Road Repair and Renovation Project for an amount not to exceed $365,042 As of
June 30, 2024, the District incurred $140,442 for this work.

On July 18, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with Eastern Sierra Engineering for

services related to 2024 Waterline and Road Repair and Renovation Project for an amount not to exceed
$112,234 As of June 30, 2024, the District incurred $1140 for this work.

52



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

On September 19, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for
services related to Ponderosa MHP Water System for an amount not to exceed $322,069 As of June 30, 2024,
the District incurred $216,578 for this work.

On September 19, 2023, the District approved an engineering services agreement with Eastern Sierra
Engineering for services related to Ponderosa MHP Water System for an amount not to exceed $43,650 As of
June 30, 2024, the District incurred $24,973 for this work.

On September 19, 2023, the District approved an imaging contract and services agreement with Precision
Document Imaging for services related to scan documents, index and shred approx. 200 boxes, and document
storage access for an amount not to exceed $132,605 As of June 30, 2024, the District incurred $6,400 for this
work.

On November 14, 2023, the District approved a professional service with Eastern Sierra for services related to
Stormwater Masterplan presentation for an amount not to exceed $4,000 As of June 30, 2024, the District had
not incurred any costs for this work.

On February 20, 2024, the District approved a procurement contract with Western Nevada Supply for services
related to FY 2023-2024 Waterline Replacement Material for an amount not to exceed $718,923 As of June 30,
2024, the District incurred $682,366 for this work.

On June 18, 2024, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for services
related to FY26 Waterline and Road Repair/Renovation Project for an amount not to exceed $975,556 As of
June 30, 2024, the District had not incurred any costs for this work.

On June 18, 2024, the District approved an engineering services agreement with DOWL Engineering for services

related to FY 25/26 Road Surface Repair and Renovation Project for an amount not to exceed $328,217 As of
June 30, 2024, the District had not incurred any costs for this work.

53



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2023 2022 2021 2020 2018 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.01134% 0.01238% 0.01160% 0.01198% 0.01221% 0.01294% 0.01250% 0.01317% 0.01316% 0.01298%
Proportionate share of the net

pensian liability $2,069,666 $2,234,758 $1,057,619 51,668,873  $1,665356 $1,765,366 $1,662,494 51,772,738 $1,508,376  $1,353,150
Covered payroll $ 869,887 5 904,667 S 819,712 5 844,434 $ B29,092 $ 858,662 S 794,412 $ 791,013 $ 784,199 $ 724,070
Proportionate share of the net pension

liability as a percentage of its

cavered payroll 237.92% 247.03% 129.02% 197.63% 200.87% 222.22% 209.27% 224.11% 192.35% 186.88%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability 76.16% 75.12% 86.51% 77.04% 76.46% 75.24% 74.40% 72.23% 75.10% 76.30%

54



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Notes to schedule: 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
inflation rate 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Payrofl growth 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Investment rate of return/Discount rate 7.25% 7.25% 7.25% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Productivity pay increase 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75%
Projected salary increase® 420%1t00.10% 4.20%109.10% 4.20%109.10% 4.25%109.15% 4.25%109.15% 4.25%to 9.15% 4.25%t09.15% 4.60%t09.75% 4.60%109.75%  4.60%t09.75%
Consumer price index 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
2023 - 2021 2020- 2017 2016 - 2014
Mortality rates
Healthy*” Pub-2010 General and Safety Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Healthy RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table
Healthy Retiree and Employee
Disabled Pub-2010 Non-Safety and Safety Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Heatthy RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table
Disabled Retiree Amount-Weighted
Current beneficiaries** Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor and Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Healthy N/A
General Employee
Pre-retirement** Employee Pub-2010 General Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Heatthy N/A
and Safety Employee
Future mortality improvement Generational Projection 6 years N/A

* Depending on service. Rates include inflation and productivity increases.
i/ ighted Abov

e-Medi

Scale MP-2020

55



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Schedule of Contributions — Pension
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 152,969 $ 131,459 S 136,212 $ 121,388 $ 124,866 S 117,570 §$ 119,906 § 116,004 S 93,741 5 92,312
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution {152,969) {131,459) (136,212) {121,388) {124,866) {117,570} (119,906) (116,004) {93,741) {92,312)
Contribution deficiency {excess) $ -8 - S - S - 8 -5 - 8 -8 - $ -8
District's covered payroll $ 900,901 S$ 869,887 § 904,667 S 819,172 S 844,434 $ 829,092 $ 858,662 S 794,412 § 791,013 $ 784,199
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 16.98% 15.11% 15.06% 14.82% 14.79% 14.18% 13.96% 14.60% 11.85% 11.77%

56



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Schedule of Funding Progress — OPEB

June 30, 2024
Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b)-(a) (a/b) (c) ([b-al/c)

June 30, 2024 S - S 640,356 S 640,356 0.00%  $ 325,201 196.91%

June 30, 2023 - 637,231 637,231 0.00% 374,124 170.33%

June 30, 2022 - 695,507 695,507 0.00% 404,854 171.79%

June 30, 2021 - 817,127 817,127 0.00% 558,847 146.22%

June 30, 2020 - 505,633 505,633 0.00% 437,302 115.63%

June 30, 2019 - 425,432 425,432 0.00% 503,544 84.49%

June 30, 2018 - 375,156 375,156 0.00% 710,271 52.82%

57



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last Ten Fiscal Years*

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Sarvice costs S 19,298 § 22,564 30,246 S 23,845 S 18,444 16,268 $ 14,814
Interest 23,652 25,090 18,101 11,508 15,464 14,939 13,362
Differences between expected

and actual experience - (65,843) - 343,516 - 11,214 28,542
Changes in assumptions or ather inputs (22,767} {21,462) (151,263} {49,855) 52,928 18,636 4,418
Benefit payments (17,058} (18,625) (18,704) (17,520) (6,635) (10,781) (10,438)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 3,125 (58,276) {121,620) 311,494 80,201 50,276 50,698
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 637,231 817,127 817,127 505,633 425,432 375,156 324,458
Total OPEB Liability - Ending $ 640,356 S 758,851 695,507 S 817,127 § 505,633 425432 § 375,156
Covered-Employee Payroll S 325,201 § 374,124 404,854 S 558,847 S 437,302 503,544 § 710,271
Total OPEB Liability as A Percentage

of Covered-Employee Payroli 196.91% 202.83% 171.79% 146.22% 115.63% 84.49% 52.82%

* GASB Statement No. 75 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until ten years of data is available, the District will present

information only for those years for which information is available.

58



Supplementary Information
June 30, 2024

Kingsbury General Improvement District

EideBailly.

| eidebailly.com



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Schedule of Capital Assets by Sources

June 30, 2024

Governmental Fund Capital Assets
Equipment and vehicles
Office equipment
Land
Infrastructure
Construction in progress (infrastructure)

Total Governmental Fund Capital Assets
Investment in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source
General Fund

Special Revenue Fund

Total Governmental Fund Capital Assets

$

1,444,348
30,386
126,482
12,914,784
276,610

14,792,610

13,837,680
954,930

14,792,610

59



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Capital Assets used in the Operations of Governmental Funds by Function and Activity

June 30, 2024
Equipment Construction
and Office in Progress

Function and Activity Vehicles Equipment Land Infrastructure {Infrastructure) Total
Streets and Highways S 843,480 S 21,363 S 32,558 $ 11,601,409 $ 202,085 $ 12,700,895
Snow Removal 600,868 9,023 93,924 176,590 74,525 954,930
Erosion Control - - - 1,136,785 - 1,136,785
Total Governmental Fund

Capital Assets S 1,444,348 $ 30,386 S 126,482 S 12,914,784 S 276,610 S 14,792,610

60



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Changes in Capital Assets used in the Operations of Governmental Funds by Function and Activity
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

Capital Assets Additions/ Deletions/ Capital Assets

Function and Activity July 1, 2023 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2024

Streets and Highways S 12,602,729 S 212,381 S (114,215) $ 12,700,895

Snow Removal 914,449 143,046 (102,565) 954,930

Erosion Control 1,136,785 - - 1,136,785
Total Governmental Funds

Capital Assets S 14,653,963 S 355,427 ) (216,780) S 14,792,610

61



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Revenue and Expenses — Budget and Actual — Sewer Utility Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2024

(with Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2023)

2024 2023
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Operating Revenue
Sewer use fees $ 1,883,847 1,841,822 S (42,025) $ 1,860,822
Connection fees and other
revenue 7,400 62,427 55,027 39,324
Total operating revenue 1,891,247 1,904,249 13,002 1,900,146
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 189,799 159,600 30,199 149,259
Employee benefits 131,878 88,601 43,277 119,730
Services and supplies 1,722,450 1,452,031 270,419 1,426,583
Depreciation/amortization 56,023 85,080 (29,057) 78,170
Total operating expenses 2,100,150 1,785,312 314,838 1,773,742
Operating Income (208,903) 118,937 327,840 126,404
Nonoperating Income
interest income 87,441 211,568 124,127 136,637
Interest expense - (240) {240) {1,296)
Total nonoperating income 87,441 211,328 123,887 135,341
Change in Net Position S (121,462) 330,265 S 451,727 S 261,745

62



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual — Sewer Utility Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2024
{with Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2023)

2024 2023
Budget Actual Variance Actual

Operating Activities

Cash received from customers S 1,887,724 S 1,863,653 S (24,071) S 1,866,348

Cash paid to employees (253,477) {(228,058) 25,419 (208,440)

Cash paid to suppliers (1,672,016) (1,375,274) 296,742 (1,347,225)
Net Cash from {used for)

Operating Activities {37,769) 260,321 298,090 310,683
Capital and Related Financing Activities

Capital expenditures (211,634) (937,661) (726,027) {168,292)

Principal payments of

lease liabilities - (13,134) (13,134) (20,819)
Interest/amortization
paid on long-term debt (35) (240) (205) (1,296)

Net Cash used for Capital and

Related Financing Activities (211,669) (951,035) (739,366) (190,407)
Investing Activities

Interest on investments 4,888 211,568 206,680 136,637
Net Change in Cash and Cash

Equivalents (244,550) (479,146) (234,596) 256,913
Cash and Cash Equivalents,

Beginning of Year 4,246,338 4,779,908 533,570 4,522,995
Cash and Cash Equivalents,

End of Year S 4,001,788 S 4,300,762 S 298,974 S 4,779,908

63



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Revenue and Expenses — Budget and Actual — Water Utility Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2024

(with Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2023)

Operating Revenue
Water fees
Connection fees

Total operating revenue
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Depreciationfamortization
Total operating expenses
Operating Income
Nonoperating Revenue {Expenses)
interest income
Gain on disposal of assets
Interest expense

Total nonoperating expenses

Change in Net Position

2024 2023
Budget Actual Variance Actual
S 4,768,992 S 4,801,300 S 32,308 4,716,416
10,200 107,250 97,050 130,600
4,779,192 4,908,550 129,358 4,847,016
662,892 631,770 31,122 671,551
593,335 359,867 233,468 239,469
1,138,029 832,889 305,140 748,496
1,293,387 1,403,796 (110,409) 1,335,098
3,687,643 3,228,322 459,321 2,994,614
1,091,549 1,680,228 588,679 1,852,402
10,509 377,820 367,311 26,630
- (5,715) (5,715) -
(358,591) (300,544) 58,047 (385,699)
(348,082) 71,561 419,643 (359,069)
S 743,467 $ 3,029,534 S 2,286,067 1,493,333

64



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Statement of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual — Water Utility Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2024

(with Comparative Totals for Year Ended fune 30, 2023)

2024 2023
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Operating Activities
Cash received from customers S 4,779,192 S 4,871,251 92,059 S 4,700,220
Cash paid to employees (1,256,247) (932,568) 323,679 (951,157)
Cash paid to suppliers {(1,138,029) (521,227) 616,802 {1,013,882)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 2,384,916 3,417,456 1,032,540 2,735,181
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital expenditures (7,940,385) (5,080,394) 2,859,991 (1,993,134)
Proceeds from capital grants 3,750,000 - (3,750,000) -
Principal payments of
long-term debt (1,611,163) (1,335,305) 275,858 (1,611,162)
Principal payments of
lease liabilities - (26,267) (26,267) {(41,638)
Interest/amortization paid
on long-term debt (346,890} (300,763) 46,127 (348,420)
Net Cash used for Capital and
Related Financing Activities (6,148,438) (6,742,729) (594,291) (3,995,354)
Investing Activities
Interest on investments 10,509 377,820 367,311 268,275
Net Change in Cash and Cash
Eguivalents (3,753,013) (2,947,453) 805,560 (991,898)
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Beginning of Year 9,306,164 8,953,092 (353,072) 9,944,990
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
End of Year $ 5,553,151 $ 6,005,639 452,488 S 8,953,092

65



EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees
Kingsbury General Improvement District
Stateline, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, business-type activities and fund information of the Kingsbury General Improvement District
(the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated November 25, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal contro! was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2024-001 that we consider to be a material
weakness.

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 89511-2094 | T775.689.9100 = F775.689.9299 = ECE

66



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

District’s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the District’s
response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses. The District’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

&M V%

Reno, Nevada
November 25, 2024

67



Kingsbury General Improvement District
Schedule of Findings and Responses
June 30, 2024

2024-001 Internal Control over the Preparation of Financial Statements
Material Weakness

Criteria:

Condition:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Views of Responsible Officials:

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective
system of internal control over financial reporting. One of the components of
an effective system of internal control over financial reporting is the
preparation of full disclosure financial statements that do not require
adjustment as part of the audit process, including any adjustments necessary.

The District does not have an internal control system designed to provide for
the preparation of the financial statements and related financial statement
disclosures in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
including recording necessary journal entries and ensuring all amounts are
properly recorded. In conjunction with the completion of our audit, we were
requested to draft the financial statements and accompanying notes to those
financial statements, and record cash to accrual conversion entries. Although
this circumstance is not unusual for an organization of your size, the
preparation of financial statements as a part of the audit engagement may
result in financial statements and related information included in financial
statement disclosures not being available for management purposes as timely
as it would be if prepared by Division personnel. It is the responsibility of
management and those charged with governance to determine whether to
accept the risk associated with this condition because of cost or other
considerations.

Procedures have not been implemented to ensure District personnel possess
the experience to prepare the District’s full disclosure financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, including ensuring
that all necessary adjustments are recorded and amounts are properly
recorded.

The financial statements and related financial statement disclosures have
been prepared by the independent auditors.

We recommend that the District enhance internal controls over financial
reporting that would allow for District personnel to prepare the District’s full
disclosure financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, including ensuring that all necessary adjustments are
recorded and amounts are properly recorded.

Management agrees with the finding.

63



EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Auditors’ Comments

To the Board of Trustees
Kingsbury General Improvement District
Stateline, Nevada

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and fund information of the Kingsbury General Improvement District (the “District”) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, nothing came
to our attention that caused us to believe that the District failed to comply with the specific
requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward
obtaining knowledge of noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures other
matters may have come to our attention regarding the District’s noncompliance with the requirements
of Nevada Revised Statutes, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

Current Year Statute Compliance

The required disclosure on compliance with the Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative
Code is cantained in Note 2 to the financial statements.

Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance

The District monitored all significant constraints on its financial administration during the year ended
June 30, 2023.

Current Year Recommendations
See the schedule of findings and responses for current year recommendations.
Progress on Prior Year Recommendations

Finding 2023-001 reported for the year ended June 30, 2023 was resolved during the year ended
June 30, 2024.

&MALP

Reno, Nevada
November 25, 2024

What inspires you, inspires us. Let's talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 Reno, NV 89511:2094 = T775.689.9100  F 775.689.9299 | EOE

69



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #10

TITLE: APPROVE MODICATION TO PERSONNEL POLICY REGARDING
PROPOSED ADJUSTMENTS TO EXEMPT SALARY SCHEDULE

For Discussion and Possible Action. Discussion and Possible Action to approve
modification to Personnel Policy regarding adjustments to Exempt Salary Schedule

MEETING DATE: 17 December 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve modification to the Personnel Policy 4.4.3 regarding
adjustments to exempt salary schedule and authorize General Manager to execute appropriate
documents.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The district seeks to develop a cadre of professionals to
ensure continuity of management and increased levels of management. The district has experienced
difficulty recruiting or retaining people to perform these functions. To remedy this and introduce
salary ranges and merit achievement for promotions, the district has developed a program for the
exempt personnel. This program is intended to substitute the merit and COLA process currently
used which will increase transparency and predictability.

The district has four exempt positions (besides the General Manager) and is proposing to develop a
compensation program with five steps across ten years. And an option to accelerate the schedule
with professional growth or academic achievement. In this manner the district seeks to recruit and
retain qualified individuals that may see the district as an organization which embraces personal
growth and has the depth for retention for many years.

It is recommended that the personnel policy be amended to include paragraphs 4.4.3 to reflect these
changes with the exempt salary schedule (attachment A) which will be appended to the policy. Itis
recommended that implementation of this policy would commence January 1, 2025.

INCLUDED:
(A)  Proposed exempt salary schedule (Appendix B)

Fund impacted by the above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



a. Non-represented, salaried/FLSA Exempt employees will be eligible for
reimbursement by the outside agency for all hours worked during
emergency operations, except those hours falling between 0800 and
1700, Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

b. The hourly rate paid shall be paid based on the employee’s annual base
salary, divided by 2080 hours, which amount is in conformance with
the requirement set forth in 29 CFR § 541.604 that the extra
compensation be reasonably related to the employee’s regular salary
and therefore does not impair the employee’s exempt status under the
FLSA.

c. Compensation earned is considered “additional compensation” and not
reportable to the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS).

d. Itis the responsibility of the employee to submit a claim for any
additional hours worked under this policy.

e. Allowed additional compensation of exempt salaried personnel will be
calculated as straight time compensation for incidents, which exceed an
initial twenty-four (24) hours of operation and/or where services are
billable under existing agreements and/or regulations and as allowed
by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). The additional compensation
time is retroactive to the employee’s start time on the incident or event
once the initial 24-hour period has been exceeded.

f.  Prior to providing compensation to an exempt employee, approval must
first be obtained from the General Manager (or Board of Directors if
General Manager compensation is affected.)

4.3.1 Safe Harbor
KGID will classify employees as exempt or non-exempt, in accordance with the provisions of
the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and applicable state law. If an employee feels s/he is
improperly classified, s/he should request a review of the classification from the Administrative
& H.R. Supervisor. A review will be conducted and KGID will act to correct any errors as soon
as practicable. KGID will not make improper deductions of pay from any employee, regardless
of exempt or non-exempt status. Improper deductions should be reported to the Administrative
& H.R. Supervisor and KGID will act to address the issue if an error is found. KGID will
continuously make a good faith commitment to comply with all provisions of FLSA and state
laws and intends this policy of correction to satisfy the “safe harbor” provisions of the FLSA.



44  Rates of Pay

4.4.1 Compensation Plan
Each regular position will be assigned to a class and pay grades in the compensation plan.
Assignment to a pay grade will be based on the relative level and complexity of the duties,
responsibilities, and authority of the job. KGID shall determine the pay ranges based on these
considerations:

e Rates paid by KGID for comparable work.

e Internal relationships of other job classes in the same or similar occupation;
e Rates paid by other agencies for comparable work;

e Other financial commitments of KGID; and

e Funds available to KGID for salaries.

KGID may adjust the minimum and maximum for each range periodically as changes in any of
the factors listed above occur or to recruit and retain qualified employees for each job.

442 Discussion of Wages
NRS 613.330 states it is unlawful to discriminate against an employee for inquiring about,
discussing, or voluntarily disclosing information about wages. This does not apply to any
employee who has access to or information about the wages of other employees as part of their
essential job functions and discloses that information to a person who does not have access to
that information unless the disclosure is ordered by the Labor Commissioner or court.

4.4.3 Exempt Employee Salary Schedule
Exempt employees are often a professional role and/or supervisory. They are not part ofa
bargaining unit nor represented in a guild. In addition, they hold key positions within the
district, which both time and their own professional growth make them more versed and
beneficial to the organization. In addition, with growth they are increasingly vested in the
district. Therefore. the district seeks to use a salary range of five steps offering step increases
every two years which can be accelerated by either professional education accomplishments or
the recommendation of the General Manager to the Board of Trustees.

The exempt salary schedule (Appendix B) may be reviewed annually with the budget
development to consider adjustments if necessary.



Appendix B

Exempt Positions Rates of Pay 2025-2026

Kingsbury General Improvement District

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step4 Step5
Civil Engineer 49.39 54.33 59.27 64.21 69.14
Finance Manager 49.39 54.33 59.27 61.14 63.00
Utility Operations Superintendent 36.13 40.65 45.16 47.87 50.58
Administrative & I:I.R. Supervisor 29.88 33.62 37.35 39.59 41.83 ;




KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #11

TITLE: APPROVE EMERGENT PROCUREMENT FOR WATER SERVICE LINE
REPLACEMENT WITH SUMMIT PLUMBING ON HOLLY LANE

For Discussion and Possible Action. Approved emergent procurement for water service
lines replacement with Summit Plumbing on Holly Lane

MEETING DATE: 17 December 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve emergent procurement for water service line replacement
with Summit Plumbing on Holly Lane not to exceed $38,000 and authorize the General Manager to
execute appropriate documents

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The district assumed ownership and operations for the Lake
Village complex many years ago. Subsequently, the district has experienced challenges resulting
from poor construction techniques and lack of standards for installing underground utilities. The
service lines leaking to 162, 165, 166 & 167 Holly Lane have proven problematic. The district has
responded to multiple leaks and found the routing of the lines is problematic and often are more
complicated than should be or involve removing driveways, pathways and parking/roadways.

The nature of the work is best suited for Summit Plumbing because they have experience working
within the complex on both sides of the water meter. In addition, Summit Plumbing recently
responded on behalf of the district for repairs on one of the lines which the district has repaired
multiple times previously.

Without this repair, these lines will continue to be problematic and require district response. The
water loss, ancillary damage and community perception will be negatively impacted with the
frequent failure of these service lines.

INCLUDED:
(A) Proposal from Summit Plumbing

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds () Not a Budget Item
(X) Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending






3 1 ‘!" 3

PLUMBING CO., LLC
1748 Timber Court - Gardnerville, NV 89410 « 775-588-5996 « 775-267-9957 - Fax: 775-782-6011

NV Lic.#'s 0050252 / 0058527 / 0076730 « CA Lic. #827733
£mail: summitplumbingandseplic@gmail.com

PROPOSAL
Date: December 10,2024 . e
| Proposal Submitted To: Address of Job Site:
KINGSBURY GENERAL IMP, DIST HOLLY LANE |
C/O ACCOUNTS PAYABLE |
| P.0.B0OX 2220 |

STATELINE, NV. 89449 |

_I = = - - -
We hereby propose to hand excavate approximately 180" of trenches to supply new water lines to the
following addresses

| Addresses: 162,165,166 & 167 Holly Lane

o Trenches will be 36" deep.
: Water lines will be in soft copper.

Water line will have detection wire on them,

Bury tape will be 1-foot above water line.
Cutting, removing & replacing asphalt.
Capping off old service line at main.
Hot tapping existing 6 water main.
Backfilling & clean up.

This will be done on a time and material basis not to exceed: $38,000.00
(Thirty-Eight Thousand Dollars and 00/100)

Note: This project to take 6-16 days depending on boulders that we may find while excavating.

General Engincering License A15. AT #58527 Plumbing & Heating License C1 #50252
Limit: $750.000 Limit: $750.000
Drill Wells. Install Pumps. Pressure Tanks License California License #827733

€23 #0076730 Limit $10.000.00

Payments to be made as follows: Due upon completion of the job.

NOTE — We may withdraw this proposal if not accepted within 7 days due to material
costs changing weekly, Any alteration or deviation {rom the above specifications
involving extra costs will be executed only upoy wrijien orders and will become an extra
charge over and above this estimate.

JZ_J lo. )ZQZ-/
Date
Jeftmy Weston -~

The above prices, specifications and conditions are salisfactory and are hereby accepted.
You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above.

Please sign and return the original to our office.

Date Authorized Sighature






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #12

TITLE: APPROVE THE LIST OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES AND
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO DISPOSE OF THESE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY.

For Discussion and Possible Action. Review and approve the list of surplus equipment
and vehicles and authorize the General Manager to dispose of these in accordance with
the appropriate policy.

MEETING DATE: 17 December 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the list of surplus equipment and vehicles and authorize
the General Manager to dispose of these in accordance with the appropriate policy.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Periodically, the district identifies capital assets (vehicles or
equipment) which are no longer serviceable, used, or needed. The district opts to identify these as
surplus for sale of disposal.

In 2022 the district adopted a policy governing this process. In short, capital assets such as vehicles
and equipment with value in excess of $5,000 will be reported to the Board of Trustees. While most
of these items are fully depreciated or not likely to have significant value. Additionally, there is no
need to replace these vehicles which will assist in the upcoming budget process. Therefore, the
attached list is provided and recommended for disposal.

Most commonly, the district uses an auction service however, the policy allows for the General
Manager to use discretion to determine the best methodology for disposing of these assets.

INCLUDED:
(A) List of equipment to be disposed/surplus

Fund impacted by the above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund

() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund
() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



List of Equipment to be Disposed of/Surplus

Job Trailer/Lunchroom Station 2 no vin associated

1990 F- 350 Pickup vin 2FTHF36G4LCB31085
2010 GMC Acadia vin 1GKLVKED3AJ238706
2019 Road sweeper vin IFVACXFC4KHKM5642



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #13

TITLE: PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ACTION FOR RATE SETTING OF
SEWER RATES AND CHARGES.

For Discussion and Possible Action. Discussion and possible rate setting action regarding the
Sewer Rates and Charges

MEETING DATE: 17 December 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Conduct Public Hearing. Adopt Resolution 2025-02
increasing the Sewer Rates and Charges

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

In May 2022, the Board of Trustees (Board) noted that spending for the Snow Removal Fund was
consistently outspending revenues. In July 2022, the Board received an introductory session
regarding the rate/fee model needed to provide sustainable funding based on 10-year expense
leveling. Feedback received during the session validated the approach, and general direction was
provided to review the level of administrative charges and reduce the rate of growth used in the
calculation. The proposed fee and structure were reviewed in the October 18, 2022, Board of
Trustee meeting. Below is the format for the rate setting and public hearing:

Opening/Welcome Board Chair
1. Presentation on proposed metered Snow removal rate  General Manager
2. Open Public Hearing on proposed Snow removal rate  Board Chair
3. Close Public Hearing on proposed Snow removal rate  Board Chair
4. Board discussion on proposed Snow removal rate Trustees
S. Motion and action on proposed Snow removal rate Trustees

Resolution 2022-02, A Resolution adopting an increase to snow rates effective February 1, 2023,
is attached is attached as item A. As required by law, beginning more than 30 days before the
December 13, 2022, public hearing on the proposed rate change, KGID provided public notice of
the increase through a newspaper display ad. Copy attached as item B. The board of trustees had
open meeting discussions relating to this matter on 3 occasions during the past six months
culminating in the agenda and discussion of the October 18, 2022, meeting (attachment C). In
addition to district salaries, there are two fixed costs within the snow removal fund, first is the cost
of the vendor which is the primary expense (attachment D) and the capital expenses as allocated
to the fund in the annual budget (attachment E).

Draft Resolution 2022-02

Notice of Public Hearing

Board of Trustee meeting 18 Oct Agenda report and exercise worksheet

Board of Trustee meeting 20 Sept 2022 Snow Removal Contract Award

Kingsbury General Improvement District Approved Budget for Fy 2022/23 excerpt

SE-Rel- s



Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds () Not a Budget Item

() Water Fund (X) Sewer Fund

() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund
() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2025-02

A Resolution adopting an increase to the Sewer rate effective April 1, 2025

WHEREAS the Kingsbury General Improvement District provides sewer services for a
significant portion of the Stateline Community of the Tahoe Township of Douglas County, NV;
and,

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees is empowered to set rates and charges from time to
time as necessary for the operations of the district; and,

WHEREAS establish schedules showing all rates, tolls or charges for services performed
or products furnished; and,

WHEREAS, within 30 days after the effective date of the resolution, the secretary of the
district shall file a copy of the new schedules in the office of the district. The schedules shall be
made available to any user of the service or product; and,

WHEREAS the current proposal was reviewed, and deliberations occurred at two
meetings of the Board of Trustees, in October and November 2024; and,

WHEREAS the district published an announcement of this hearing and intended action
of November 16, 2024, in the Record-Courier.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the attached schedule sewer
rates and charges is adopted effective April 1, 2025.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17% Day of December 2024, by the Kingsbury General
Improvement District Board of Trustees.

Natalie Yanish, Chairman, Board of Trustees
Attest:

Jodie Nelson, Secretary-Treasurer
Those voting Aye:
Those voting Nay:
Those Abstaining:

Those Absent:



CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified Secretary of the Kingsbury General
Improvement District hereby certify that the attached is a true copy of KGID Resolution 2025-02
duly adopted by the Board of Trustees at a meeting duly called and held on the 17® day of
December, 2024; that at said meeting a quorum was present and voting throughout, and that said
Resolution has not been rescinded or modified and is now in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the seal of
the Kingsbury General Improvement District this 17th day of December 2024.

Jodie Nelson, Secretary-Treasurer



TahoeDailyTribime action
YOUR AQ HERE »

KGID GM McKay suggests stagnant sewer rates for next few years

News {FoLLow nEWS | | Feb 2, 2020

[\ LaneyGriffo

s ."' Igriffo@tahaedailytribune.com

STATELINE, Nev. — Kingsbury residents who have complained about the rising sewer rates have been heard by Kingsbury General
Improvement District staff.
On Jan. 23, KGID General Manager Cameron McKay presented proposed sewer rate changes to the Board of Trustees.

McKay recommends no increases in the next few ycars then smaller increases, such as 1-2% in the following years to match inflation.

“In the last few years, we've had a significant change of about 20 million gallons of effluence less than what we used to so therefore our
costs have gone down significantly; McKay told the Tribune. “What we're looking at doing is balancing the sewer rates to match, more
accurately, what our costs are from the sewer authority”

KGID coliects the sewer from the Kingsbury Grade area and sends it to the sewer treatment plant owned by Douglas County Lake Tahoe
Sewer Authority

This presentation follows complaints from many of the residents, although McKay said he was working on the issue prior to concerns

being raised.
“Before they even started complaining, I could see this change coming and started looking at the rates,” McKay said.

A public hearing will need to be held in order to implement the changes. A date hasn't been set for the hearing but McKay said it will
likely be before May.

Local DONATE






; ~ ! 8
&5 Dovoves Covery's Houerows Newsraren B .

1mce 1880

PO Box 648, Carson City, NV 89702
1071 S Carson St, Carson City, NV 89701
(775) 881-1201 FAX: (775) 887-2408

Customer Account #: 4409

Legal Account
KINGSBURY GID (LEGAL ACCOUNT)

PO BOX 2220
STATELINE, NV 89449

Jodi Lynn Dark says:

That she is a legal clerk of the

Record Courier a newspaper published
Wednesday and Saturday

at Gardnerville, in the State of Nevada.

Copy Line
11/18 RC Sewer/Water Rates & Charges NOPH

PO #:

AD #: 47828

of which a copy is hereto attached, was published
in said newspaper for the full required period of 1
time(s) commencing on 11/16/2024

and ending on, 11/16/2024

all days inclusive.

Signed:
Statement:

Date Amount Balance

11/18/24 148.50 148.50

Proof and Statement of Publication
AD #: 47828






— r — = ———

legals- | legals- legals-
douglas co. douglas co. douglas co.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BY
KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ON PROPOSED
CHANGE TO SEWER AND WATER RATES AND CHARGES

A public hearing to discuss the proposed increases will be held at 5:00
p.m. Tuesday, December 17, 2024, at the district office located at 160 Pine
Ridge Drive, Stateline, NV 89449.

The public is invited to attend the meeting and shall be afforded a
reasonable opportunity to submit data, views, or arguments orally or in
writing or may provide written comments by mail to: Kingsbury GID, P.O.
Box 2220, Stateline, NV 89449, to be received prior to the public hearing.

SEWER BASE RATES WATER BASE RATES
AND CHARGES AND CHARGES
Proposed 6% Increase per year Proposed 3.5% Increase per year

These increases are each year for 3 consecutive years. The proposed
increases are recommended for implementation on April 1st of each year
commencing in 2025.

If after the public hearing the Board of Trustees determines that the
proposed action is required, the Board shall adopt a resolution establishing
the new rates with effective dates as established.

Dated: November 14, 2024
Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager
Pub Date: November 16, 2024 Ad # 47828







KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #14

TITLE: PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ACTION FOR RATE SETTING OF
WATER RATES AND CHARGES.

For Discussion and Possible Action. Discussion and possible rate setting action regarding the
Water Rates and Charges and adjustment to Ordnance Number 1

MEETING DATE: 17 December 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Conduct Public Hearing. Adopt Resolution 2025-03
increasing the Water Rates and Charges and adopt changes to Ordnance number 1

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

In May 2024, the Board of Trustees (Board) noted that spending on the Water Fund was
consistently outspending revenues. The proposed rates and charges were reviewed in October and
November 2024, Board of Trustee meetings. Below is the format for the rate setting and public
hearing;:

Opening/Welcome Board Chair
1. Presentation on proposed metered Water rate & charges General Manager
2. Open Public Hearing on proposed Water rate & charges  Board Chair
3. Close Public Hearing on proposed Water rate & charges  Board Chair
4, Board discussion on proposed Water rate & charges Trustees
5. Motion and action on proposed Water rate & charges Trustees

Resolution 2025-03, A Resolution adopting an increase to Water rates effective April 1, 2025, is
attached is attached as item A. As required by law, beginning more than 30 days before the
December 17, 2024, public hearing on the proposed rate change, KGID provided public notice of
the increase through a newspaper display ad. Copy attached as item C. The board of trustees had
open meeting discussions relating to this matter on 2 occasions during the past six months
culminating in the agenda and discussion of the November 17, 2024, meeting (attachment B). In
addition to Operational expenses, there is continued Debt service and annual Capital expenditures
within the Water fund, these expenses are difficult to reduce or defer.

Draft Resolution 2025-03

Board of Trustee meeting 17 November 2024 Agenda report with attachments
Verification of publication

. Notice of Public Hearing

Kingsbury General Improvement District Ordnance #1 proposed changes
Excerpt from Uniform Plumbing Code

AETOR P

Fund impacted by above action:

() All Funds () Not a Budget Item
(X) Water Fund () Sewer Fund

() General Fund () Water Removal Fund
() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending

1






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2025-03

A Resolution adopting an increase to the Water Rates and Charges effective April 1, 2025

WHEREAS, the Kingsbury General Improvement District provides water services
(treatment and distribution) for a significant portion of the Stateline Community of the Tahoe
Township of Douglas County, NV; and,

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees is empowered to set rates and charges from time to
time as necessary for the operations of the district; and,

WHEREAS establish schedules showing all rates, tolls or charges for services performed
or products furnished; and,

WHEREAS within 30 days after the effective date of the resolution, the secretary of the
district shall file a copy of the new schedules in the office of the district. The schedules shall be
made available to any user of the service or product; and,

WHEREAS the current proposal was reviewed, and deliberations occurred at two
meetings of the Board of Trustees, in October and November 2024; and,

WHEREAS the district published an announcement of this hearing and intended action
of November 16%, 2024, in the Record-Courier.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the attached schedule of
rates and charges is adopted effective April 1, 2025.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17® Day of December 2024, by the Kingsbury General
Improvement District Board of Trustees.

Natalie Yanish, Chairman, Board of Trustees
Attest:

Jodie Nelson, Secretary-Treasurer
Those voting Aye:
Those voting Nay:
Those Abstaining:

Those Absent:



CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified Secretary of the Kingsbury General
Improvement District hereby certify that the attached is a true copy of KGID Resolution 2025-03
duly adopted by the Board of Trustees at a meeting duly called and held on the 17" day of
December, 2024, that at said meeting a quorum was present and voting throughout, and that said
Resolution has not been rescinded or modified and is now in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the seal of
the Kingsbury General Improvement District this 17th day of December 2024.

Jodie Nelson, Secretary-Treasurer



. — . : &
Tz Becord~Comrier
' 8 Detoias Cousty's Hourrows Newspares Bince 18840 .

PO Box 648, Carson City, NV 89702
1071 S Carson St, Carson City, NV 89701
(775) 881-1201 FAX: (775) 887-2408

Customer Account #: 4409

Legal Account
KINGSBURY GID (LEGAL ACCOUNT)

PO BOX 2220
STATELINE, NV 89449

Jodi Lynn Dark says:

That she is a legal clerk of the

Record Courier a newspaper published
Wednesday and Saturday

at Gardnerville, in the State of Nevada.

Copy Line
11/16 RC Sewer/Water Rates & Charges NOPH

PO #:

AD #: 47828

of which a copy is hereto attached, was published
in said newspaper for the full required period of 1
time(s) commencing on 11/16/2024

and ending on, 11116/2024

all days inclusive.

Signed: 9.9
Statement:

Date Amount Balance

11/18/24 148.50 148.50

Proof and Statement of Publication
AD #: 47828






legals- legals- legals-
douglas co. douglas co. douglas co.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BY
KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ON PROPOSED
CHANGE TO SEWER AND WATER RATES AND CHARGES

A public hearing to discuss the proposed increases will be held at 5:00
p.m. Tuesday, December 17, 2024, at the district office located at 160 Pine
Ridge Drive, Stateline, NV 89449.

The public is invited to attend the meeting and shall be afforded a
reasonable opportunity to submit data, views, or arguments orally or in
writing or may provide written comments by mail to: Kingsbury GID, P.O.
Box 2220, Stateline, NV 89449, to be received prior to the public hearing.

SEWER BASE RATES WATER BASE RATES
AND CHARGES AND CHARGES
Proposed 6% Increase per year Proposed 3.5% Increase per year

These increases are each year for 3 consecutive years. The proposed
increases are recommended for implementation on April 1st of each year
commencing in 2025.

If after the public hearing the Board of Trustees determines that the
proposed action is required, the Board shall adopt a resolution establishing
the new rates with effective dates as established.

Dated: November 14, 2024
Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager
Pub Date: November 16, 2024 Ad # 47828







1.55 BASE RATE:
The monthly amount charged to each Customer, based on their respective water meter size or equivalent

(for example master metered parcels), but irrespective of water use, representing the Customer’s
proportionate share of the District’s fixed operational costs and debt service.

1.6 BACKFLOW:
The reversal of the normal flow of water caused by either backpressure or back siphonage.

1.7 BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLY:
An assembly or means designed to prevent backflow.

1.8 Reserved

1.9 BOARD:
The District’s Board of Trustees.

1.10 BUILDING:
Any structure used for human habitation, place of business, recreation or other purpose containing water

facilities or requiring water or sewer service.

1.11 CAPACITY RATIO:
The relative flow of each water service line size as compared to that of a %” service.

Water Service Line Size Capacity Ratio
% 1.00
1” 1.67
1.5” 3.33
2” 533
3” 10.67
4 16.67
6” 33.33
8” 53.33

1.115 CONSUMPTIONCHARGES:
The monthly amount charged to each Customer, as determined by their respective water meter size and
volume of water use, representing the Customer’s proportionate share of the District’s variable

operational costs.

1.12 CONTAMINATION:
An impairment of the quality of potable water by sewage, industrial fluids or waste liquids, compounds or
other materials to a degree which creates an actual or potential hazard to public health through poisoning

or through the spread of disease

As Amended Effective 9/01/2018 Ordinance No. 1



8.5 METER TESTS - DEPOSITS:

All meters will be tested or certified as to accuracy prior to installation and no meter will be

installed registering more than 2% fast or slow. A Customer who believes his or her meter is

inaccurate may request that the meter be tested by submitting a written request, together with a deposit
equal to the estimated cost of the meter test. During the period the meter is being tested, water use will be
estimated from prior years flow records if a temporary meter is not installed. Should the meter register
more than 2% high, the District shall refund the deposit and adjust the overage to as long as six months of
over registering. If the meter registers more than 2% slow the meter shall be replaced or repaired and the
Customer shall pay for the water not recorded on the meter, up to a period of six months.

The Customer shall owe the full meter test cost if the meter records within 2% of the true

meter reading, fast or slow.

8.6 NON-REGISTERING METERS:

If a meter is found to be not registering, the charges for service shall be the monthly base rate plus the
estimated consumption. Such estimates shall be based upon previous consumption for a comparable
period, or by such other methods as determined by the District, which decision shall be final.

8.7 DISTRICT ACCESS TO METERS:

Customers must provide District ready access to Customer's meter at all times. If access is blocked by
locked doors to which keys are not readily available, or if meter vaults are blocked by vehicles, snow
storage or other means, the District may require that the meter be relocated to a more accessible site by
the Customer, at Customer's expense. When the District does not have a key to access meters in crawl
spaces, District personnel shall cut the lock and replace it with a District lock in order to turn water off for
non-payment, water leak or other District reason. District personnel will notify owners and provide lock
combination. The inability to access a meter may result in the discontinuation of water service until
access is provided as deemed necessary by the District.

8.8 REDEVELOPMENT:

Any property being redeveloped must install a new water main in compliance with AWWA

standards and be inspected by the District at the Customer’s expense. A Customer that redevelops any
existing property will remove existing meters and install, at Customer’s expense, new meters meeting

District specifications at each service line. A credit for the size of the existing meters will be granted.

Where a master meter serviced the existing property, the master meter will be removed, and new meters
meeting District specifications will be installed on each new service connection. A credit for the size of
the existing master meter will be granted and used toward the installation of individual service
connections. All removed meters and appurtenances must be returned to the District.

8.9 CHANGES IN METER SIZE:

A Customer may request a reduction in meter size. All reductions must be approved by the

District and sized in accordance with the UPC. The Customer shall be responsible for the cost and
installation of all meters, piping, connectors, water boxes and necessary valves and connections for the
meters, as well as trenching, backfill and resurfacing and all other necessary work and materials.
Except as provided elsewhere herein, the District shall assume maintenance responsibility of a
metering device following proper installation. The expense of relocating services or meters shall be the
responsibility of the Customer unless made for the District’s operating convenience.

As Amended Effective 9/01/2018 Ordinance No. 1
33



ADM 1.8 PERMITS

ADM 1.8.1 Permits Required

It shall be unlawful for any individual, partnership, firm
or corporation to commence, Or cause to commence, any
installation, alteration, repair, replacement, conversion or
addition to any plumbing system, or part thereof, regulated
by this Code, except as permitted in Section 1.8.2, without
first obtaining a plumbing permit for cach separate building
or structure, on forms prepared and provided by the Authority
Having Jurisdiction,

ADM 1.8.2 Permits Not Required for the Following
a. Permits shall not be required for the following work:

1. The stoppage of leaks in drains or vent pipes.
However, should the defect necessitate removal and
replacement with new material, it shall constitute new
work and a permit shall be obtained and inspection made
as required in this Code.

2. The clearing of stoppages.
3. The repairing of leaks in valves or fixtures.

4. The removing and reinstallation of a water closet for
a cleanout opening provided the reinstallation does not
require replacement or rearrangement of valves, pipes or
new fixtures.

b. Exemptions from obtaining a permit required by this
Code shall not be construed as to authorize any work to be
performed in violation of this Code.

ADM 1.9 PROCESS FOR OBTAINING PERMITS

ADM 1.9.1 Application

a. Applications for a permit shall be made in writing by the
person, or his agent, proposing to do such work covered by
the permit. The applicant shall file such application in writing
on a form prepared and provided by the Authority Having
Jurisdiction. Every such permit shall:

I. Describe in detail the work to be done for which the
permit was obtained.

2. Describe in detail the parcel of land on which the
proposed work is to be done by legal description, street
address or other means to definitely locate the site or
building where the work is to be performed.

3. List the type of occupancy or use.

4, Provide plans, drawings, diagrams, calculations or
other data as required by Section 1.9.2.

5. Be signed by the person or agent making application.

6. Provide any other information the Authority Having
Jurisdiction may require.



ADM 1.4 APPLICABILITY

ADM 1.4.1 Addition or Repair

Additions, alterations or repairs in compliance to this Code
may be made to any existing plumbing system without
requiring the existing installation to comply with all the
requirements of this Code. Additions, alterations or repairs
shall not cause an existing system to become unsafe,
insanitary or overloaded.

ADM 1.4.2 Existing Plumbing Installation

Plumbing systems that were lawfully installed prior to the
adoption of this Code may continue their use, maintenance or
repairs, provided the maintenance or repair is in accordance
with the original design, location, and no hazard has been
created to life, health or property by such plumbing system.

ADM 1.4.3 Existing Use

The lawful use of any plumbing installation, appliances,
fixtures, fittings and appurtcnances may have their use
continued, provided no hazards to life, health or property have
been created by their continued use.

ADM 1.4.4 Maintenance and Repairs

The maintenance of all plumbing systems, materials,
appurtenances, devices or safeguards, both existing and
new, shall be maintained in a safe and proper condition. The
owner, or his designated agent, shall be responsible for the
maintenance of the plumbing system. Minor repairs to or
replacement of any existing systems are permitted, provided
they are made in the same manner and arrangement as the
original installation and are approved.

ADM 1.6 ORGANIZATION AND ENFORCEMENT

ADM 1.6.1 Authority Having Jurisdiction

The Authority Having Jurisdiction shall be the individual
official, board, department or agency duly appointed by the
Jurisdiction as having the authority to administer and enforce
the provisions of this Code as adopted or amended.



ADM 1.6.5 Authority to Condemn

When the Authority Having Jurisdiction determines that any
plumbing system or portion thereof that is regulated by this
Code has become insanitary or hazardous to life, health or
property, it shall order in writing that such plumbing system
or portion thereof be repaired, replaced or removed so as to be
in code compliance. The written order shall fix a reasonable
time limit for the work to be brought into code compliance,
and no person shall use the condemned plumbing system until
such work is complete and approved by the Authority Having
Jurisdiction.

ADM 1.6.6 Authority to Abate

Any plumbing system, or portion thereof that is found to be
insanitary or constitute a hazard to life, health or property is
hereby declared 10 be a nuisance. Where a nuisance exists, the
Authority Having Jurisdiction shall require the nuisance to be
abated and shall seck such abatement in the manner prescribed
by law.

ADM 1.6.7 Liability

The Authority Having Jurisdiction, or any individual duly
appointed or authorized by the Authority Having Jurisdiction
to enforce this Code, acting in good faith and without malice,
shall not thereby be rendered personally liable for any damage
that may occur to persons or property as a result of any act, or
by reason of any act or omission in the lawful discharge of his
duties. Should a suit be brought against the Authority Having
Jurisdiction or duly appointed representative because of such
act or omission, it shall be defended by legal counsel provided
by this jurisdiction until final termination of the proceedings.






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #15

TITLE: RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT SERVICE PLAQUES TO TRUSTEES

For Discussion and Possible Action. Recognize and present service plaques to trustees
upon retirement from service.

MEETING DATE: 17 December 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recognize and present service plaques to trustees upon
retirement from service

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The purpose of this item is ceremonial and provides a record to acknowledge the years of service,
dedication and leadership provided to the district by retiring members of the Kingsbury General
Improvement District Board of Trustees.

To this end, the district presents the following service plaques:
Jodie Nelson — Service from 2012 to 2024

Craig Schorr — Service from 2014 to 2024

Natalie Yanish — Service from 2012 to 2024

As the core cadre for the district for several years, setting the vision and promoting the pace while
safeguarding the district across the past decade. In leadership, your unwavering support and
commitment to the success of the agency was instrumental in accomplishing so many goals and
navigating the difficult spots as they arose. You provided for a keen sense of integrity and pragmatic
direction as needed to guide the district along. As you depart, the district remains engaged in key
projects and programs which will be the path for the next several years. As Board members, you
each exercised the financial fiduciary duties to the rate payers and ensured the district remains in
sound fiscal health as you depart.

There is no higher service than local service and no higher overseer to your work to call upon at
moments like these. As the local legislative body, only the community can say it; on behalf of the
Kingsbury General Improvement District — “Job well done, thank you for your service.”

Fund impacted by the above action:

() All Funds () Not a Budget Item

() Water Fund () Sewer Fund

() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund
() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending

1






